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Hesse Rural Health acknowledges Victoria’s Aboriginal and Torres Strait 
Islander communities and their rich culture. We pay respect to the Ancestors, 

Elders and Communities of Wathaurong people of the Kulin Nation, the custodians of the land 
on which we deliver our health care services. We seek to ensure the facilities, environment and 
services we manage are welcoming and inclusive for all people. 

Hesse Rural Health Service (Hesse) is a public hospital operating under the Health Services Act 
1988 and relevant amendments, and is governed by a Board of Directors appointed by the Governor 
in Council by the recommendation of the Victorian State Minister for Health. 

As an innovative rural health service, Hesse provides acute, aged and community based services 
across parts of the municipalities of Colac Otway, Golden Plains and the Surf Coast. Hesse 
partners with the Winchelsea Hostel and Nursing Home Society Inc., a not-for-profit entity 
and Commonwealth Residential Aged Care Service  (RACS) provider, whose charter it is to plan, 
provide and develop appropriate services for the local community.

Mission

Hesse is dedicated to providing and facilitating access to best practice health, aged and community 
based services that strive for rural wellbeing.

INCLUSIVENESS
Welcoming everyone

INTEGRITY
Accountable, transparent practice

EXCELLENCE
Committed to being the best we can

CREATIVITY
Leading into the future

PERSON CENTREDNESS
Finding what’s important to the individual

WHO ARE WE?

Our Annual Report is internally produced and designed, and reflects real stories provided by our 
staff, consumers and their families. The Report aims to inform Government, interested stakeholders 
and members of the public about the range and quality of our services and Hesse Rural Health’s 
financial performance over the year.
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To access Hesse’s broad range of
services contact Administration:

Phone:    (03) 5267 1200
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The 2020 year was certainly 
unprecedented. For the 

Board our year commenced 
with earnest steps to renew the 
strategy to guide Hesse Rural 
Health into the future. No-one 
expected that a world impacting 
public health crisis would de-
rail these plans. Pandemics, we 
thought, were for eras past but 
we have all learnt much over 
the past few months. Importantly 
together we have rallied our 
resources to keep our valued 
staff, clients and residents safe 
from the virus.

At the outset of the pandemic a 
local incident management team 
guided and led our response 
to the rapid changes caused by 
virus exposures throughout the 
community. We were guided 
by State and Commonwealth 
government departments and 
peak bodies. Excellent support 
has been received from the 
Barwon South West regional 
cluster led by Barwon Health. 
Thank you to all our regional 
health service colleagues.

Whilst much of our community 
nursing, home care and 
residential aged care service 
delivery output has been 
unaffected from the impact of 
the COVID 19, community group 
programs were temporarily 
discontinued with a changed 
focus on individual support 
for positive outcomes that you 
will read about throughout this 
report. 

Staff were redeployed to 
support residents impacted by 

decreased visitor contacts. 
Infection control measures 
have understandably been 
a focus along with improved 
access to Personal Protective 
Equipment (PPE). To provide a 
safe environment for potential 
positive COVID 19 cases, 
building works commenced 
in acute bedrooms with the 
installation of hand wash 
stations and vinyl floor 
coverings. 

Workforce commitment to 
learning new procedures, 
altered systems of work, leave 
cancellation and proactive 
response to virus testing 
has been outstanding when 
personal lives of staff have 
also been disrupted due to 
the State of Emergency. Board 
communication was increased 
with weekly updates from the 
Chair to provide assurance 
of measures undertaken. 
Importantly, to the end of June 
2020 there were no positive 
cases of COVID 19 identified 
among residents, workers or 
visitors to Hesse.  

Earlier, we navigated another 
threat; a cyber security ‘code 
yellow’ event was experienced 
across and beyond the Barwon 
South West regional health 
services impacting the entire 
SWARH Information Technology 
network. This incident caused 
the temporary shutdown of 
various computer systems 
across the network. The Cyber 
Investigation Team provided 
a detailed analysis of likely 
cause of the breach and a 

recovery plan. All systems 
became operational and high 
level security measures were 
established across the region. 

The Executive and 
Administration staff are to be 
commended for their ability to 
find alternate means of storing 
and sharing data, minimising staff 
impact and ensuring client and 
resident information was intact.

We were saddened by the 
passing of Sue Dodds, Chair 
of the Consumer & Community 
Advisory Committee after a 
short illness. Her contribution 
and leadership in consumer 
engagement was extraordinary 
and she will be sorely missed. 

Annie Coles resigned after an 
eighteen year tenure covering 
many roles, most recently 
Director of Care. Annie had 
a dedicated client focus and 
contributed enormously to 
our outstanding quality and 
accreditation achievements. 
We wish her well into the future. 
Thank you to Shirley Koch, 
Senior Registered Nurse for 
acting in the interim role whilst a 
replacement was sought.

In October we welcomed 
Margie McLeod as newly 
titled Director of Clinical 
Services. Margie brings skills 
and experience in clinical and 
critical care, emergency nursing 
and project management which 
will assist to steer Hesse in new 
ways forward.   

Along with Peter Birkett, I 

was honoured to separately 
tour the new Member for 
Corangamite, Ms Libby Coker, 
and the Victorian Minister 
for Health, Jenny Mikakos, 
across our hospital and aged 
care facilities. These were 
opportunities to showcase our 
various achievements including 
our internationally recognised 
dementia environment, 
ongoing research partnership 
with La Trobe University and 
refurbishment plans within 
residential aged care. The Surf 
Coast Shire has finalised the 
approval process allowing the 
transfer of 53 Hesse Street, the 
site of our very successful Social 
Support Program in Winchelsea 
(ADASS) to Hesse Rural Health 
at an agreed price of $380,000. 
An unsuccessful request was 
made for state funding to 
facilitate the purchase.

Due to continual low service 
demand in the area the Board 
regretfully decided not to 
renew the lease on the Moriac 
Community Health building. 
The Moriac premises had been 
a joint initiative with the local 
Winchelsea Branch of the 
Bendigo Community Bank. We 
now look to other population 
growth areas within the 
catchment, such as Bannockburn 
and Meredith to secure a further 
base for efficiencies in service 
delivery.

We have been closely 
monitoring the deliberations 
of the Commonwealth Royal 
Commission into Aged Care 
Quality and Safety and noted 
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Kathy Taylor
Chair

the Interim Report ‘Neglect’ 
highlighted the role Boards play 
in providing ‘fit for purpose’ 
services and care for residents 
of aged care facilities. Effective 
systems of management, 
transparency, and clinical 
reporting were also mentioned 
as sector vulnerabilities. Hesse 
proudly contributed to a 
Barwon South West submission 
to the Commission highlighting 
strengths of regional public 
sector residential aged care 
services. While our strongly 
held commitment to person 
centred care keeps Hesse firmly 
focussed on respectful, dignified 
and high quality service 
delivery, we wait to enact the 
recommendations not already in 
current practice. I am confident 
we are capable of further agility 
within any changing landscape. 

In October the Board chose 
Michael Goldsworthy of 
Australian Strategic Services 
to share his knowledge of the 
‘bigger picture’ for residential 
and home based aged care 
into the future. Considerate 
of emerging market channels, 
revenue streams, environmental, 
social and economic factors, this 
session provided an important 
foundation for a pre-strategic 
planning service review later in 
2020. The aim was to establish 
a point of difference from 
other service providers and 
ensure sustainability of our 
organisation into the future. 
This will intersect well with 
the Barwon sub-region health 
service locality planning 
currently underway.

The development of a Master 
Plan for our Gosney Street 
precinct has progressed 
significantly with strong Board 
involvement under the guidance 
of the Buildings and Environment 
Sub Committee. Architect Alan 
Kong has commenced schematic 
and detailed plans to expand 
our residential aged care 
footprint to enable our future 
organisational sustainability. 

This year we achieved a pre-
depreciation financial surplus of 
$311,910. Residential aged care 
occupancy averaged in excess 
of 97% and we have met service 
activity targets in community 
services and continued growth 
occurred within the home care 
package program. In another 
service growth opportunity 
we have agreed to commence 
the delivery of an increased 
range of Commonwealth Home 
Support Services currently 
undertaken by the Surf Coast 
Shire. 

The Board trialled a 
change to the frequency of 
Main Committee Director 
meetings from one to two 
monthly to allow more time 
to operationalise decisions 
and allow the focus on Sub 
Committees. This has been 
positively received and will be 
reviewed in the coming year. 

New Board Director Sue 
Bottrell filled a skills gap 
with legal qualifications and 
experience. Unfortunately Sue’s 
external commitments rendered 

her unable to continue her 
Directorship with Hesse. Board 
terms concluded for Alice 
Bennett, Therese O’Loughlin, 
Michelle Stocks and myself. We 
have all been reappointed by 
the Minister for a further three 
year term. 

Thank you to all Board 
Directors for their attendance, 
pre-reading of Board papers 
and involvement in meeting 
discussion and decisions 
throughout the year. This takes a 
significant level of commitment 
for which I am most grateful. 

During this challenging year 
for all, but in particular for the 
health and aged care sector, 
I wish to acknowledge the 
hard work, dedication and 
professionalism of all staff and 
volunteers. Everyone in our 
small community organisation 
plays an important role. 
Residents, their families, visitors, 
external contractors and 
emergency service personnel 
have also supported us by 
adhering to restrictions 
to protect the health and 
wellbeing of our valued 
patients, residents and staff.

In conclusion, on behalf of 
the Board of Directors I save 
my final thanks to our long 
standing CEO Peter Birkett 
for his continued and selfless 
contributions over the past 
26 years to form and develop 
Hesse Rural Health into what 
it is today. Peter has been 
successful in securing a new 
role in 2020 and we will feel 

his loss immensely. Hesse has 
received recognition across the 
globe for the innovations and 
initiatives Peter has led in aged 
care, particularly over the last 
fifteen years. His knowledge, 
leadership and creativity has 
been truly inspirational. He 
has made a lasting difference 
and we wish him fulfilment in his 
future career.

Looking forward the Board will 
finalise the strategic planning 
process and work with the CEO 
and Executive to review and 
better promote our existing 
services to meet the changing 
needs of our consumers and 
communities we serve. 

I extend to you an open 
invitation to participate in that 
with us.

F ROM T HE CHAIR
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Having made the difficult 
decision to leave Hesse 

Rural Health after 26 years as 
CEO, I felt that my final report 
should offer some broader 
reflections beyond 2020. Please 
allow me this indulgence.

Working with community has 
many rewards and when the 
decision to leave becomes 
a reality, memories seem to 
spontaneously flow. These 
memories are not simply of the 
various exciting initiatives over 
the years, but also the energy 
and gratitude of the people 
who have shared the journey. 

Hesse Rural Health will always 
be the pride of my professional 
life. Our hallmark achievements 
and valued connection with 
community are well recognised 
and have been influential across 
the sector. 

I am proud to have made a 
lasting contribution; lifting 
services from a point of closure, 
establishing contemporary 
care delivery, creating new 
infrastructure, sustaining 
employment, engaging with the 
academic sector for research 
and placing a small rural health 
service on the national and 
world stage. 

In 1994, during an era of major 
Victorian fiscal reform, a 
community led board envisaged 
that an amalgamation of 
Beeac and District Hospital, 
Leigh Community Care and 
Winchelsea and District 
Hospital could sustain health 
and aged care services within 
a scattered rural catchment. An 

ambitious Hesse Rural Health 
partnered with the Winchelsea 
Hostel and Nursing Home 
Society (Chelsea Lodge) Inc. 
and from this great things were 
born. 

Immediately following 
amalgamation, the buildings at 
Winchelsea were expanded in 
1995 to accommodate further 
high level aged care beds. 
Additional beds were funded 
and built by the local Hesse-
Chelsea Lodge partnership 
when existing residents were 
offered the opportunity to 
relocate from Birregurra in 
1997. To meet further demand, 
aged care bed licenses were 
acquired and built by Hesse 
in 2003. In 2009 the Werruna 
centre for memory loss and 
confusion was designed and 
constructed, once again, 
through the Hesse-Chelsea 
Lodge partnership, taking the 
total number of aged residential 
places to 56. 

The health service land 
footprint in Gosney Street 
increased five-fold in 
anticipation of population 
expansion. Infrastructure and 
primary care services have 
been sustained at the smaller 
Rokewood and Beeac sites 
and a further amalgamation 
occurred with the Winchelsea 
Social Development Committee 
(ADASS) in 2003. An additional 
site was trialled at Moriac 
through a business arrangement 
with the Winchelsea Bendigo 
Bank, a focus was placed on 
Bannockburn with a rapidly 
growing demand for services 
and the Home Care program 

now supports almost fifty 
clients to live well and safely 
at home. Later this year we will 
deliver an expanded range of 
Commonwealth funded Home 
Support services.

Key to these developments has 
always been the community 
through its preparedness for 
financial contribution or in kind 
donation. In 2003 individual 
contributions accounted for 
every household in Winchelsea. 
More recently the Hospital 
Auxiliary through the op-shop 
venture has enabled equipment 
purchase, land acquisition and 
building works.    

Throughout this time the 
brief from all the Boards 
that I served was not just to 
develop sustainable services 
but to ensure accountable 
quality care was available 
to our local communities. 
This vision has enabled us 
to reach immense heights of 
quality. We have received 
multiple commendations for 
standards continuously met over 
the 25 years demonstrating 
staff capacity and consumer 
engagement. Striving for 
quality influenced the Werruna 
dementia development, led us 
to understand the impact of 
environment on people with 
this disease and linked us with 
international research into 
person centred care.   

Hesse has been fortunate to 
be led by many extraordinary 
staff with a commitment to a 
culture of care and compassion 
that is to be admired. It has 
been rewarding to receive 

Peter Birkett
Chief Executive

F ROM T HE CEO
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many sincere compliments from 
consumers and the public about 
our standards of care. You will 
see this reflected throughout this 
report. 

I came to Hesse seeking to 
understand healthcare in small 
rural communities. In the search 
I discovered so much more. The 
health service is an essential 
component in the fabric of rural 
life and there is also amazing 
energy, ownership and gratitude 
created by rural people when 
they are connected.   

The story of Hesse will always 
be unique. From challenging 
beginnings, it was true to its 
vision, sought the prize of best 
practice and found it only 
because it also discovered 
commitment and great people. 

It has and always will be a 
privilege.   
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July
Healthy Eating in Rokewood

July Winter Harvest event 
supports healthy food choices 
at Rokewood Community Health 
Centre

August
Fire Panel Upgrade

New fire panel is installed 
at Hospital and Aged Care 
facilities

August
Member of Parliament Visit

Libby Coker MP, new member 
for Corangamite, toured 
Hospital and Aged Care 
facilities

October
Strategic Directions

Board commence renewal of 
strategic directions through 
education in October by 
Australian Strategic Services, 
focusing on aged care service 
development opportunities

October
Director of Clinical Services

Hesse welcomes Margie 
McLeod, Director of Clinical 
Services

December
Minister for Health

State Minister for Health Jenny 
Mikakos visits Hesse Rural 
Health in December 2019

December
Twilight Community Fete

Winchelsea Social Support 
Program hosts December 
Twilight Community Fete, raising 
$3,300

December
Architect Engaged

Buildings and Environment Board 
Sub Committee engage Allen 
Kong Architects for the creation 
of a Master Plan for the aged 
care precinct

KEY EVENTS

February
Visit from International Professor 

Professor John Zeisel, US based 
sociologist and international 
dementia expert visits and 
portrays importance of art for 
meaningful engagement

May
Approval for New Services

Commonwealth Department 
of Health approves Hesse to 
provide Commonwealth Home 
Support Services to Surf Coast 
Shire residents in Surf Coast 
West 

May
Journal Publication

Co-authorship with University of 
Umea and La Trobe University 
of Supporting lives lived whilst 
protecting lives saved during 
COVID 19: The relational 
invariant in person-centred 
care, published in the May 2020 
edition of the Nordic Journal of 
Nursing Research 

May
Overcoming Loneliness

Hesse hosts four Deakin 
University occupational therapy 
students to develop programs 
addressing issues of loneliness in 
older persons

June
Approval for Sale

Surf Coast Shire approves sale 
of 53 Hesse Street premises to 
Hesse Rural Health to ensure 
continued provision of the 
Social Support Programs

June
Home Care Program Growth

Expansion of Home Care 
Program by 63%, servicing 44 
older persons to live well at 
home

June
Departure of Chief Executive

Peter Birkett, inaugural Hesse 
Rural Health Chief Executive 
Officer, announces his departure 
after 26 years 
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MEMBER OF PARLIAMENT VISIT
Libby Coker MP, new member for Corangamite, 
toured Hospital and Aged Care facilities

STRATEGIC REVIEW
Board commence planning for renewal of 
strategic directions through education by 
Australian Strategic Services focusing on aged 
care service development opportunities
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 CLINICAL GOVERNANCE & ET HICS
Naida Hutton (Chair), Peter Nemtsas, Therese O’Loughlin, Michelle Stocks, Linda Wong

The Clinical Governance 
and Ethics (CGE) Committee 
has oversight of the Clinical 
Standards across our program 
areas. The Committee 
consists of the Executive, the 
Quality Leadership Team, 
District Director of Medical 
Administration (DDMA), a 
Consumer Representative 
and five Board Directors.  
The mandate is to review 
indicators of clinical quality 
care, both prescribed and 
locally established, encourage 
evidence based practice 
initiatives, assure compliance 
obligations are fulfilled and 
promote personalised and 
ethical care.  

Benchmarking against 
comparable organisations 
provides markers for 

improvement. A recent initiative, 
with DDMA involvement, has 
been to review predicted and 
unpredicted deaths within 
the residential aged care 
service. This scrutiny provides 
assurance that care to patients 
and residents complies with 
standards and evidence-based 
care along the admission 
trajectory. 

The pandemic has increased the 
challenges faced by the aged 
care sector which is already 
spotlighted as a result of the 
Royal Commission into Aged 
Care Quality and Safety. While 
the interim findings show broad 
cause for concern, Hesse Rural 
Health continues its strong 
focus on quality and safety and 
maintains full accreditation 

across all programs. We look 
forward to the Commission’s 
final report as it will assist us 
to identify any gaps as we 
continually seek to improve all 
aspects of our service.

2020 will be remembered for 
the extraordinary challenges 
that were faced by the world 
as a result of the global 
pandemic COVID 19. Regulatory 
directions changed frequently 
and agility in responses was 
essential.

Hesse Rural Health has 
responded rapidly and 
appropriately to these 
challenges to mitigate risk 
to our clients, residents and 
staff. Pandemic plans, outbreak 

procedures, visitor restrictions, 
physical distancing and 
personal protective equipment 
were discussed by the CGE 
Committee. Additional contacts 
have been made with resident’s 
families and community based 
clients unable to continue usual 
group programs. The feedback 
on these initiatives has been 
very positive.

All staff are to be highly 
commended on their response 
to the increased stress and 
workload that this virus has 
posed.  

Naida Hutton
Chair, Clinical Governance & 
Ethics Committee

 F INANCE RESOURCES & AUDIT
Max Arnott (Chair), Alice Bennett, Mikel Dean, John Sutherland

Last year’s plans for asset 
acquisition have progressed as 
we move a step closer to the 
purchase of 53 Hesse Street 
from the Surf Coast Shire, the 
site of our Winchelsea based 
Social Support Program. 
This purchase will also assist 
in forming a base for our 
expanding Home Care Package 
and Commonwealth Home 
Support Program. Both are 
valuable steps in the longer 
term financial sustainability 
of the organisation. Discrete 
funding to support this would be 
extremely helpful. We posed a 
funding request to the Minister 
for Health during her visit in 
December but state funds were 
not able to be spared.

Despite the many challenges, 
including a global pandemic, 
Hesse achieved an operating 
surplus of $311,910. This money 
combined with community 
support allows us to deliver 
on our strategic plans. An 
impressive $60,000 in savings 
resulted from the 2018 transition 
to natural gas with full cost 
recovery achieved of Hesse’s 
$95,000 contribution to the 
initial Victorian Building 
Authority grant.

Ministers, governments and 
departments are supportive 
of Hesse with ongoing funding 
of services, assisting us in 
achieving our various service 

obligations. They look to us to 
be responsible with the assets 
we have and with the revenue 
provided to us. Our end of year 
result is an indication of our 
diligence.

I would like to acknowledge 
the work done by the staff 
and Executive led by Peter. 
Thank you to Stephen Wight of 
Davidson’s for his accountancy 
and to the Committee members 
for the time taken to read, 
interpret and discuss the monthly 
reports at meetings. It is only by 
everyone working together that 
we can achieve this result.

You will find the detailed 
financial outcome for the year 
2020 within this annual report.
It is with pleasure that I 
commend the report to you.

Max Arnott
Chair, Finance & Audit 
Committee

72020 Annual Report  

GOVERNANCE COMMIT T EES



GOVERNANCE COMMIT T EES

 BUILDINGS & ENVIRONMENT

The major focus of the Building 
& Environment Committee 
throughout the year has been 
the development of Hesse Rural 
Health’s aged care precinct 
master plan. This master plan 
encompasses the Winchelsea 
8 Gosney Street and adjacent 
titles. 

The design objectives of the 
master plan are intended to 
align with the organisational 
Mission Statement …. to 
provide and facilitate access to 
best practice health, aged and 
community-based services that 
strive for rural wellbeing. The 
design, led by Architect Allen 
Kong will integrate principles 

of ecological responsibility, 
generate a sustainable 
architecture and be flexible to 
adapt to alternative purposes.

The master plan has a long-
term vision, is subject to 
changes wherever necessary 
and contains a series of 
manageable and discrete 
projects. The immediate need 
is to upgrade the Chelsea 
Lodge facilities and meet 
accommodation preferences of 
prospective residents, and also 
to more effectively integrate 
administration offices. A design 
and a business case has been 

presented to the Board for 
approval. Work on this project 
should be completed over the 
next twelve months.

The anticipated outcomes are:
•	 Commissioning of two 

additional aged care beds
•	 Improved resident dining 

and activity areas
•	 Greater access to the 

outdoor environment for 
residents, visitors and staff 

•	 Contemporary and 
functional staff office 
areas

•	 Improved consumer and 
community engagement

I would like to thank the 
Committee members and 
management for their 
contribution and support 
throughout the year and look 
forward to these projects that 
will produce benefits to Hesse 
Rural Health into the future.

John Sutherland
Chair, Buildings and 
Environment 
Sub-Committee

John Sutherland (Chair), Mikel Dean, Naida Hutton, Peter Nemtsas, Therese O’Loughlin, Linda Wong

 MARKET ING & FUNDRAISING
Kathy Taylor (Chair), Michelle Stocks, Alice Bennett

In keeping up with the 
population growth within 
significant parts of our 
catchment area, Hesse must 
also continue to grow. As a 
newly developed Committee 
the approved Terms of 
Reference forge a strong 
alliance with the Finance, 
Audit & Resources Committee 
to provide the foundational 
strategy for future fundraising 
projects.

Philanthropic opportunities 
will be a strong area of focus 
to complement master plan 
projects. Communication via 

print, website and electronic 
media of the organisational 
services is paramount in 
keeping our rural communities 
connected and informed.  

As we work to identify best 
advertising channels which 
align with our strategic plan, 
it is important to acknowledge 
that the pinnacle of our 
marketing and promotion to 
date has been the document 
you are now reading; our 
Annual Report. It tells the story 
of who we are, what we do, 

how we change and how this 
benefits our consumers and 
communities. 

Over the years our Annual 
Report has been commended 
by external reviewers, 
academics, government 
representatives and other 
stakeholders. Through narrative 
and photography, the report 
continually highlights the high 
standard of care, professional 
expertise of our staff & 
volunteers and the confidence 
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and support of the communities 
& families we serve. It is an 
important annual production 
that provides us with 
opportunities to proudly reflect 
on our achievements. Naturally 
this markets and promotes our 
service perfectly.

Michelle Stocks
Vice Chair, Marketing & 
Fundraising
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Services provided will be available 
throughout the lifespan, based upon 
evidence of needs with clear and 
accessible pathways facilitating 
effective links to the services 
consumers require.

Accessible 
and Relevant 

Health Services 
Throughout the 

Lifespan

Collaboration, shared skills and 
the formation of strategic alliances 
with compatible organisations 
and stakeholders are required for 
the organisation to be efficient, 
effective and successful.

Partnering for 
Success

Investing in employees and the 
volunteer workforce will ensure 
they remain skilled, satisfied and 
meaningfully engaged to deliver 
effective services, and enable 
the organisation to remain a 
respected employer of choice.

A Skilled and 
Engaged

Workforce

Hesse is responsive to the 
changing community profile and 
demand for services, considering 
immediate, short and long term 
needs for infrastructure, growth 
and development.

Infrastructure 
Growth and 
Development

Incorporating health promotion, 
prevention and early intervention 
concepts, standards and values 
into health service delivery will 
benefit consumers, our staff and 
the broader community.

Integrating

Health &

Wellbeing

Hesse will build upon a culture 
of safety, quality and continuous 
improvement in the drive 
for service excellence and 
innovation. 

Achieving 
Excellence and 

Innovation

To be a relevant health service to 
our catchment communities, Hesse 
will ensure that the public are 
aware of what the organisation 
can offer.

Effective Service 
Promotion

Hesse respects the important role 
it plays for our rural community, 
and individuals residing within 
it, to facilitate effective 
participation.

Our Community
is the Key

Financial practices and strategies 
will be based upon sound, ethical 
and innovative business principles 
to ensure future viability.

A Sustainable 
Business Culture



Financial Accounting
Chief Executive Officer

Board of Directors

Manager
Community Services

Director of
Clinical Services

Program Areas

•	 Residential Aged Care

•	 Urgent Care

•	 Inpatient Acute

•	 Dementia 

•	 Palliative 

•	 Respite

Quality

Coordinator

Social Support Groups

Community Services

Coordinator

Manager Acute & 

Residential Aged Care

Volunteers

Specialist Portfolios

•	 Infection Control

•	 Smart Lift

•	 Continence

•	 Nurse Education

General Services

•	 Environmental

•	 Catering

•	 Maintenance

•	 Gardening

ACFI Coordination

Volunteers

Leisure and Lifestyle

Community Nursing

•	 Hospital in the Home

•	 Post Acute Care

•	 District Nursing

•	 Domiciliary Midwifery

Visiting Medical 

Officers

District Director 
Medical Administration

ORGANISAT IONAL
ST RUCT URE

Josie Gebert 
RM, RN, MACN

Margie McLeod
RN, BN, Certcritcare, MPH

Stephen Wight (Davidsons)
BCom, CA, GAICDDr Didir Imran 

MBBS, MHlthServMt

Peter Birkett 
MBA, BCom, RM, RN,  

MCHSM, MAICD
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•	 Consumer Engagement

•	 Human Resources

•	 Service Projects

•	 Contracts & Property

•	 Complaints Management

•	 Service Promotion

•	 Governance Support

•	 Reception

•	 Payroll

•	 Accounts

•	 Health Information    
Management

•	 Information Technology

Infrastructure

•	 Aged Care Business Systems

•	 Management Accounting

Children’s Services

•	 Occasional Child Care

•	 Facilitated Play Program

Home Care Packages

Health Promotion

Allied Health

•	 Dietetics

•	 Physiotherapy

•	 Occupational Therapy

•	 Diabetes Education

Administration

Manager Workforce
& Service Development

Andrea Dunlop
MHlthSc, GDipHlthSc, BAppSc (OT), 

MCHSM, ARI

2020 Annual Report  11



A YEAR IN REVIEW

QUALITY SNAPSHOTS

WORKFORCE SNAPSHOTS

13  Residents Adapt to
        Remote Consultations

14  Two Key Visitors

16  Helping Older People to
        Live Well at Home

19  Transition into Care

21  Partnerships Enabling   
        Person Centred Care

22  Winter Harvest at 
        Rokewood

24  Using Technology to Reach 
         Out to Rural Pre-Schoolers

39  Opportunities & Losses 

41  Consumer Engagement &
        Partnerships

42  Collective Celebrations
        for our Residents

46  Volunteers Helping 
        Services to Keep Focus on 
        Consumers

27  Art for Engagement

28  Improvements in Catering
            Services

31  Lifting Community Spirits

32  Maintaining Person
        Centredness During a 
       Pandemic

34  Pampering & Pain 
        Management

37  Four Ways to Bowl Over
         Loneliness

40  Consumer Experience,
        Feedback & Suggestions

47  Medication Safety

47  Communication for
        Safety

48  End of Life Care 

48  Quality Indicators

17  Clinical Incidents &
        Review

18  Quality Accreditation

18  Dignity of Risk

21  Diversity & Inclusion

23  Maintaining Skills in
        Understanding the 
        Dementia Condition

23  Information Systems

25  Ongoing Commitment 
       to the Prevention of
       Family Violence

15  Governance, Leadership 
        & Workplace Culture

20  Training & Growth

33  Occupational Health
        & Safety

38  Improving Staff Health 
        & Wellbeing

44  Workforce 
        Communication

44  Collective Celebrations 

25  Environment &
        Infrastructure

26  Infection Prevention

29  Nurses Providing Urgent
        Healthcare Response

30  Falls Management

35  Preventing Skin Injuries

35  Continence Care

36  Clinical & Quality 
        Governance
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RESIDENTS ADAPT TO
REMOT E CONSULTAT IONS
Ensuring a person has an 

understanding of their own 
health and medical treatment 
needs should continue right 
throughout the lifespan. Sonia 
Kaur has made this her goal 
since she was first recruited 
into the role of Acute and 
Residential Care Manager in 
2019. An important focus has 
been on the relationships she 
has fostered with local General 
Practitioners (GPs) and resident 
families. 

GPs play an important role in 
supporting the medical and 
health needs of aged residents 
in care. As a rural township 
Winchelsea is fortunate to 
have a good supply of GPs now 
operating from new premises at 
36 Main Street, only a stone’s 
throw from Hesse residential 
facilities. Three GPs, Doctors 

Bonnie Morrison, Sinead Evans-
Healey and Wai Kit Yue share 
attendance on a twice weekly 
basis to undertake regular 
resident medical reviews. 
The increased frequency and 
consistency of medical review 
have delivered improved health 
related outcomes. 

However, the COVID 19 
pandemic has necessitated 
changes to the consultation 
process. To decrease chances 
of virus exposure the GPs now, 
wherever possible, conduct 
their consultations remotely 
via online platforms. Sonia 
explains that she remains with 
the resident in their bedroom to 
facilitate the conversation with 
the GP at another location.  

‘I have been impressed at how 
the residents have adapted to 

the new online arrangements, it 
seems it has provided a greater 
sense of occasion to their 
regular appointments’, Sonia 
says. 

When there have been changes 
to prescribed treatment, with 
resident consent, family or 
nominated representatives are 
contacted. Sonia remarks this 
has translated into increased 
family involvement in other 
aspects of care and greater 
interactions between staff and 
family. It also helps to reassure 
families about standards of care 
being delivered. 

Engagement with families is 
critical to help us to tailor care 
to personal wishes. Such small 
changes to practice can make 
enormous differences. 



Hesse Rural Health was 
fortunate to have two 

occasions during the year to 
showcase our health service 
to federal and state politicians 
with relevant jurisdiction and 
representation. Such events 
are always welcomed as an 
opportunity to advocate for the 
communities we serve and for 
broader health and aged care 
system reform. 

The newly elected Member 
for Corangamite, Libby Coker 
visited Hesse in August just prior 
to delivering her maiden speech 
in the Federal Parliament. With 
the Royal Commission into Aged 
Care in progress she explained 
she was proud to have examples 
of high achieving services 
like Hesse Rural Health in her 
electorate, when the prevailing 
narrative has been negative.

The Chief Executive Officer and 
Board Directors led Ms Coker 
on a site tour and discussed 

planned capital improvements 
for the Chelsea Lodge site, 
financial barriers for service 
expansion, the acquisition of the 
Commonwealth Home Support 
Program from local government 
and Hesse CEO participation 
at national level in the external 
review of the (formerly titled) 
Australian Aged Care Quality 
Agency. 

The State Minister for Health, 
Jenny Mikakos, visited in 
December following the official 
opening of the Winchelsea 
Ambulance Station. Led by 
Board Chair, Kathy Taylor, 
the Minister heard of our 
achievements as a small rural 
health service and provider of 
public sector residential aged 
care services in international 
person centred care research, 
dementia care and service 
expansion of the home care 
program. Possibilities for 
financial assistance from state 
government to enable the 

T WO KEY
VISITORS

acquisition of 53 Hesse Street, 
the site of our successful 
social support program, were 
explored. The Minister was 
interested to hear about the 
fete and the monies raised by 
the clients.

Minister Mikakos took great 
delight in meeting resident Keith 
Henderson and heard about 
the extraordinary contribution 
of his wife Lynette as Former 
Hospital Auxiliary President 
in the establishment of the Op 
Shop. The Minister was most 
complimentary of our impressive 
internal residential environment 
and flourishing external 
gardens.

Connections with community are 
the essence of democracy for 
politicians and it was a privilege 
to be able to participate and 
share essential information 
to facilitate their effective 
governance at whole of 
population level. 
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GOVERNANCE, 
LEADERSHIP & 
WORKPLACE 
CULT URE

As a public sector 
organisation Hesse 

employees are invited to 
participate in the Victorian 
Public Sector Commission 
(VPSC) annual People 
Matter Survey to measure 
employee perception of 
workplace climate. Results 
are benchmarked against 40 
comparable services. The 
response rate in the 2019 online 
survey was 51%, up from 50% in 
the prior year. 

Survey outcomes showed 
that Hesse employees rated 
higher levels of ‘engagement’, 

Organisational Culture DHHS 
Target Actual

Percentage of staff with an 
overall positive response to 
safety and culture questions.

80% 94%

Responses to individual questions:

‘I am encouraged by my colleagues 
to report any patient safety 
concerns I may have.’

80% 100%

‘Patient care errors are handled 
appropriately in my work area.’ 80% 96%

‘My suggestions about patient 
safety would be acted upon if I 
expressed them to my manager.’

80% 90%

‘The culture in my work area makes it 
easy to learn from the errors of others.’ 80% 94%

‘Management is driving us to be a 
safety-centred organisation.’ 80% 96%

‘This health service does a good job 
of training new and existing staff.’ 80% 90%

‘Trainees in my discipline are 
adequately supervised.’ 80% 95%

‘I would recommend a friend or relative 
to be treated as a patient here.’ 80% 92%

WORKFORCE
SNAPSHOT

2020 Annual Report  15

‘work satisfaction’, ‘innovative 
behavior’, ‘job related well-
being’ and ‘intention to stay’ 
than comparable services. 
High to severe levels of work 
related stress were recorded 
by 12% of employees. 

Leave management and support 
from managers to adhere to 
shift finishing times has been 
a focus. Increased promotion 
and utilisation of the Employee 
Assistance Program has also 
occurred. 



HELPING OLDER 
PEOPLE TO LIVE 
WELL AT HOME
Research conducted for 

the Royal Commission into 
Aged Care Quality and Safety 
this year shows that 80% of 
older Australians want to remain 
living in their current home and 
62% want to receive home 
based care and services as 
they age. Changing community 
expectations from living within 
residential aged care is well 
understood by Hesse’s Board of 
Directors and is consistent with 
the current strategy to provide 
increased home based services 
throughout our catchment 
communities. 

This objective remained on 
target this year with a 63% 
increase in service provision. 
The total number of packages 
managed by Hesse’s Home Care 
Team reached 44 by year end. 
Increases were seen across all 
package levels, however most 
significantly almost one quarter 
of packages serviced by Hesse 
are Level 4, assisting older 
people with high level care 
needs. There is an even spread 
between consumers who live 
within Golden Plains Shire and 
Surf Coast Shire postcodes.

The program growth 
required alternative office 
accommodation for the Home 
Care Team who moved from 
a portable building adjacent 
to the aged care facilities in 
Gosney Street, Winchelsea to 
shared amenities with the Social 
Support Program (Winchelsea 
ADASS) at 53 Hesse Street. 
Program Coordinator Fiona 
Vizard, recognised many 
benefits with moving premises. 

‘The move allowed us to more 
effectively promote Home 
Care Packages to people 
already attending the centre 
based Social Support Program 
and many were unaware they 
were eligible to register with 
My Aged Care for further 
assistance.’ Hesse is in the 
process of purchasing the 
premises at 53 Hesse Street 
from the Surf Coast Shire.

The Home Care Program 
has also engaged two 
case managers to plan and 
coordinate the services 
requested by consumers, 
transitioned care workers 
from casual to permanent 
part time and expanded the 
vehicle fleet. Whilst home 
cleaning and assistance 
with personal care are most 
commonly sought, packages 
allow consumers to purchase 
other products and services 
to support their independence 
and wellbeing. Supports range 
from assistive devices and 
mobility aids, transportation 
and home maintenance 
services to complete bathroom 
modifications. Annual subsidies, 
depending on assessed care 
need levels, range between 
$8,845 and $51,335, with annual 
unspent funds available for 
rollover.
 
Research shows that older 
people who can live 
independently enjoy healthier, 
happier, more active and 
satisfying lives. Hesse is proud 
to be able to play an important 
role in that. 
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CLINICAL INCIDENTS 
& REVIEW

C linical incident reporting 
and the systematic 

evaluation of this data assists us 
to improve clinical practice and 
care outcomes. It is an important 
aspect of risk management. A 
clinical incident is defined by the 
Australian Commission on Safety 
and Quality in Healthcare 
as ‘an event or circumstance 
that resulted or could have 
resulted in unintended and/or 
unnecessary harm to a person 
and/or a complaint, loss or 
damage’. 

Reporting occurs to the 
Victorian Hospital Incident 
Management System (VHIMS) 
using Riskman software. If you 
hear staff saying they are ‘doing 
a Riskman’, it means they are 
recording an incident. 

Staff reported a total of 379 
incidents, an 18% increase from 
the prior year, averaging 32 per 
month. The increased reporting 
rates are welcomed and 
provide one measure that staff 
have clear understanding of 

risk and accountabilities. Hesse 
strives for a no-blame culture 
to ensure staff feel comfortable 
to report so matters can be 
addressed. 

There were no incidents rated 
as ‘extreme’ severity. Seven 
were rated as ‘moderate’ and 
the remainder were ‘mild’, 
‘no harm’ or a ‘near miss’. All 
clinical incidents are followed 
up by clinical leaders to ensure 
corrective actions occur.

Multi-disciplinary in-depth case 
reviews are undertaken for 
incidents rated as ‘moderate’ 
to evaluate systemic causation 
and are reported to the Quality 
Leadership, Clinical Review and 
Clinical Governance and Ethics 
Committees with involvement of 
the DDMA. Examples might be 
a fall that results in a fracture, 
a significant unpredicted 
deterioration in physical health 
or serious episode of physical 
aggression. 

A new weekly meeting was 
commenced during 2019 to 
involve more care staff and 
allied health with clinical 
leaders in the review of 
individual clinical incidents. 
Staff state this provides them 
with increased opportunities 
to contribute to corrective 
strategies and have an 
improved understanding of 
incident reporting and review. 

The Quality Leadership Team 
and the Clinical Governance 
and Ethics Committee monitor 
incident trends for systemic 
organisational improvement.

QUALIT Y
SNAPSHOT
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QUALIT Y
ACCREDITAT ION

DIGNIT Y OF RISK

Hesse maintains full 
accreditation with 

required regulatory quality 
frameworks in all program 
areas as outlined in the below 
table. After a busy 2019 no 
external quality site reviews 
occurred during the year. From 
1st July all national aged care 
programs are now subject to 
the single aged care quality 
framework incorporating 
the new Aged Care Quality 
Standards. For Hesse this 
includes Residential Aged 
Care, Home Care Services and 
Commonwealth Home Support 
Services. 

The introduction of the Aged 
Care Quality Standards 
is a significant change in 
understanding quality and 
safety in aged care services, 
putting the consumer’s 
experiences of care in 
the spotlight. There are 
8 overarching standards: 
Consumer Dignity and Choice; 
Ongoing Assessment and 
Planning; Personal and Clinical 
Care; Services and Supports 
for Daily Living; Organisation’s 
Service Environment; Human 

Resources and Organisational 
Governance. Executive staff 
were selected to participate in 
the national reference group 
to develop guidance material 
for aged care providers to 
implement the new quality 
standards.

The new standards encourage 
a stronger focus on care 
in practice and consumer 
outcomes, and require new 
ways of engaging with 
consumers, so conversations 

can lead to more personalised 
approaches. The new 
standards underscore 
providers’ responsibilities 
to identify and mitigate risks 
and simultaneously support 
consumer choices and 
preferences as far as possible 
in key aspects of their daily 
lives. At our next unannounced 
visit from the Aged Care 
Quality & Safety Commission 
the service will be assessed 
against the Aged Care Quality 
Standards. 

QUALIT Y
SNAPSHOT

Regulatory Quality 
Accreditation Framework

Relevant Hesse Program Area
Accreditation 

Date
Achieved Expiry

Home Care Standards
Home Care Packages, Social Support Program, 

District Nursing, Allied Health
Dec 2018

Dec 
2021

National Safety and Quality Health 
Service Standards, Version 2

Acute Inpatient, Urgent Care, Community Nursing, 
Allied Health, and Medical

May 2019
25 June 

2022

Residential Aged Care Standards
Hesse Rural Health Hesse Lodge Nursing Home; 
Winchelsea Hostel & Nursing Home Society Inc.

May 2019
9-10 Aug 

2022

Dignity of Risk – A film by Professor Joseph Ibrahim
The film engages the audience on an emotional level using real life experiences dotted with humour and empathy. The films 
focus lies on a platform of questions – “how do we protect Mr Jones [resident with dementia] without intruding his capacity 

to make personal choices; how do we value a person’s choice, especially when we forsee possible concerns; how do we 
engage with older people during the process of decision making? I really enjoyed exploring this topic.

                                                                                                       Health Care Worker

Aged Care Quality Standards

Central to consumer choice is 
a concept called Dignity of 

Risk. The term is utilised when 
a person with a functional 
decline or disability expresses 
a subjective wish for an action, 
activity or experience that 
enhances their quality of life 
but may be perceived by care 
staff as presenting a risk to their 
health and wellbeing. Hesse 

has developed a Dignity of 
Risk Guideline and provided 
education to staff on this 
important topic. Some staff 
attended a short film hosted 
by Professor Joseph E Ibrahim, 
Monash University, to learn 
more about this. 

Dignity of Risk - Case in Point
A resident with swallowing difficulties was assessed 

by the dietitian as requiring a vitamised diet and 
thickened fluids due to risks of choking. Staff used 

the Dignity of Risk Guideline to support the resident 
in their choice to eat normal foods by undertaking 

a risk assessment, explaining identified risks to 
the resident and their nominated representatives 

in consultation with management and carefully 
documenting final decisions made. 

Annual Report 202018
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Regulatory Quality 
Accreditation Framework

Relevant Hesse Program Area
Accreditation 

Date
Achieved Expiry

Home Care Standards
Home Care Packages, Social Support Program, 

District Nursing, Allied Health
Dec 2018

Dec 
2021

National Safety and Quality Health 
Service Standards, Version 2

Acute Inpatient, Urgent Care, Community Nursing, 
Allied Health, and Medical

May 2019
25 June 

2022

Residential Aged Care Standards
Hesse Rural Health Hesse Lodge Nursing Home; 
Winchelsea Hostel & Nursing Home Society Inc.

May 2019
9-10 Aug 

2022

Q& A WIT H JEAN

T RANSIT ION 
INTO CARE

I have lived here now for over two years. 
A lovely garden surrounding my home in 
Winchelsea has given me comfort and joy all 
my life; my home was always filled with family 
and friends until I became unwell. I slipped so 
quickly from having a wonderful life. 

How long 
have you lived 
here at Hesse ’ s 

residential 
facilities ?

My family were a terrific support and said, ‘it 
will be a good thing for you Mum’. I believed 
I could manage at home but I did not want to 
be a burden on my children. It took me about 
twelve months to adjust and look at things 
differently.

Did you 
find the transition 
to living in care 

difficult ?

I have a beautiful timber trunk with parquetry 
inlay, this is one of my favourites. 

Outside my window I have pots from my 
garden. My bird bath and two small parrots 
are cheerful and comforting when I sit here by 
the window with the sunshine streaming in.

What 
possessions did 

you bring with you 
to make it feel 

more like 
home ?

I was born in Winchelsea and I know almost 
everybody. I’ve always been active with 
individual pursuits like craft, art, reading, 
doing a puzzle, or listening to music. The 
company of others is important to me as well. 
There are plenty of opportunities to join in 
activities and I quite like a game of bingo or 
doing some craft. Walking in the gardens and 
the musical events are always lovely.

Have you 
made some new 
friends since you 

have been 
here ?

It was how good the staff 
were. They made me 
feel very supported and 
welcome. 

What 
was your first 

impression when 
you moved 

in ?

Well, we can’t have visitors 
right now but I’m also feeling 
safer; we all have to make 
sacrifices and I’m pleased to 
know that I’m being cared for 
here and the staff are doing 
their best.

How has 
the COVID 19 

pandemic 
impacted your 

life ?

Learn to relax and accept 
the change, give yourself 
time to settle in.

What advice 
would you give to 

a person considering 
moving into aged 

care ?
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Hesse’s overall workforce 
grew to 140 in 2020 with 

the appointment of two part 
time case managers in the Home 
Care Program and an additional 
Registered Nurse within the 
acute and residential area. 
Further growth is anticipated 
with the commencement of the 
Commonwealth Home Support 
Program. Overall turnover 
was 13% for reasons including 
retirement, ill health, family 
matters, tertiary education 
and relocation. There was no 
shortage of candidates eager 
to work at Hesse and all vacant 
positions were filled.  

Training & Development 
Despite a period of learning 
management system inactivity 
due to the cyber security 
incident, staff completed 
training in 94 separate learning 
programs. The compulsory 
training table was revised 
in 2020 with the inclusion of 
Basic First Aid for Health 
Care Workers and COVID 
19 competencies in the use of 

protective personal equipment. 
Improvement has also occurred 
in reporting of compulsory 
training. Two staff are being 
supported to undertake a 
Certificate III in Commercial 
Cookery and three Health 
Care Workers celebrated their 
achievements in completing a 
Certificate IV in Disability and 
Ageing Support. 

The Charlie McDonald 
Scholarship recipients for 2019 
were: 
•	 Vicky Geary, Registered 

Nurse: Foundations of 
Infection Prevention and 
Control, Australian College 
of Infection Prevention and 
Control

•	 Vikki Cations, Enrolled 
Nurse / Ward Clerk: 
Introduction to Microsoft 
Excel

•	 Matthew Walters, District 
Nurse: World of Wounds 
Comprehensive Program

•	 Cheryl Grundell: Cert IV in 
Bookkeeping/Accounting, 
Swinburne Uni

12

5

6

3

12

2

11

19

4

26

22

22

Health Care Workers:
Home Care Packages

Activities:
Social Support Program

Registered Nurses: 
Community

Maintenance
& Gardening

Administration

Catering and
Domestic Services

Lifestyle Activities: 
Residential Aged Care

Health Care Workers: 
Residential Aged Care

Enrolled Nurses:
Residential Aged Care

Registered Nurses:
Urgent Care, Acute &

Residential Aged Care

Allied Health

Childcare

WORKFORCE
SNAPSHOT
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PART NERSHIPS ENABLING 
PERSON CENT RED CARE

Hesse’s eight year 
partnership with 

researchers at La Trobe 
University has made a valuable 
contribution to evidence 
based practice into person 
centred care across the globe, 
according to Professor David 
Edvardsson who addressed the 
2019 Annual General Meeting. 

The partnership, which 
originally focused on rurality, 
moved to international 
perspectives in dementia 
with co-partner Alzheimer’s 
Disease International and then 
to thriving and person centred 
approaches in residential aged 
care. Professor Edvardsson said 
universities are increasingly 
measured on their level of 
industry engagement and 
innovation and in Hesse 
La Trobe University has 
identified a partner with 
a firm desire to critically 
review practice and engage 
community and staff to improve 
the quality of life for aged 
residents. ‘For such a small 
health service this leadership 
and level of commitment is truly 
inspirational.’ 

He outlined how the recent 
research into ‘person centred 
care’ and ‘thriving’ has made 
an impact on the world stage, 

through collaborations, 
conference presentations 
and research publications, 
listing Hesse in a network 
of international practice 
partners within the We 
Thrive Consortium aiming to 
understand how to standardise 
measurement tools and include 
positive measures into aged 
care. 

Hesse has collected data on 
person centered care and 
thriving from staff, residents 
and families and participated 
in education and training. The 
collaboration with La Trobe 
University has also engaged 
Barwon South West sub 
regional health service partners 
in published evidence on 
person centred care. In 2018 
Hesse presented a poster in 
Oslo for the Nordic Congress 
of Gerontology. Earlier co-
authored papers were also 
presented in Canada, Hungary 
and Puerto Rico. 

‘When I host academics from 
across the globe I always 
recommend Hesse as an 
example of enabling design 
and person centred practice’, 
Professor Edvardsson told 
the AGM audience. Hesse’s 
residential aged services have 
been toured by academics 

from Universities Twente; 
Netherlands, Oslo; Norway; 
and Kristianstadd, Umea, and 
Gothenburg; Sweden. The 
Royal Commission into Aged 
Care has highlighted the critical 
need for research outcomes to 
be implemented into the aged 
care sector. ‘Our partnership 
makes this possible and you 
should be proud that the work 
you have done has made it into 
the international academic 
dialogue’, he said. 

The most recent output from the 
partnership is an article published 
in the May 2020 edition of the 
Nordic Journal of Nursing 
Research entitled, ‘Supporting 
Lives Lived While Protecting Lives 
Saved During COVID 19:The 
Relational Invariant In Person 
Centered Care’.

Embedding baseline measures 
for clinical thriving is the next 
step in the collaborations, 
focusing on the constraints and 
enablers for clinical practice. 

In 2017 Peter Birkett, Chief 
Executive Officer and Andrea 
Dunlop, Manager Workforce 
and Service Development were 
awarded adjunct honorary 
positions at La Trobe University 
for their research partnership 
contributions.

DIVERSIT Y 
& INCLUSION

Promoting diversity ensures 
our services are inclusive to 

all people regardless of their 
cultural, social, gender, religious 
and socioeconomic realities. 
Understanding a person’s needs 
and preferences is critical 
to planning and delivering 
effective services. Hesse has a 
Diversity Plan that focuses on 
the health needs of our rural 
communities. 

Strategies within the Disability 
Action Plan 2019-2022 were 
progressed this year with the 
completion of Reasonable 
Adjustment Policy, preparation 
for the installation of a 
hearing loop in seminar room 
and an accessible events 
checklist.

QUALIT Y
SNAPSHOT
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WINT ER HARVEST AT 
ROKEWOOD

Annual Report 202022

Partnerships across multiple 
social and system levels 

can address barriers and 
provide enablers that support 
healthier choices. During 2019 
Hesse’s Health Promotion team 
partnered with a range of local 
organisations operating within 
the Golden Plains Shire in a 
multi-day Winter Harvest event.

The program was part of the 
Healthier Eating and Active 
Living (HEAL) collaborative 
across the broader G21 
region with participating 
organisations including the 
Meredith Community Centre, 
Integrated Living Ballarat and 
Golden Plains Shire with events 
held across the municipality 
townships of Dereel, Meredith 
and Rokewood.  

Hesse hosted the 2nd July Winter 
Harvest event at the Rokewood 
Community Health Centre in 

Ferrars Street focussing on 
increasing healthy food and 
beverage choices in children’s 
settings. Sessions on the day 
included: Living on the Land 
Children’s Craft Activity, 
Vegetable Gardening, Big Chef 
Little Chef, Creative Vegetable 
Craft and Healthy Eating Tips. 
Hesse’s Diabetes Educator, 
Raelene Alexander and 
Gardener Kate Allen shared 
their expertise.

Over forty people were in 
attendance including children, 
adults and more senior 
members of the Rokewood 
and surrounding communities. 
The hearty vegetable soup at 
lunch time was a great way to 
conclude the event.

Josie Gebert, Manager 
Community Services said 
‘rural towns often face supply 
barriers for fresh fruit and 
vegetables so events like this 
really engage people to see 
the personal changes they can 
make for better health’. 

The key focus areas of the 
HEAL priority also align with 
Hesse’s own Health Promotion 
Plan and aims to increase 
vegetable consumption, 
decrease the consumption of 
sugar sweetened beverages 
(SSBs) and increasing the 
intake of water.
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Dementia Australia [helped me] to gain more knowledge and techniques 
that I could apply whilst caring for the residents of Werruna … I was 
able to gain an insight into the strategies fellow staff have used that 

were beneficial to the resident. The training session also provided 
me with additional knowledge about the dementia process … several 
suggestions [were] made that we could trial to address the resident’s 

comfort needs. E.g weighted blankets, tactile objects etc. I was 
humbled that we are all being acknowledged and validated for our 

expertise ... and our efforts to provide consistent and dignified care… 
The learning session confirmed to me that we are working together as a 

team in the best interests for our residents.
                                                            Enrolled Nurse

MAINTAINING SKILLS IN 
UNDERSTANDING T HE 
DEMENT IA CONDIT ION

Working with people 
with complex and 

challenging behaviours is all 
in a day’s work in health and 
aged care services. At times 
it is necessary to reach out 
to professional networks to 
deliver the best care possible. 
In April Dementia Support 
Australia assisted staff to 
develop care strategies for 
residents with co-morbidities 

and behavioural difficulties. 
Twenty five staff, across four 
locations dialled in remotely to 
the video conference externally 
facilitated using a solution 
focussed approach.

INFORMAT ION
SYST EMS

Hesse is a member of the South West Alliance for Rural Health (SWARH) which supports our information 
technology needs. This is a mandated joint venture membership. A cyber security incident occurred within 

the SWARH network in September 2019 which impacted on a range of clinical and supporting information 
software systems affecting all public health services throughout the Barwon South West region. Hesse was 
fortunate not to be as clinically impacted as other health services due to a lesser reliance on electronic 
systems, however email, internet, network drives, booking systems, data access program and learning 
management systems were inaccessible for a prolonged period. No client personal data was compromised. 
Enhanced security measures were introduced following recovery.

A transfer from hard copy records to an electronic clinical record system within residential aged care is in the 
planning phase and the enhanced security measures introduced post cyber event will be welcome. The change 
is intended to introduce efficiencies in clinical documentation and real time reporting. 

QUALIT Y
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Concerned about the impact 
of isolation on her regular 

playgroup pre-schoolers during 
the pandemic shut down, early 
childhood educator Lynne 
Horne used technology to 
reach out and help them to stay 
connected. 

When the fortnightly play 
program operating from Beeac 
Community Health Centre was 
temporarily suspended, Lynne 
created a closed Facebook 
group to keep the children and 
their families stimulated and 
engaged. Supported by her 
tech-savvy adult daughter, Lynne 
bravely faced the camera and 
entertained the children with 
storytelling, nursery rhymes and 
games with the children’s friends 
the Teddys. 

While the clips lasted 
about 7 minutes, Lynne spent 
considerably longer setting up 
the surroundings with familiar 

items and toys to make the 
children feel comfortable. 
In one clip, appealing to all 
generations, the Teddy’s ran, 
jumped and cycled in the health 
centre gymnasium to music from 
‘Rocky’. 

Lynne explained ‘when situations 
are abnormal, such as during 
the coronavirus lockdown, 
it’s important to help to make 
children feel safe. Familiar 
routines can provide that 
security’. Lynne has been 
facilitating the program for the 
last 23 years and there have 
been many ‘graduates’ over 
that time who all know by heart 
the actions and the words to 
‘Row Row Row Together’, the 
program’s signature sign off. 
Children from about ten 
families within the district were 
registered with the program 
when the shutdown occurred. 
Single sessions can reach 
attendances in excess of 20 

USING T ECHNOLOGY TO 
REACH OUT TO RURAL 
PRE - SCHOOLERS

with the inclusion of supervising 
parents, grandparents and other 
carers. 

Lynne says, ‘The effects of 
isolation have been especially 
challenging for children living 
on rural farms unable to 
access extended family and 
social networks’. Feedback 
from the families has been 
overwhelmingly positive with 
many saying it has given their 
children something to look 
forward to. The regular phone 
contact and support Lynne has 
provided to the families has also 
been crucial.

While Lynne, the pre-schoolers 
and their families are looking 
forward to when they can meet 
up again, for now Beeac’s own 
version of ‘Play School’ is a very 
enjoyable substitute. 
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A weather storm in July caused water damage and power surging 
faults within the fire panel at the main hospital and residential 

aged care campus which resulted in intermittent erroneous alarms to 
the Country Fire Authority (CFA). To ensure patient, resident and staff 
safety independent security personnel were engaged over a three 
week period to monitor the panel initiated alarms until full replacement 
and installation of two new monitoring systems with 300 detectors was 
completed. All risk control measures were undertaken with relevant 
stakeholders including Elliots Fire Services, ADT Fire Monitoring 
Services, CFA and Victorian Managed Insurance Agency (VMIA). Full 
cost recovery occurred via state government provided insurance. 
CFA and internal fire warden training to respond to the new panel 
commenced. A media clip is currently under development to enhance 
and embed learning in this critical area. 

In a combined environmentally friendly and safety measure lithium 
rechargeable batteries replaced fuel powered gardening and 
maintenance equipment. The new brushcutter, blower vac and chainsaw 
models are also lightweight and improve manual handling.
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ONGOING COMMIT MENT 
TO T HE PREVENT ION OF 
FAMILY VIOLENCE

Hesse continues to 
participate in the statewide 

Strengthening Hospital 
Response to Family Violence 
(SHRFV) program along with 
sub region partner agencies 
Colac Area Health, Great 
Ocean Road Health and Barwon 
Health. The Barwon cluster was 
successful in its expression of 
interest to participate in the 
System Audit Family Violence 
Evaluation (SAFE) Project funded 
by the Collier Foundation and 
conducted by the Royal Women’s 
Hospital and University of 
Melbourne. Hesse Executive 
staff participated in a SAFE 
project information session in 
October with data gathering to 
commence later in 2020. 

Family Violence Contact Officer 
roles remain an important point 
of access and family violence 
leave provisions were accessed 
by eligible staff during the year. 

The remaining focus has been on 
the development of a procedure 
supporting clinicians to move 
beyond understanding, to one of 
recognition and sensitive inquiry 
to persons presenting with 
experiences of family violence. 
Over 51% of Hesse’s workforce 
has completed the education 
workshop in SHRFV Module 2: 
Recognising and Responding 
to Family Violence. Seventy-
five percent of staff have also 
completed the online Module 
1: Family Violence a Shared 
Understanding. 

The implementation of Hesse’s 
obligations under the Multi 
Agency Risk Assessment and 
Management (MARAM) 
Framework and Child 
Information Sharing Scheme 
will be the priority in the 
forthcoming year. The SHRFV 
is funded to continue until June 
2021.

ENVIRONMENT &
INF RAST RUCT URE

The Recognising and Responding to 
Family Violence Session was a real 

eye opener on the statistics of Family 
violence. ….  There is a large number of 
support agencies which I was not aware 
of. ….After watching a very moving 

…. “Lets change the story” it made me 
consider the way my children have been 
raised: - Have I taught my daughter to 
become a strong, independent woman? 
Have I raised my son to see women as 
equals?  What could my husband and 
I have done differently?  … I would 
encourage all staff to complete this 

session as I found it beneficial ….  
Anything that can help reduce 
Violence is worth your time.  

                                                Health Care Worker
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INF ECT ION
PREVENT ION
COVID 19
Infection prevention is a high 
priority for Hesse at any time 
but the COVID 19 pandemic has 
required a range of increased 
measures in line with best 
practice and regulatory advice. 
These include; establishment of 
Hesse’s Incident Management 
Team and the development of 
a COVID 19 Pandemic Plan; 
COVID Outbreak Management 
Procedure; COVID 19 Safe Plan; 
COVID 19 Scenario Testing and 
Fast Track Orientation & Care 
Planning Procedure for any 
required surge workforce.

Personal Protective Equipment 
(PPE) supply has been 
critical and adequate stock 
preparations made. Staff have 
been trained in the correct use 
of PPE by the Infection Control 
Coordinator. Masks were made 
mandatory for direct care 
workers and later extended to 
all staff. 

We have increased internal 
infection control nursing 
resources to enable effective 
coordination. Hesse is audited 
by an external regional 
consultant from Victorian 
Infection Prevention Services. 

Visitor and contractor 
attendance has been regulated 
with registration, temperature 

monitoring, increased hand 
hygiene and health declarations. 
Forty two staff and ten residents 
participated in voluntary 
asymptomatic testing provided 
on site by Barwon Health 
in May. The workforce has 
been supported with regular 
communications via handover 
and the weekly staff newsletter 
and access to COVID 19 
special leave to encourage 
symptomatic testing. 

Influenza vaccination was made 
mandatory for all staff without 
medical contraindication. 
Outcome rates are 100% for the 
2020 influenza season. Resident 
influenza vaccination rates are 
99%.

Importantly there have been 
no outbreaks of influenza, 
gastroenteritis or COVID 19. 

Infection Control Clinical and 
Cleaning Audits  
Hesse is a participant in the 
South West Antimicrobial 
Stewardship (SWABS) auditing 
program and additionally 
undertakes a range of internal 
audits to measure infection 
control and cleaning standards. 
Results once again demonstrate 
high levels of achievement. 

AUDIT FREQUENCY ACHIEVEMENT

Antimicrobial Stewardship monthly 85%

Acute Care Cleaning monthly 95%

Acute Care Touch 
Point Cleaning 2nd monthly 94%

National Hand 
Hygiene Initiative 3 per year 95%

Aseptic Technique annual 100%

Standard 
Precautions annual 98%

Online Hand 
Hygiene Learning annual 81%

QUALIT Y
SNAPSHOT
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points of interest. He suggested 
the rotation of existing displays 
and artwork that is readily 
interpretable through narrative, 
supported by written questions 
as prompts beside the featured 
artworks. 

Architect Alan Kong is eager to 
incorporate Professor Zeisel’s 
ideas into the Master Plan 
currently under development 
and has engaged Kirsty Bennett, 
architect and former Manager 
of the Design Education 
Programme for Dementia 
Training Australia to undertake 
some research into facilitating 
greater resident use of Hesse’s 
internal and outdoor spaces. 

A local community engagement 
approach was undertaken 
when the Riverlee Artists were 
invited to showcase their 
creative talents as a part of the 
residential leisure and lifestyle 
program. The artists set up 
their easels in the lush garden 
surrounds enticing residents 
outside into the sunshine to 
observe, chat or dabble with a 
paintbrush. 

The first session generated 
great intrigue from the 
residents. Due to the pandemic 
the program was temporarily 
suspended but will reconvene 
when usual visiting arrangements 
resume. Professor Zeisel was 
impressed by this approach and 
the possibilities for broader 
community engagement. 
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ART FOR
ENGAGEMENT
It is well known that artworks, 

when used thoughtfully, can 
provide an important medium 
for social engagement. Hesse 
has, overtime, acquired and 
displayed a range of paintings 
by local and regional artists 
throughout the hospital and 
residential aged care facilities. 
Past Board Directors, Consumer 
Representatives and Residents 
have delegated on arts 
selection panels.

In February the Leadership 
Team was fortunate to learn 
more about the possibilities for 
engagement following a visit 
from international dementia 
expert and sociologist Professor 
John Zeisel on his own quest to 
understand Hesse’s approach to 
dementia care. 

Among other achievements, 
Professor Zeisel developed the 
Artists for Alzheimer’s program 
(ARTZ) which developed guided 
museum tours and other cultural 
experiences for people living 
with the disease. The program 
operates within the London 
Portrait Gallery, Louvre and 
Canberra Art Gallery. His 
input was sought by the Royal 
Commission into Aged Care in 
Australia.

Professor Zeisel’s early 
research and programs were 
an influencer in the design 
of Werruna. He explained 
how the environment may be 
used to facilitate meaningful 
engagement and conversations 
based on the here and now and 
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Tailoring the menu to 
all residents’ tastes is 

an unenviable task for the 
Catering team at Hesse 
who continually strive to 
deliver. However this year 
has seen a strong investment 
in new processes for positive 
outcomes. 

Addressing a service gap 
in Chelsea Lodge, a new six 
hour shift was introduced 
which provides residents with 
dedicated staff when ordering 
meal selections. Staff from 
the catering team can now 
directly inform residents of 
meal options, serve the evening 
meal and provide real time 
feedback directly to the kitchen 

about satisfaction levels. These 
changes have allowed care 
staff to focus on care related 
duties including the provision 
of resident dining assistance 
and facilitation of preferred 
bedtime routines. The new 
resource has been welcomed 
by residents and families.

Overall complaints about 
the menu and meal quality 
decreased this year. Only 
14% of complaints related to 
food compared to 45% in the 
previous year. 

An auditor completing a 
Department of Health and 
Human Services food services 
review in January commended 

Hesse for the range of menu 
choices and meal quality. 
The popular crumbed cutlets 
provided the greatest surprise, 
with the auditors commenting it 
is rare to see lamb on the menu 
in other health services. 

Catering Coordinator Suzanne 
surprised one lucky resident 
who had boldly ordered 
lobster for Christmas lunch with 
a lavish pre-Christmas serving 
of seafood and prawns. 

A menu review was also 
conducted by Hesse dietitian 
Pip Keatinge specifically 
focusing on alignment with the 
nutritional recommendations 
for older people. This review, 

an outcome of a Resident and 
Carers meeting, identified 
that while serves of fibre 
containing fruit, vegetable 
and grain products were 
adequate, serves of meat 
and meat alternatives and 
dairy could be increased at 
breakfast time. These food 
groups provide rich sources 
of protein and micro-
nutrients important for muscle 
retention, skin health and 
bone maintenance in older 
people. An action plan has 
been implemented to address 
these issues. 

IMPROVEMENTS IN 
CAT ERING SERVICES
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NURSES PROVIDING URGENT 
HEALT HCARE RESPONSE

As a small rural health 
service, the Urgent 

Care centre plays a critically 
important role among our 
integrated range of programs. 
Hesse Rural Health operates 
a Registered Nurse led model 
of Urgent Care supported 
by on-call arrangements 
with locally based General 
Practitioners. During business 
hours patients present via Main 
Reception and in the after-hours 
period, patients notify of their 
attendance by activating the 
call bell at the front entrance. 
The COVID 19 pandemic has 
increased precautionary 
screening prior to entry.

Approximately 50% of patients 
are seen by a general medical 
practitioner when attending the 

Urgent Care centre. Patients are 
initially assessed by a Registered 
Nurse using the Australasian 
Triage Scale, and the on-call 
General Practitioner will be 
contacted for further medical 
assessment and treatment as 
necessary. Ambulance transfers 
to tertiary level hospitals, like 
University Hospital Geelong, 
are initiated for patients 
requiring higher level of care. 

Technology within Hesse’s 
Urgent Care room allows for 
Telehealth consultations with 
University Hospital Geelong 
emergency clinicians. Urgent 
Care presentations at Hesse 
Rural Health decreased 
markedly since the COVID 19 
pandemic. 

Urgent Care - Case in Point
A 62 year old man from Ararat, who was working in the area, presented to Urgent Care with chest pain. He 
was assessed by the Nurse in Charge who, upon recognition of severe symptoms, arranged for immediate 

ambulance transfer to University Hospital Geelong. The patient was diagnosed with a myocardial 
infarction, one of the arteries supplying oxygen to his heart was blocked.

Feedback received from the paramedics in attendance indicated that the nurse’s rapid response facilitated 
the patients arrival to hospital within a 30 minute timeframe which was critical for a successful angioplasty 

(stent) and health outcome.  

Without local ambulance and health care services, this outcome may not have been so positive.

Hypertensive
Episode

Allergic
Reaction

Abdominal / 
Back Pain

Shortness
of Breath

Chest Pain / 
AMI

Eye
Injury

1

1

1

3

3

2

Category 1 & 2 Presentations:
Australasian Triage Scale
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FALLS 
MANAGEMENT

Falls are associated with the 
ageing process. Persons 

who are increasingly frail and 
less mobile are particularly 
at risk. Limiting a person’s 
mobility independence with 
unnecessarily restrictive 
practices can be 
debilitating. Preventing 
harm from falls 
is often the 
preferred 
objective. 

Falls risk 
assessments 
are undertaken 
for all residents. All 
incidents are followed 
up and tailored strategies 
implemented. An average 
of 12 falls occur each month 
across the residential facility. 
Benchmarking occurs and our 
rates were below the average 
of other Victorian Public Sector 
Residential Aged Care Services 
(PSRACS) in three of the four 
quarters during the year.

The post-falls protocol has 
been reviewed to ensure 
alignment with the standardised 
care process recommended 
by the Department of Health 
and Human Services, Victoria. 
Standardised care processes for 
priority conditions have been 
developed for public sector 
residential aged care services 
and are based on the best 
available evidence.  

2019

2020

2018

2017

2016

2015

148

153

Falls:
Total by Year

120140160180200

195

152

121

157
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Thank you for writing to me in this isolation 
and quarantine time … I guess you understand 

about 2nd World War period. There is 
similarities to present day regarding shopping 

like things that are rationed in shops … I 
have hopes that after this pandemic and 

coronavirus is over that the world will be a 
more liveable place … something always nice 

comes after a terrible time.
Social Support Consumer

… I was feeling downhearted … your 
letter made me feel full and uplifting 

… we all do miss being with our friends, 
we must look forward to the time 

when we can be free to again be able 
to mix with our family and friends. My 
sincere thanks to you for thinking of 

the elderly people on their own.
Social Support Consumer       
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LIFT ING
COMMUNIT Y
SPIRITS 
Helping people to keep 

socially connected, 
engaged and active in the older 
years are the key objectives 
of the Commonwealth Social 
Support Program. Hesse’s 
‘Winchelsea ADASS’ and 
the ‘Beeac Planned Activity’ 
programs had a combined 
113 registered clients at years 
end, with strong demand and 
operating in excess of funded 
targets. Whenever possible 
the participants promote its 
benefit to others. In December 
they hosted a twilight fete to 
raise funds for new activities 
and showcase their successful 
program to the wider 
community. 

Hours were spent 
enthusiastically planning the 
event; potting plants, knitting, 
making craft items, cooking 
sweet treats, making preserves 
and gathering bric-a-brac for 
sale. Over 100 people passed 
through the gates at 53 Hesse 
Street to purchase goods from 
the stalls, enjoy Devonshire tea, 
dance to the live music and finish 
with a BBQ dinner prepared 
by the Winchelsea Men’s Shed. 
The event raised over $3,300 
to support the purchase of a 
commercial coffee machine for 
the program.

But the coffee had not even been 
poured when the COVID 19 
pandemic caused the program 
to temporarily close in March. 
The loss of close connections 
between clients was significant. 
However staff shifted their 
focus from groups to individuals 

to reduce the impact of social 
isolation by making daily phone 
calls, with home visits and 
deliveries at safe distances. 
Sixty contacts per week were 
sustained.  

Newsletters kept clients 
informed and connected. 
Personalised items, reading 
material, quizzes, colourings 
and puzzles were delivered. 
Everyone received an Easter 
Basket and some a Mother’s 
Day hamper. In lockdown clients 
received hand-made face masks 
and decorated a single puzzle 
piece to contribute to a giant 
jigsaw when the pandemic ends 
and the groups can be together 
again. This will be a journal of 
everyone’s experiences.

Local school children wrote 
letters and clients were 
grateful in response explaining 
the personal impact of the 
pandemic.

The staff know first-hand how 
vulnerable some clients are in 
isolation and the positive impact 
of their ‘visits by distance’. 
Victor [cover page] really 
looked forward to the contact 
and deliveries. He completed 
a series of drawings and 
colourings which have been 
bound together. Isolated, lonely 
and despairing he said these 
visits and activities have kept 
him busy, happy and literally 
have saved his life. 

Social connections are 
everything, especially during 
pandemics. 
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The impact of the COVID -19 
worldwide pandemic 

for people in care facilities 
has been a topic of robust 
debate. Aged care residents 
should be able to trust that the 
environment they live in is safe, 
compassionate and is able 
to cater to their needs for 
continued personal and social 
relationships. 

In response to the declaration 
of the pandemic by the World 
Health Organization in 
March, the National Cabinet 
made wide ranging decisions 
including restrictions on entry 
into aged care facilities. Non-
essential services were ceased 
and visitors restricted to only 
immediate family or friends 
for short durations with social 
distancing in place. All visitors 
were required to be immunised 
for influenza. Children were 
not permitted entry, except on 
compassionate grounds. 
Hesse followed the principles 
of the voluntary ‘Industry 
Code for Visiting Residential 
Aged Care Home during 
COVID 19’ capping the 
number and duration of visits, 
ensuring resident choice was 
the fundamental driver. The 

external facility door was 
locked and a booking and 
registration system introduced 
to enable subsequent contact 
tracing if necessary. Victoria’s 
legislation additionally 
required staff and visitor 
screening for symptoms of 
acute respiratory infection 
and temperatures less than 
37.5 degrees. Later face masks 
were introduced.

The Chief Executive Officer 
personally addressed 
residents and families to 
explain the stringent measures. 
The measures introduced 
were positively received as 
necessary for the safety of 
loved ones and provided 
an assurance of responsible 
leadership. 

Hesse Rural Health’s 
integrated model of service 
delivery; acute, palliative 
and urgent care in addition to 
residential aged care, created 
additional risk complexities in 
the event of virus exposure. In 
preparation for positive cases, 
renovations commenced within 
two existing offices to enable 
a dedicated acute inpatient 
zone which could be isolated 

from the 56 bed residential 
aged care area.

The Leadership Team followed 
government guidance for 
outbreak preparedness; 
preparation of a local 
Incident Response Team, 
Pandemic Plan, Outbreak 
Management Procedure and 
COVID Safe Plan; compulsory 
influenza vaccination for 
staff, communication and 
support for staff, residents 
and families, effective 
workforce management, 
staff training and acquiring 
adequate personal protective 
equipment. Symptomatic 
and asymptomatic testing 
was undertaken for staff and 
residents. However, it was 
from the drive to maintain 
resident social connectedness 
that evolved new 
opportunities and initiatives. 

Residents were connected to 
family and loved ones through 
email, video conference 
and social media. Platforms 
deemed challenging for the 
generation were embraced. 
Upon learning how to 
video-call her overseas 
granddaughter, one resident 
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MAINTAINING PERSON CENT REDNESS 
DURING A PANDEMIC

held the electronic device 
aloft and stated, ‘it feels 
like I am hugging her’. The 
long forgotten art of letter 
writing was prompted by 
cards and messages from local 
schoolchildren. 

Digital photographs were 
shared and usually uniformed 
care staff participated in theme 
costume days which stimulated 
conversation, keeping the 
mood upbeat.

Staff were systematic in 
ensuring all residents had 
dedicated in-room chat time. 
Staff became beauticians, 
hairdressers and postal 
officers with pamper days, 
hosting ‘beer and bowls’ 
sessions and delivering 
parcels left by families and 
visitors. The content of such 
treats stimulated a greater 
understanding of individual 
desires and preferences 
leading to meaningful 
conversations. Care updates 
were regularly provided to 
families .

Essential consultations with 
medical practitioners occurred 
remotely and workforce 
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MAINTAINING PERSON CENT REDNESS 
DURING A PANDEMIC OCCUPAT IONAL 

HEALT H & SAF ET Y

Ensuring a safe workplace 
occurs both pro-actively, 

via action planning and site and 
situation audits, and reactively 
by monitoring identified 
health and safety incidents. All 
incidents are followed up by 
managers. Designated health 
and safety representatives 
(HSRs) meet quarterly with 
management delegates to 
review, discuss and resolve 
matters of safety.

There were 42 occupational 
health and safety (OHS) 
incidents and hazards 
recorded. Sixty four percent 
(27) related to physical 
aggression by residents 
towards care staff. Most 
commonly the behaviours 
of these residents were 
associated with a dementia 
condition. Seventeen percent 
(17) had a manual handling 
causation and others included 
accidental trips, dog bite, 
scalding and a needlestick 
injury. Seven were rated as 
‘moderate’ in severity requiring 
medical assessment.

Staff received training from 
Dementia Services Australia 
and individual and group 
debriefing was undertaken 
by our Employee Assistance 

Program provider. Further 
whole of staff training in 
prevention and management of 
aggression has been scheduled 
for 2020. 

There were two compliance 
visits from Worksafe with 
satisfactory outcome; one 
focussing on return to work 
planning and implementation 
and the other regarding 
management of aggression in 
the workplace. 

The Workplace Achievement 
Program is being led by the 
HSRs as champions to promote 
worker health and wellbeing 
(see p.38). Other actions 
included purchase of new 
resident slide sheets for safer 
manual handling, relocation 
of staff lockers and purchase 
of high-low work stations. 
Areas of forward focus include 
lone worker safe systems 
and observational manual 
handling audits for improved 
compliance. 

WORKFORCE
SNAPSHOT
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agencies were eliminated due 
to greater possibilities for 
transmission. Staff responded 
by cancelling booked leave 
and nominated their availability 
for additional shifts. Community 
based group programs ceased 
and staff were redeployed to 
residential areas.

The Board also responded. The 
Chair issued weekly updates to 
fellow Directors, channelling 
critical communications when 
management were otherwise 
occupied with implementing 
new procedures.  

Importantly there have been 
no positive cases of COVID 
19 at Hesse Rural Health to 
date. Whilst we may never 
know whether the actions 
taken have been attributable, 
it is clear that a combination 
of swift responsive action by 
governments and regulatory 
authorities, strong local 
leadership, skilled workforce 
profile, staff education, effective 
governance and commitment 
to person centred care lay the 
critical foundations for the best 
outcome possible.
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PAMPERING &
PAIN MANAGEMENT

The experience of pain 
commonly results from 

osteoarthritis, musculoskeletal 
and other conditions associated 
with the ageing process. Non 
medication therapies; exercise, 
massage, relaxation and heat 
therapy tailored to individual 
needs are preferred wherever 
possible to treat chronic pain. 
A new style of heat treatment 
was introduced this year by the 
occupational therapist. Paraffin 

wax therapy is proving very 
popular with residents. Paraffin 
is a soft, solid wax that melts to 
a liquid state when heated in the 
bath. It softens skin and provides 
pain relief to sore joints and 
muscles and with regular use can 
improve joint mobility and range 
of motion. After repeatedly 
submerging the hands or feet the 
wax forms like a warm mitten to 
work its magic. It is deliriously 

enjoyable and when treatment 
complete is easily peeled off 
leaving skin soft.  

The residents are rediscovering 
this wax, once used only to seal 
their home made pickles and 
preserves. 



PREVENT ING SKIN INJURIES

As people age their skin 
becomes more fragile 

and susceptible to tears and 
pressure injuries. Most pressure 
injuries are preventable and 
evidence shows that older 
people living in care are 
particularly vulnerable. Skin 
care is a standard by which the 
public measures care levels in 
nursing homes.  

Hesse collects data on 4 
stages of pressure injury and 
compares this with state targets 
and benchmarked services. 
A full body skin assessment 
is completed quarterly with 

consent of consumers. There 
were 17 recorded instances of 
pressure injuries over the year 
in residential care and acute 
programs. All injuries were 
managed and resolved with 
effective wound care, pressure 
relieving equipment and allied 
health referral.  

In May a trend was noted with 
injuries identified affecting 
the heels of four residents. All 
residents were reviewed using 
the Braden risk assessment tool 
with head to toe inspections 

completed. Staff education 
was repetitively provided 
including visual images of injury 
stages posted in clinical areas. 
The CG&E Committee also 
received education. By the year 
end significant improvements 
had occurred with updated 
resident risk assessments and skin 
management plans.
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CONT INENCE CARE

Incontinence is common 
amongst older persons. It 

increases the risk of falls and 
falls related fractures and 
is associated with impaired 
functional ability, deterioration 
of mental and sexual health and 
sleep disruption. 

Approximately 75% of people 
living in facilities have severe 
incontinence and it is known to 

be a factor in the decision to 
transition into care. 

While risk factors include 
obesity, urinary tract infections, 
constipation, surgery, reduced 
mobility and some medications, 
incontinence can be prevented. 
Staying active, keeping 
hydrated, eating a healthy diet, 

exercising pelvic muscles and 
good toilet skills are helpful. 

During World Continence Week 
in June staff were educated in 
continence assessment, charting 
and the utility of various aids and 
supportive products. 



CLINICAL & QUALIT Y
GOVERNANCE

Hesse Rural Health’s Clinical 
and Quality Governance 

Framework (illustrated) 
describes, guides and 
integrates our quality systems 
incorporating effective and 
accountable stewardship. 

In summary the model comprises:
4 Pillars 
Consumers, Workforce, Board 
and the Community. Each of 
these ‘Pillars’ undertake roles 
and functions that serve to keep 
Hesse accountable.

6 Domains
Leadership for Quality 
Improvement
Care & Clinical Practice
Human Resources
Consumer Engagement & 
Partnerships
Risk Management
The Business of Operations

Each of these domains are 
expressed in their own separate 
‘frameworks’.

36 core tile platforms These 
express the central elements of 
each framework domain with 
responsible committees and 
continuous quality improvement 
action plans

3 Activity Principles 
‘Privacy, Dignity and Choice’, 
‘Enabling Environments’ and 
‘Communication’ positively 
facilitate the model 

The model is centred around our
5 Values
Inclusiveness, Person 
Centeredness, Integrity, 
Excellence and Creativity. 

All established committees have 
a role in clinical and quality 
governance.

Excellence

Creativity

Inclusiveness

Integrity

     Person
Centredness

 Risk M
anagem

ent

               Care &
 Clinical

                    Practice

   H

um
an

 R
es

ou
rc

es

Consumer Engagement
        and Partnerships

Leadership for Quality

   
   

  T
he

 B
us

in
es

s

   
   

   
 o

f O
pe

ra
tio

ns

Improvement
C

o
ns

um
er

s

Board of Directors

C
o

m
m

unity

Workforce

           Privacy, Dignity &
 C

hoice

   
   

   
   

 E
na

bl
in

g 
En

vir
on

ments

            Communication

FRAMEWORK DOMAINS

Leadership for 
Quality & Planning

Strategy
&

Planning

Standards
&

Compliance

Public
Accountability

Performance
Measurement

Compassionate
& Responsible

Leadership
Behaviour

Contributing 
to Research &
Best Practice

Policies,
Procedures &

Clinical
Guidelines

Clinical
& 

Care Planning

Clinical
&

Care Resources

Patient
& Client Clinical

Review

Clinical Audit,
Performance
Monitoring &
Benchmarking

Clinical
Incident Reporting

& Case
Management

Employee
Engagement &

Satisfaction

Registration,
Credentialing &

Scope of
Practice

Position
&

Role Descriptions

Performance
Review

Training
&

Development

Remuneration
&

Entitlements

Consumer
Feedback

Person & Family
Centred 

Approaches to Care
Planning & Delivery

Health Literacy
&

Patient Information

Patient &
Consumer Rights

Community
Connectedness &

Partnership
Opportunities

Facilitating
Diversity

Incident
Reporting &
Investigation

Risk
Register

Occupational
Health &

Safety

Legislative 
&

Regulatory
Compliance

Open
Disclosure

Risk Mitigation
through

Insurance Products

Financial
Management
Compliance

Environment
&

Asset Management

Information
&

Communication
Systems

Budgeting
&

Resource 
Prioritisation

Managing
Client Demand

Systems

Innovation
&

Marketing

Care & Clinical
Practice

Human
Resources

Consumer 
Engagement & 
Partnerships

Risk
Management

Business of
Operations

Annual Report 202036

QUALIT Y
SNAPSHOT



It is well known that as people 
age their social networks 

diminish, placing them at risk of 
isolation and loneliness. This 
holds true whether living alone 
or in group settings and can 
lead to negative consequences 
for a person’s health and 
wellbeing.

Eager for a fresh perspective 
Hesse Rural Health invited 
four Deakin University 4th 
Year Occupational Therapy 
students to tackle the important 
issue of loneliness in the older 
years. The students ‘Innovation 
and Evaluation’ unit of study 
required them to design a new 
assessment, intervention, output 
or program and pilot it within 
a client services setting with 
recommendations for ongoing 
utility. 

The students chose to work 
within Hesse’s residential aged 
care and community programs 
and undertook a literature 
review and developed a 
community based social and 

wellness group program, a 
dedicated men’s group and a 
buddy program. 

The community based Count 
Me In project targeted clients 
receiving Home Support and 
Home Care services connecting 
them through a five session 
group program which included 
topics on healthy eating, 
internet and electronic devices, 
brain and body exercises, 
mental health and wellbeing 
and ageing with independence. 
The program was positively 
received with one participant 
stating ‘I only recently moved to 
the area so ‘Count Me In’ each 
week has been a good way to 
meet new people’. 

Noting a bias with activity 
based programs designed 
around the interests of women, 
another student delivered a 
‘mens only’ program in the 
residential setting. This program 
influenced the broader leisure 
and lifestyle program with 
activities such as coffee catch 

ups, ‘blokes, beer and bowls’, 
ginger beer making and a Lego 
Masters Competition. There 
was a small ‘break in’ attempt 
from some of the women 
wondering why they had been 
left out!

The buddy program involved 
a matching of residents 
with shared interests. It was 
concluded that whilst facilitated 
introductions are beneficial for 
people not originating from 
the local districts, relationships 
are stronger when they 
form organically. The social 
distancing requirements of 
COVID 19 led to the formation 
of some smaller groups with 
residents spontaneously 
initiating activities. 

Hesse Rural Health 
occupational therapists, Elli 
Bartlett and Kristen Howard 
found the students’ programs 
were able to tackle this 
important social issue from 
renewed perspectives.

 FOUR WAYS TO BOWL
OVER LONELINESS
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IMPROVING 
STAF F HEALT H 
& WELLBEING

Having healthy employees 
is a large step towards a 

happy, satisfied and engaged 
workplace. Last year Hesse 
registered for the Victorian 
Government endorsed 
Workplace Achievement 
Program aiming to promote 
health and wellbeing in the 
workplace. The program is 
facilitated by the Cancer 
Council Victoria and provides 
an evidence based framework 
and practical steps, tools and 
templates to support better 
health across a number of 
priority areas including; healthy 
eating, physical activity, mental 
health and wellbeing, alcohol 
consumption and smoking.

Coordinated by Health 
Promotion officer Jen McLean, 
Hesse’s Occupational Health & 
Safety Committee is supporting 
our local implementation of 
the WAP. Each of the Hesse’s 
five Health and Safety 

Representatives are Program 
champions. With this years 
Public Sector Commission 
People Matter Survey 
postponed due to COVID 19 
it was an ideal opportunity 
to survey the workforce to 
establish an area for priority 
health focus. 

Forty staff completed the 
survey and results indicated a 
peer inspired physical activity 
initiative as the priority focus. A 
vast array of ideas have been 
put forward including a step 
challenge and the program, 
delivered to engage the 
broader community, is set to 
commence later this year.  

A healthy workplace is a 
productive workplace. 

WORKFORCE
SNAPSHOT

Painting purchased with 
donated funds.
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OPPORT UNIT IES & LOSSES

Earnings may be down due 
to the pandemic but this has 

not stopped the members of the   
Winchelsea Hospital Auxiliary 
Op Shop. Like many other retails 
areas, the Shop closed in March 
and is yet to re-open to the 
public. However never to sit 
idle, the members rolled up their 
sleeves and used the opportunity 
for a big clean and tidy up. 
They sorted, straightened and 
arranged the donated goods 
onto newly constructed shelving 
and cupboards in the former 
Masonic Lodge at 2 Gosney 
Street. A new rail and steps 
were installed at the rear of the 
building for improved safety and 
the place now looks as neat as a 
pin. Due to the generosity of the 
public, donations keep rolling in.

Limited remote sales and 
deliveries have continued. 
Auxiliary President Cheryl 

Mawson said, ‘people are 
ringing to see if we might 
have a copy of a particular 
book, a coat, a needed piece 
of crockery or household 
appliance. We often do and we 
are now more likely to be able 
to put our hands on it straight 
away’. An Enid Blyton Magic 
Faraway Tree book was one 
sought after treasure located 
for one thrilled local.   

The Op Shop has also assisted in 
supporting the broader pandemic 
effort by selling fabric for a 
Moriac community group to make 
face masks. Sales and distribution 
of bags of cloths and rags for 
local business also continue.

However far outweighing 
diminished sales and impact 
of the pandemic was the news 
of the forthcoming departure 
of Peter Birkett as Hesse Rural 

Health Chief Executive. Cheryl 
said Peter has been inspirational 
in his support for the Auxiliary’s 
efforts over many years, but in 
particular the Op Shop. “He 
gave up his generous time to 
attend our meetings and egged 
us on. He never says ‘No’ its 
always ‘Why not?’ “.

Peter recently facilitated the 
participation of the Auxiliary 
Executive in a Master Plan 
workshop with Architect Alan 
Kong. ‘Ensuring the Op Shop 
remains a part of our health 
service and our community is 
something I am proud to be 
able to leave behind’, Peter 
said.

The Auxiliary believe, although 
it is a loss for Hesse, another 
organisation is lucky to secure 
Peter’s creative talents and 
wish him all the best.  

DONATIONS

Donations of ≥ $2,000
•	 Anderson, B

Donations of ≥ $1,000
•	 Stocks, M
•	 Wong, L

Donations of ≥ $10,000
•	 Bell Charitable Fund
•	 Cason, G (Bequest)
•	 Winchelsea Hospital Auxiliary

Donations of ≥ $5,000
•	 McNamara, B

Donations of ≤ $1,000
•	 Brown, M
•	 Cations, E (Bequest)
•	 Graham, K
•	 Hutton, N
•	 Murfitt, L
•	 Paliaga, C
•	 Senior Citizens Club
•	 Winchelsea Star

Note:  Just prior to publication the Op Shop was unfortunately destroyed 
by fire and the community have been devastated by this loss.



Consumer experience and 
satisfaction levels are 

internally evaluated within 
each program area with results 
reviewed by the C&CAC. 
Over 94 % respondents in this 
year’s community programs 
survey rated their satisfaction 
with services as ‘very 
good’ or ‘good’. The state 
issued Victorian Healthcare 
Experience Survey’ yielded 
an outstanding 100% overall 
experience rating within 
Hesse’s community programs (32 
respondents).

The biannual residential aged 
care survey was delayed due 
to COVID 19 pandemic but 
residents and family members 
have been involved in co-design 
of the forthcoming survey.

The Hospital Auxiliary donated 
a cast iron red postal box 
to the aged care facility 
following a suggestion raised 
at a Resident and Carers 
Meeting. The postal box has 
been centrally placed in the 
Atrium on a purposely crafted 
blackwood stand. The box 
provides an alternative venue 

for the posting of regular mail 
as well as a place to deposit 
feedback and suggestion forms 
when anonymity is preferred. 
A dedicated email feedback@
hesse.vic.gov.au is also 
available. 

Fifty-six (56) items of consumer 
and carer initiated feedback 
were received and registered. 
Seventy five percent were 
compliments, 14 % were 
complaints, including two that 
were escalated to a formal 
resolution process. The majority 
of the complaints were in 
relation to care practices 
or staff conduct. All were 
satisfactorily addressed.

The informal coffee mornings 
with management continue to 
be appreciated by residents 
and serve to enable proactive 
conversations. This may have 
contributed to decreased 
occasions of resident feedback 
during 2020.

CONSUMER EXPERIENCE,
F EEDBACK & SUGGEST IONS

My sincere thanks to each and every 
nurse who so diligently, carefully and 

skilfully managed my wound as it 
healed. We are so fortunate to have 
this health service. Living as we do in 

somewhat isolated areas it is fabulous 
to have access to competent care in 

our own homes.
                                             District Nursing Client

Care, compassion, attention and 
devotion of the staff [to my 
mother] was wonderful. From 

cleaners and kitchen staff to the 
nurses, the service was faultless and 
these attributes were extended to 

all my family. Thank you.
                                                   Family Member

Complaints

Suggestions

Compliments

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

2015
2016

2017
2018

2019
2020

56
63

75

113

80

61

Feedback:
Total by Year

Annual Report 202040

QUALIT Y
SNAPSHOT



CONSUMER ENGAGEMENT
& PART NERSHIPS

To provide quality 
services we must first 

engage with consumers to 
form partnerships in care. A 
collaborative care process 
leads to improved health 
outcomes. Hesse’s consumers 
are our patients, residents, 
clients and also our families, 
visitors and members of the 
general public, who may one 
day themselves be receivers 
of our services. 

At Hesse, consumer 
engagement is embedded in 
everything we do. We are 
a people and relationship 
focused organisation. 

The Consumer Engagement 
and Partnership Framework 
(‘Framework’) is a key domain 
within the overarching 
Clinical and Quality 
Governance Framework and 
guides consumer partnerships 

at individual, program and 
organisational levels. 

At the individual level 
consumers are involved in 
their own care planning and 
delivery. At the program level 
consumers can have a say in 
how services are planned, 
delivered and evaluated and 
at the organisational level 
consumers can participate 
in strategic governance 
activities. 

Internally designed Consumer 
Information Statements and 
Workforce Information 
Statements support consumer 
and workforce understanding. 

Consumer Governance 
The Consumer and Community 
Advisory Committee (C&CAC) 
is comprised of elected 
Consumer Representatives 
with active links to various 

groups across the integrated 
health service who regularly 
meet together. The 
C&CAC is guided by the 
Framework and Consumer 
Participation Action Plan 
to ensure the development 
and implementation of 
consumer focused initiatives. 
The C&CAC reports to the 
Clinical Governance & Ethics 
Committee. 2020 has been a 
sad year with the loss of Sue 
Dodds, recently elected to the 
role of Chair and Consumer 
Representative for five years 
(see p. 46). 

Challenges of COVID 19 led 
to the discovery of increased 
opportunities to reach 
our consumer membership. 
Electronic platforms allowed 
one member temporarily 
residing interstate during the 
lockdown to continue her 
attendance. 

Rights Focussed Care
From 1st July 2019 a new 
Charter of Aged Care Rights 
was introduced by the Aged 
Care Quality and Safety 
Commission. 

The Charter outlines fourteen 
entitlements for consumers 
to receive safe, dignified, 
respectful and choice driven 
care. A copy is given to each 
consumer and a duplicate 
held on file. Audits reveal 
100% compliance across 
Hesse’s Commonwealth Home 
Support, Home Care Package 
and Residential Aged Care 
programs. The Australian 
Charter of Healthcare Rights 
applies to inpatient and urgent 
care services and copies are 
on display in bedrooms. 

412020 Annual Report  
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COLLECT IVE
CELEBRAT IONS
FOR OUR RESIDENTS

Involvement of families into 
the care and routines of 

loved ones is critical to deliver 
services of high quality. It also 
allows families to feel welcome 
and know that their relationships 
with the service is valued. 
Opportunities to participate in 
facility wide celebratory events 
provides important avenues for 
informal relationships with other 

families, residents, staff and 
management. 

In addition to the Auxiliary 
hosted resident Christmas party, 
Hesse hosted a 2019 weekend 
Family Christmas event. The 
families of 26 residents enjoyed 
a sunny afternoon of live 
music with afternoon tea in the 
manicured gardens adjacent 

to the Bruno Lounge. The 
place had a buzzing positive 
festive vibe with collective 
voices belting out festive 
tunes. Residents received gifts 
generously donated by staff 
and their families. The finale 
was a very out-of-tune staff 
serenade to the residents 
singing ‘We Wish You A 
Merry Christmas’. 



Yesterday was Kevin’s 76th birthday ….[when 
we arrived] he was sitting up as clean as a new pin 
and more alert and engaged than I had seen him 
for weeks. I felt like I had gotten the birthday 
gift. He laughed and interacted with us … in the 
present climate where residential care and carers 
are under fire, I’d like to shout ‘they haven’t been 
to Hesse’… I am a regular visitor as you know and 
I am confident Kevin is not the only one receiving 
this beautiful person centred care. Your patience 

and dedication to your calling is amazing. To all of 
you I offer my deep appreciation … Kevin always 

believed he should be treated as a prince. Sadly he 
isn’t able to realise his dreams have come true.
                                                              Pam Fleming
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Ensuring our predominantly 
part time workforce remains 
informed occurs through 
the publication of a weekly 
newsletter issued by members of 
the Executive. It contains weekly 
updates of matters including; 
policy and procedure updates, 
regulatory change, quality 
news, employment information, 
educational opportunities and 
recruitment activity. COVID 19 
updates have been a regular 
feature during 2020. 

WORKFORCE

COMMUNICAT ION

WORKFORCE
SNAPSHOT



COLLECT IVE
CELEBRAT IONS

FOR OUR WORKFORCE

At Hesse we have 
long recognised the 

value of celebration. Our 
2019 Christmas was one 
to remember thanks to the 
generosity of staff member 
Deb Carroll who generously 
donated her charming rustic 
retreat Bellbrae Harvest 
overlooking the gorgeous lily 

pond. Forty-four staff chatted, 
danced and warmed themselves 
by the outside fire with paella 
and pizza reminiscing on a 
busy but satisfying 2019. Our 
generous volunteers Trevor 
and Colin transported staff to 
the venue and home safely. 
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Over the years Hesse has 
had an amazing array of 

volunteers who go the extra 
mile to assist our consumers, 
programs and broader 
organisation. However this year 
we were sad to lose two, who 
coincidentally both commenced 
in 2015 and made extraordinary 
contributions.

Sarah (Sally) Atkinson
Sally assisted at Winchelsea 
ADASS (Social Support 
Program). Sally was a warm, 
gentle, kind and considerate 
person who gained immense 
enjoyment from helping out 
and was focussed on the needs 
of clients and the broader 
community. She had a strong 
sense of those who needed 
her time most. She was happy, 
always arriving with a smile 
and a hug for clients and 

staff. Sally was very skilled at 
craft activities and willingly 
and patiently shared her 
knowledge with others. She also 
assisted with kitchen meal time 
preparation duties. Hesse was 
just one of many Winchelsea 
based organisations she and 
her husband Ray generously 
supported with their time. Rest 
peacefully Sally.

Susan (Sue) Dodds
Sue developed a keen interest 
in advancing consumer 
engagement in health service 
delivery, with a particular focus 
on residential aged care. In 2019 
she was elected as Chair of 
the Consumer and Community 
Advisory Committee. Sue 
regularly attended Resident 
and Carer Meetings and 
supported consumers to voice 
their concerns and suggestions. 
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VOLUNT EERS HELPING 
SERVICES TO KEEP FOCUS
ON CONSUMERS

She undertook formal 
learning courses in consumer 
participation and developed 
networks with organisations 
such as Safer Care Victoria 
and the Health Issues Centre. 
She addressed the Board of 
Directors and Volunteers about 
consumer participation and 
was instrumental in Hesse’s 
hosting of the 2017 Regional 
Consumer Networking Event. 
Sue provided health literacy 
focussed editorial for the 
Annual Report and internally 
produced brochures and was 
integral in Hesse’s success in 
the Partnering with Consumers 
Standard during the 2019 
accreditation site review under 
the National Safety & Quality 
Health Service Standards. 

Vale Sue.

Sally & Ray Atkinson

Sue Dodds
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MEDICAT ION 
SAF ET Y

Medication storage, 
prescription and 

administration is closely 
monitored at Hesse’s inpatient 
and residential facilities 
through procedure and audit. 
Robust systems are in place, 
however errors do occur and 
staff are encouraged to record 
these for follow up. While 
recorded errors increased 
by 150% from the prior year, 
improved documentation 
is attributable following 
staff education from local 
pharmacists.

The majority of error types 
related to dose omission (31%) 
and dispensing (22%). High 

risk situations such as residents 
being provided with another 
person’s medication occurred 
6% of the time and there was 
only one occurrence involving 
administration of an incorrect 
medication. All situations 
were appropriately managed 
without harm. 

Accredited pharmacists are 
available to support general 
practitioners in appropriate 
medication prescription 
through the completion of 
annual Residential Medication 
Management Reviews (RMMR). 
These are conducted when 
complex regimes may be in 
place.

The Royal Commission into 
Quality and Safety Interim 
Report identified an over-
reliance on chemical restraint 
throughout the aged care 
sector. Chemical restraint 
occurs when a medication is 
prescribed that may influence 
a person’s behavior and 
where that medication is not 
prescribed to treat a particular 
identified physical or mental 
health condition. 

An internal audit was 
undertaken in February of 
all residents with prescribed 
psychotropic medication. 

GP and family education has 
commenced and a register 
now lists all occurrences of 
prescribed psychotropic 
medication. GP’s discuss 
psychotropic treatment options 
with residents (wherever 
possible) or their nominated 
representatives prior to 
prescription. 

Existing broader restraint 
policies are now under review 
to incorporate these important 
changes. Chemical restraint 
reporting has been added to 
CG&E meeting agendas. 
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Extra or 
incorrect
dose

Incorrect
time

Medication
Found

Prescriber 
Error

Incorrect medication
administered
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Dose Omitted

COMMUNICAT ION 
FOR SAF ET Y
Communication is a key activity principle within Hesse’s Clinical 
and Quality Governance Framework. The transfer of information 
between health professionals is critical for best practice 
care delivery. Staff raised concerns regarding the accuracy, 
comprehensiveness and length of the thrice daily clinical 
handover and a quality improvement process was workshopped 
and implemented. The responsible outgoing nursing shift leader 
is now accountable for handover delivery with staff in each area 
of the facility updating clinical notes electronically. The reliance 
on individual note taking during handover has decreased 
with consistency of information and improved practice a key 
outcome. 

The new handover process works 
well for me. Updates can be entered 

in real time and legibly. We have 
more time on the floor to complete 
tasks while the RN in charge hands 
over. It gives greater autonomy and 
accountability to the RN in charge.

Health Care Worker   

Online handover is a good way to 
update resident information. It saves 

the information reliably and it reduces 
the workload of paper handover. 

Health Care Worker

Minimizing Chemical Restraint:
A Quality Improvement Initiative
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END OF LIF E CARE

Hesse is highly regarded for 
skilled and compassionate 

end-of-life care. Appropriate 
procedures are followed including 
end of life care pathways and 
when applicable, Advanced 
Care Directives. Advanced Care 
Directives allows one to document 
their preferences for future 
medical or end of life treatment 
should they lose their decision 
making capacity. Under the 
Medical Treatment Planning and 
Decisions Act 2016, instructional 
advanced care directives are a 
legally binding document.

Ninety six per cent of residents 
now have an Advanced Care 

Directive compared to 51% last 
year. The majority of these are 
values based directives, with 
a smaller number of medical 
instructional directives in place. 

Staff provide comfort and 
support to residents and their 
families through sourcing music 
preferences, aromatherapy, 
arranging floral displays and 
pastoral care.

All end-of-life care in hospital 
and residential aged care is 
reviewed to ensure Hesse 
follows best practice and 
adheres to personal wishes. 

The kindness and compassion 
shown to our mother and us was 
incredible. Our mother enjoyed 
her time at Hesse and I feel it 
prolonged her life. Thank you 

for making my precious mother’s 
last days and hours so memorable 

and full of love.
                                        Family member
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QUALIT Y
SNAPSHOT

Victorian Healthcare Experience 
Survey: Patient Experience (Hospital) Target Result

Data submission Full Compliance Achieved

% of positive patient experience responses - Qtr 1 95% Full Compliance*

% of positive patient experience responses - Qtr 2 95% Full Compliance*

 % of positive patient experience responses - Qtr 3 95% Full Compliance*

% of very positive responses to questions on discharge care - Qtr 1 75% Full Compliance*

% of very positive responses to questions on discharge care - Qtr 2 75% Full Compliance*

% of very positive responses to questions on discharge care - Qtr 3 75% Full Compliance*

Patients perception of cleanliness - Qtr 1 70% Full Compliance*

Patients perception of cleanliness - Qtr 2 70% Full Compliance*

Patients perception of cleanliness - Qtr 3 70% Full Compliance*

Hand Hygiene - Qtr 4 Data not available Data not available

Public Sector Residential Aged Care
Quality Indicators (per 1,000 bed days)

Overall 
Statewide Rates 2019-20 2018-19 2017-18

Pressure Injuries Stage 1 0.32 0.70 0.00 0.26

Pressure Injuries Stage 2 0.39 0.35 0.12 0.53

Pressure Injuries Stage 3 0.04 0.00 0.00 0.00

Pressure Injuries Stage 4 0.02 0.00 0.00 0.00

Falls 8.26 7.64 13.04 9.19

Fall-related Fractures 0.15 0.00 0.25 0.00

Intent to Restrain 0.34 0.00 n/a n/a

Use of Physical Restraint Devices 0.62 0.00 0.00 0.00

Multiple Medications - 9 or More 4.56 3.52 3.97 3.68

Antipsychotic Medicines 3.23 1.29 n/a n/a

Proton Pump Inhibitor Medicines 3.79 2.94 n/a n/a

5 or More Administration Times 1.86 1.53 n/a n/a

Significant Weight Loss ( > 3 Kgs) 0.84 1.41 1.37 0.79

Unplanned Weight Loss (Consecutive) 0.84 1.17 1.12 0.53

Other DHHS Reportable Indicators Target 2019-20

Compliance with Hand Hygiene Australia Program 80% 95.3%

Healthcare Worker Immunisation - 2019 Flu Season 100% 92%

Sentinel Events
All RCA reports submitted 

within 30 business days
n/a

* Less than 30 responses were received for the period due to the relative size of the health service.



The Statement of Priorities is a key document of accountability between the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) and Hesse 
Rural Health as a small rural public health service. This agreement defines the government’s key priorities and required actions, and identifies 
Hesse’s 2019-2020 deliverables and outcomes.

STAT EMENT OF 
PRIORIT IES

Goals Strategies
Health Service 

Deliverables
Outcomes

Better Health

A system geared to prevention 
as much as treatment

Everyone understands their 
own health and risks

Illness is detected and managed 
early

Healthy neighbourhoods and 
communities encourage healthy 
lifestyles

Reduce Statewide Risks

Build Healthy Neighbourhoods

Help people to stay healthy

Target health gaps

Implement a healthy exercise 
program for older adults in 
Winchelsea that builds on 
current initiatives in healthy 
eating in line with G21 Health 
and Wellbeing Priorities. 

Achieved
Community walking program 
commenced in 2019 in partnership 
with the Winchelsea Pharmacy. 

Implement actions arising from 
the initial snap shot survey of 
the Victorian Government’s 
Workplace Achievement 
Program to improve employee 
wellbeing in the nominated 
priority areas and share 
positive outcomes within our 
communities. 

Achieved
Snapshot survey outcomes 
identified physical health, healthy 
eating and mental health as top 
priority areas. Hesse hosted 
the Winter Harvest event in 
partnership with Golden Plains 
Shire focussing healthy eating in 
rural areas.

Better Access

Care is always being there 
when people need it

Better access to care in the 
home and community

People are connected to the 
full range of care and support 
they need

Equal access to care

Plan and invest

Unlock innovation

Provide easier access

Ensure fair access

Undertake a business case 
analysis for the delivery of 
Commonwealth Home Support 
Program, currently delivered 
by the Surf Coast Shire in 
Winchelsea West catchment.

Achieved
Business case completed and 
Commonwealth Department of 
Health has approved Hesse to 
deliver an increased range of 
services from October 2020. 

Establish linkages with Barwon 
Health discharge planners 
to communicate the range of 
services available at Hesse 
Rural Health for the effective 
discharge of admitted patients.

Achieved
Effective linkages and care 
protocols established with Barwon 
Health’s discharge planners 
for ‘Hospital in the Home’ and 
‘Post Acute Care’ programs 
improving patient continuity of 
care and understanding of Hesse’s 
community based service capacity.

Better Care

Targeting zero avoidable harm

Healthcare that focusses on 
outcomes

Patients and carers are active 
partners in care

Care fits together around 
people’s needs

Put quality First

Join up care

Partner with patients

Strengthen the workforce

Embed evidence

Ensure equal care

Building upon the successful 
2017 regional consumer 
networking forum hosted by 
Hesse Rural Health continue 
to discuss options for a 
follow up forum with Safer 
Care Victoria that assists 
consumer representatives 
and carers to undertake their 
roles in supporting patient/
resident care. The forum will 
be evaluated and outcomes 
shared throughout the sector. 

Not Achieved
Unable to progress the planned 
joint forum due to COVID 19 
pandemic restrictions
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Goals Strategies
Health Service 

Deliverables
Outcomes

Better Care (Continued)

Targeting zero avoidable harm

Healthcare that focusses on 
outcomes

Patients and carers are active 
partners in care

Care fits together around 
people’s needs

Put quality First

Join up care

Partner with patients

Strengthen the workforce

Embed evidence

Ensure equal care

Implement a comprehensive 
assessment and review tool 
that ensures the prescription 
of anti-psychotic medication 
in residential aged care is 
controlled and appropriate, 
with consumer consent, or that 
of their substitute decision 
maker.

Achieved
Assessment tool implemented 
based on Aged Care Quality and 
Safety Commission Guidelines. 
All prescriptions for anti-
psychotic medication registered, 
monitored and governance review 
mechanisms established. 

Specific 2019-20 Priorities

Supporting the Mental Health 
System

Improve service access to 
mental health treatment to 
address the physical and mental 
health needs of consumers.

Implement a screening process 
in primary care and urgent 
care that directs consumers to 
available mental health service 
response and/or referral 
pathway. Evaluate screening 
process with consumers for 
effectiveness. 

Achieved
Screening tool implemented in 
primary and urgent care settings 
upon commencement of episode 
of care.

Addressing Occupational 
Violence

Foster an organisational wide 
occupational health and safety 
risk management approach, 
including identifying security 
risks and implementing controls, 
with a focus on prevention 
and improved reporting and 
consultation. 

Implement the department’s 
security training principles to 
address identified security risks. 

Implement actions from Hesse’s 
2017 internal security review, 
to address worker safety 
for nurses and allied health 
working alone in the community 
through the implementation of a 
digital assistive device 

In Progress
Product review of a lone worker 
digital safety device undertaken. 
Resources re-directed to staff 
education on the prevention and 
management of aggression in 
response to clinical priorities. 

Addressing Bullying and 
Harassment

Actively promote positive 
workplace behaviours, 
encourage reporting and 
action on all reports.

Implement the department’s 
Framework for promoting a 
positive workplace culture: 
preventing bullying, harassment 
and discrimination and 
Workplace culture and bullying, 
harassment and discrimination 
training: guiding principles for 
Victorian health services.

Review Hesse’s current training 
module for Responsible 
Workplace Behaviours to 
ensure it aligns with the DHHS 
Framework for Promoting a 
Positive Workplace Culture: 
Preventing Bullying, Harassment 
and Discrimination. 

Achieved
Review undertaken and current 
training module aligns with both 
DHHS Framework and positive 
culture workplace policies. 

STAT EMENT
OF PRIORIT IES
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Goals Strategies
Health Service 

Deliverables
Outcomes

Specific 2019-20 Priorities (Continued)

Supporting Vulnerable 
Patients

Partner with patients to 
develop strategies that 
build capability within the 
organisation to address the 
health needs of communities 
and consumers at risk of poor 
access to health care.

Establish a partnership with 
Deakin University Occupational 
Therapy School to develop 
programs to address loneliness 
in older adults in residential 
aged care. 

Achieved
Successful occupational therapy 
partnership established with 
Deakin University. Client programs 
addressing loneliness implemented 
within Home Care, Home Support 
and Residential Aged Care settings.   

Supporting Aboriginal 
Cultural Safety

Improve the health outcomes 
of Aboriginal and Torres Strait 
Islander people by establishing 
culturally safe practices across 
all parts of the organisation 
to recognise and respect 
Aboriginal culture and deliver 
services that meet the needs, 
expectations and rights of 
Aboriginal patients, their 
families, and Aboriginal staff.

Implement an Aboriginal 
Cultural Safety E-Learning 
Package for workforce as a 
part of the 2020 Compulsory 
Training Program. 

Achieved
Package developed and available 
on the regional Learning 
Management System. 82% of staff 
have completed the module. 

Addressing Family Violence Strengthen responses to 
family violence in line with the 
Multiagency Risk Assessment 
and Risk Management 
Framework (MARAM) and 
assist the government in 
understanding workforce 
capabilities by championing 
participation in the census of 
workforces that intersect with 
family violence.

As a part of the Barwon Cluster 
for the Strengthening Hospital 
Response to Family Violence 
Project incorporating the 
Multiagency Risk Assessment 
and Risk Management 
framework, participate in 
the System Audit Family 
Violence Evaluation (SAFE) 
Project funded by the Collier 
Charitable Fund.

In Progress 
Implementation of the MARAM 
Framework has been postponed 
statewide due to COVID 19. MARAM 
implementation and the SAFE Project 
are due to re-commence in 2020.

Implementing Disability Action 
Plans

Continue to build upon last 
year’s action by ensuring 
implementation and embedding 
of a disability action plan 
which seeks to reduce barriers, 
promote inclusion and change 
attitudes and practices to 
improve the quality of care and 
employment opportunities for 
people with disability.

Implement the actions as 
outlined on the 2019 Disability 
Action Plan.

Achieved
Disability Action Plan extends 
to 2022. Fifty percent of items 
achieved or in progress. Items 
completed include the installation 
of hearing loop, reasonable 
adjustment policy and accessible 
events checklist. 

Supporting Environmental 
Sustainability

Contribute to improving the 
environmental sustainability of 
the health system by identifying 
and implementing projects and/
or processes to reduce carbon 
emissions.

Complete the installation 
of LED lighting throughout 
the Winchelsea acute and 
residential aged facilities.

Achieved
Installation completed. 



Peter Birkett, Chief Executive Officer
8 October 2020

Integrity, Fraud & Corruption
I, Peter Birkett, certify that Hesse Rural Health Service has put in place appropriate internal controls and processes 
to ensure that integrity, fraud and corruption risks have been reviewed and addressed at Hesse Rural Health 
Service during the year.

Kathy Taylor, Chair
8 October 2020

Financial Management Compliance Attestation
I, Kathy Taylor, on behalf of the Responsible Body, certify that the Hesse Rural Health Service has no Material 
Compliance Deficiency with respect to the applicable Standing Directions under the Financial Management Act 
1994 and Instructions. 

Peter Birkett, Chief Executive Officer
8 October 2020

Conflict of Interest
I, Peter Birkett, certify that Hesse Rural Health Service has put in place appropriate internal controls and processes 
to ensure that it has complied with the requirements of hospital circular 07/2017 Compliance reporting in health 
portfolio entities (Revised) and has implemented a ‘Conflict of Interest’ policy consistent with the minimum 
accountabilities required by the VPSC. Declaration of private interest forms have been completed by all executive 
staff within Hesse Rural Health Service and members of the board, and all declared conflicts have been addressed 
and are being managed. Conflict of interest is a standard agenda item for declaration and documenting at each 
executive board meeting.
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Peter Birkett, Chief Executive Officer
8 October 2020

Data Integrity
I, Peter Birkett, certify that Hesse Rural Health Service has put in place appropriate internal controls and processes 
to ensure that reported data accurately reflects actual performance. Hesse Rural Health has critically reviewed 
these controls and processes during the year. 

AT T ESTAT IONS

Kathy Taylor, Chair
8 October 2020

In accordance with the Financial Management Act 1994, I am pleased to present the Report of Operations for 
Hesse Rural Health Service for the year ending 30 June 2020.

RESPONSIBLE BODIES DECLARAT ION

COMPLIANCE



Financial Information
FRD 22H Summary of the Financial Results for the Year 56
FRD 22H Significant Changes in Financial Position During the Year 2, 4 & 56
FRD 22H Operational and Budgetary Objectives and Performance Against Objectives 2, 4 & 56
FRD 22H Subsequent Events 55
FRD 22H Details of Consultancies Over $10,000 55
FRD 22H Details of Consultancies Under $10,000 55
FRD 22H Disclosure of ICT Expenditure 56

Legislation
FRD 22H Application and Operation of Freedom of Information Act 1982 54
FRD 22H Compliance With Building and Maintenance Provisions of Building Act 1993 54
FRD 22H Application and Operation of Public Interest Disclosures Act 2012 54
FRD 22H Statement on National Competition Policy 54
FRD 22H Application and Operation of Carers Recognition Act 2012 54
FRD 22H Summary of the Entity’s Environmental Performance 55
FRD 22H Additional Information Available on Request 54

Other Relevant Reporting Directives

FRD 25D Local Jobs First Act Disclosures 54
SD 5.1.4 Financial Management Compliance Attestation 52
SD 5.2.3 Declaration in Report of Operations 52

ATTESTATIONS
Attestation on Data Integrity 52
Attestation on Managing Conflicts of Interest 52
Attestation on Integrity, Fraud and Corruption 52

OTHER REPORTING REQUIREMENTS
Reporting on Outcomes from the Statement of Priorities 2019-20 49 & 56
Occupational Violence Reporting 55
Reporting Obligations under the Safe Patient Care Act 2015 54

MINISTERIAL DIRECTIONS

Charter and Purpose

LEGISLATION REQUIREMENT PAGE
FRD 22H Manner of Establishment and the Relevant Ministers Inside front & 1
FRD 22H Purpose, Functions, Powers and Duties Inside front, 2 & 4
FRD 22H Nature and Range of Services Provided Inside back
FRD 22H Activities, Programs and Achievements for the Reporting Period 2 & 4
FRD 22H Significant Changes in Key Initiatives and Expectations for the Future 2 & 4

Management and Structure
FRD 22H Organisational Structure 10
FRD 22H Workforce Data / Employment and Conduct Principles 55 & 56
FRD 22H Occupational Health & Safety 54 & 55
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The Annual Report of Operations of Hesse Rural Health is prepared in accordance with all relevant Victorian legislation. This 
index has been prepared to facilitate identification of the Department’s compliance with statutory disclosure requirements.

DISCLOSURE INDEX



Freedom of Information (FOI) Act 1982
The Service operates within the guidelines defined within the 
Freedom of Information Act 1982 and its subsequent amendments. 
For access to medical records there is a mandatory application fee 
of $29.60 that must accompany the written charges for searching, 
photocopying and postage.

A member of the public wishing to access information should make a 
written request to the Chief Executive Officer, Hesse Rural Health, 
8 Gosney Street, Winchelsea, Vic 3241 on 5267 1200. Further 
information may be sought from www.foi.vic.gov.au.

No FOI requests were received from the general public.

Buildings and Maintenance
Hesse complies with the Building Act 1993, and relevant provisions 
of the ‘National Construction Code’ for publicly owned buildings 
during maintenance and redevelopment. An essential fire safety 
service maintenance program is in place.

Competitive Neutrality
Hesse is compliant with the requirements of the government statement 
‘Competitive Neutrality Policy Victoria’. The purpose is to account 
for advantages arising out of public ownership. 

Carers Recognition Act 2012
The Carers Recognition Act 2012 recognises, promotes and values 
the role of people in care relationships. Hesse understands the 
benefits care relationships bring to patients, residents, their carers 
and the community. Hesse is compliant with Section 11 of the Act, 
and takes all practicable measures to ensure that its employees, 
agents and carers have an awareness and understanding of the care 
relationship principles. This is reflected in our commitment to a model 
of patient and family centred care, and the involvement of carers in 
the development and delivery of our services.

Safe Patient Care Act 2015 
Hesse has no matters to report in relation to its obligations under 
Section 40 of the Safe Patient Care Act 2015.

Occupational Health & Safety Act 2004
Policies and procedures provide guidance for safety in the workplace. 
Designated workgroups have been established and health and safety 
representatives are elected. OH&S incidents are recorded and 
monitored and site audits are undertaken. OH&S Meetings occur 
quarterly. No major industrial accidents were reported during the 
year. 

Privacy 
Hesse complies with legislation relating to confidentiality and 
privacy including the Health Services Act 1988 (Vic.), Health Records 
Act 2001 (Vic.), Privacy Act 1988 (Commonwealth) and Privacy & 
Data Protection Act 2014 (Vic.). Policies ensure that personal health 
information remains confidential, secure and accessible under FOI 
guidelines.

Public Interest Disclosures Act 2012
Hesse is compliant with obligations under the Public Interest 
Disclosures Act 2012. Protected disclosures may be made to the CEO 
or the Disclosures Coordinator DHHS on 1300 131 431 or public.
interest.disclosures@dhhs.vic.gov.au. No disclosures were made.

Local Jobs First Act 2003
In 2019-2020 there were no contracts requiring disclosure under the 
‘Local Jobs First Policy’.

Hesse Rural Health confirms that details in respect of the items listed 
below have been retained by the health service and are available 
to the relevant Ministers, Members of Parliament and the public 
on request, subject to the freedom of information requirements, if 
applicable:

Board
The Board changed to bi-monthly Main Committee meetings during 
the year. Sub-committees include Finance, Resources & Audit, 
Clinical Governance & Ethics, Marketing & Fundraising and Buildings 
& Environment. Board representation exists on the Consumer & 
Community Advisory Committee. Each of these committees have 
guiding terms of reference. From 2018 Board Directors receive a 
sessional payment for undertaking their governance functions. This 
is funded by DHHS.

Pecuniary Interests
Declarations of pecuniary interests have been duly completed by all 
relevant officers.

Details of Shares Held
Senior officers hold no shares as nominees or beneficially in statutory 
authorities or subsidiaries.

Publications and Information
A range of service brochures are freely available for consumers, 
carers and the general public. Media clips on selected programs are 
also available via www.hesseruralhealth.org.au. This Annual Report 
is available upon request at Hesse Rural Health and uploaded onto 
the website.

Fees and Charges
All fees charged are in accordance with the ‘Hospitals and Charities 
(Fees) Regulations 1986’ and otherwise determined by the Victorian 
Department of Health and Human Services, the Commonwealth 
Department of Health or determined by the Health Service as 
appropriate.

External Reviews
There were no external reviews conducted by the health service.

DISCLOSURES REQUIRED
UNDER LEGISLAT ION

FURT HER INFORMAT ION
AVAILABLE

COMPLIANCE
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FURT HER INFORMAT ION
AVAILABLE

Consultant Purpose of Consultancy
Start 
Date End Date

Total 
Approved 

Project Fee 
(Exc GST)

Expenditure 
2019-2020 
(Exc GST)

Future 
Expenditure 

(Exc GST)

Health Recruitment Specialists Recruitment: Director 
for Clinical Services

Sept. 
2019

Oct. 
2019 $16,385 $16,385 $0

In 2019-2020, there was one consultancy where the total fees payable to the consultant was $10,000 or greater. The total expenditure 
incurred during 2019-2020 in relation to this consultancy was $16,385 (Exc GST). Details of individual consultancies can be viewed at www.
hesseruralhealth.org.au. In 2019-2020, there were two consultancies where the total fees payable to the consultants were less than $10,000.  
The total expenditure incurred during 2019-2020 in relation to these consultancies is $10,800 (Exc GST).

2020 2019 2018

Number of reported hazards / incidents for the year 
per 100 full time equivalent staff members.

50.07 35.38 34.12

The number of lost time standard Worksafe claims for the 
year per 100 full time equivalent staff members.

8.35 5.06 3.17

The average cost per claim for the year. $451,377 $245,293 $24,786

1. Workcover accepted claims with an occupational violence cause per 100 FTE. 3.63

2. Number of accepted workcover claims with lost time injury with an occupational violence cause per 1,000,000 hours 
worked.

15.8

3. Number of occupational violence incidents reported. 27

4. Number of occupational violence incidents reported per 100 FTE. 32.18

5. Percentage of occupational violence incidents resulting in a staff injury, illness or condition. 11%

DEFINITIONS: for the purposes of the above statistics the following definitions apply. Occupational violence: any incident where an employee is 
abused, threatened or assaulted in circumstances arising out of, or in the course of their employment. Incident: an event or circumstance that could have 
resulted in, or did result in, harm to an employee. Incidents of all severity rating must be included. 
Injury, Illness or Condition: This includes all reported harm as a result of the incident, regardless of whether the employee required time off work or 
submitted a claim.

Occupational Violence Statistics

Occupational Health & Safety

Research and Development Activities
There has been no major research and development activities 
undertaken by the Health Service during the year.

Overseas Visits
No international visits were conducted by the health service this 
year. 

Promotions, Marketing and Public Relations
No significant community awareness campaigns were conducted for 
promotional, public relations or marketing purposes.

Complaints
Consumer feedback is valued as a guide to the quality of care 
delivered. Complaints, suggestions and compliments are welcome 
and may be directed to relevant program managers or the Chief 
Executive Officer on 03 5267 1200 or feedback@hesse.vic.gov.au. 
External avenues are available to escalate unresolved complaints. 
The Health Complaints Commissioner can be contacted on 1300 
582 113 for complaints related to Victorian health programs and 
services. Complaints related to aged care services can be made to 
the Aged Care Quality and Safety Commission on 1800 951 822 or 
agedcarequality.gov.au/making-complaint.

Industrial Relations
Conditions of employment are in accordance with the relevant public 
sector enterprise bargaining agreements. Hesse is a member of the 
Victorian Hospital Industrial Association (VHIA) which negotiates 
on Hesse’s behalf in the formation of new agreements and provides 
advice as requested.

Employment and Conduct Principles
Hesse is committed to the principles of merit and equity in the 
workplace with respect to employment, promotion and equal 
opportunity. An Employee Code of Conduct guides responsible 
behaviour in the workplace. Employees have been correctly classified 
in workforce data collections.

Environmental Impacts
Hesse is committed to minimising environmental impacts and has in 
place effective systems including water harvesting, paper waste 
recycling, reduced energy consumption and improved reporting & 
monitoring.

Subsequent Events
There were no events subsequent to 30th June 2020 that would 
significantly effect Hesse’s operations in subsequent years.
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2020

Net Operating Result * $311,910

Capital Purpose Income $105,590

Specific Income n/a

COVID 19 State Supply Arrangements 
- Assets received free of charge or for 
nil consideration under the State Supply

$10,000

State supply items con-
sumed up to 30 June 2020 n/a

Expenditure for Capital Purpose ($30,954)

Depreciation and Amortisation ($1,066,090)

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

Finance Costs (Other) ($2,663)

Net Result from Transactions ($672,207)

FINANCIAL RECONCILIATION
of the ‘Net Result from Transactions’ 
to the ‘Net Operating Result’

CASH MANAGEMENT Actuals Target

Trade Creditors 27 < 60 days

Patient Fee Debtors 34 < 60 days

ASSET MANAGEMENT Actuals Target

Adjusted Current Asset Ratio 0.68 0.70

Current Days of Available Cash 46.2 14.00

Net Result from Transactions Variance -0.01 +/- 0.25

 PERFORMANCE 
DATA

2020 2019 2020 2019 2018 2017

Nursing 30.92 29.35 30.13 29.71 29.28 29.26

Administration & Clerical 10.59 10.50 10.55 10.49 10.06 9.62

Medical Support 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Hotel & Allied Services 38.29 31.59 34.94 30.33 31.58 32.17

Medical Officers 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Hospital Medical Officers 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Ancillary Staff (Allied Health) 4.08 9.98 7.03 9.99 8.20 7.47

TOTAL 83.88 81.42 82.65 80.51 79.12 78.52

WORKFORCE STATISTICS - Full Time Equivalent (FTE)
June Current Month June Year to Date

(Refer to consolidated Financial Statements for details.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

* The Net Operating Result is the result which the health service is 
monitored against in its Statement of Priorities.
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Business as Usual Expense (exc GST) $361,552

Non-Business as Usual Expense (exc GST)

    Operational Expenditure $0

    Capital Expenditure $0

    Total: $0

 INFORMATION & COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGY
  The total ICT expenditure incurred during the 2019-2020 is
  $361,552 (excluding GST) as detailed below. 

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

Operating Result $311,910 $133,531 ($106,003) $247,749 $328,764

Total Revenue $11,879,232 $11,429,448 $10,222,487 $11,013,259 $10,208,900

Total Expenses ($12,551,439) ($11,806,600) ($11,151,695) ($11,618,766) ($10,814,203)

Net Result from Transactions ($672,207) ($377,152) ($929,208) ($605,506) ($605,303)

Total Other Economic Flows ($17,068) ($129,151) $278,004 $16,291 $5,040

Net Result ($689,275) ($506,303) ($651,204) ($589,216) ($600,263)

Total Assets $23,009,455 $22,317,803 $19,792,109 $18,638,397 $18,420,672

Total Liabilities $11,215,389 $10,255,654 $9,643,107 $9,223,785 $8,416,845

Net Assets / Total Equity $11,263,360 $12,062,149 $10,149,002 $9,414,612 $10,003,827



2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

Bed Days (Consolidated) 19,919 19,352 18,287 19,515 19,431

Separations (Consolidated) 16 25 25 13 21

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

Emergency Medical Treatment 102 194 144 149 138

Community Contact Hours (Home and Community Care, 
Commonwealth Home Support and Small Rural Health Service funded)

32,493 29,644 26,985 29,310 30,686

NON-ADMITTED PATIENTS

SEPARATIONS 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

Acute 44 52 63 63 78

Non-Acute 0 0 0 0 0

Same Day 0 0 1 2 2

Total Hospital Separations 44 52 64 65 80

WIES  (Weighted Inlier Equivalent Separations)

WIES Public 51.34 88 108 73 99

WIES Private, DVA & TAC 38.38 18 5 90 55

PATIENT BED DAYS

Acute 525 601 662 1,010 918

Non-Acute 0 0 0 0 0

Same Day 0 0 1 2 2

Total Hospital Patient Days 525 601 663 1,012 920

ADMITTED PATIENTS

AGED CARE OCCUPANCY

District Nursing 6,954 6,220

Domiciliary Midwifery 253 160

Community Nursing * 1,509 2,025

Health Promotion 847 776

Physiotherapy 680 609

Occupational Therapy 1,573 1,294

Dietitian 198 105

Diabetes Education 241 114

Social Support Program * 15,036 18,234

Other 75 107
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* Hours of service delivery reduced for these programs due to the impact of COVID 19.
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
To the Board of Hesse Rural Health Service 

Opinion I have audited the consolidated financial report of Hesse Rural Health Service (the health service) and its 
controlled entities (together the consolidated entity), which comprises the: 

• consolidated entity and health service balance sheets as at 30 June 2020 
• consolidated entity and health service comprehensive operating statements for the year then 

ended 
• consolidated entity and health service statements of changes in equity for the year then ended 
• consolidated entity and health service cash flow statements for the year then ended 
• notes to the financial statements, including significant accounting policies 
• board member’s, accountable officer's and chief finance & accounting officer’s declaration. 

In my opinion, the financial report presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial positions of the 
consolidated entity and the health service as at 30 June 2020 and their financial performance and cash 
flows for the year then ended in accordance with the financial reporting requirements of Part 7 of the 
Financial Management Act 1994 and applicable Australian Accounting Standards. 

Basis for 
Opinion 

I have conducted my audit in accordance with the Audit Act 1994 which incorporates the Australian 
Auditing Standards. I further describe my responsibilities under that Act and those standards in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of my report.  

My independence is established by the Constitution Act 1975. My staff and I are independent of the 
health service and the consolidated entity in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting 
Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the 
Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report in Victoria. My staff and I have also fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.  

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
opinion. 

Board’s 
responsibilities 
for the financial 
report 

The Board of the health service is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Financial Management Act 1994, and 
for such internal control as the Board determines is necessary to enable the preparation and fair 
presentation of a financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial report, the Board is responsible for assessing the health service and the 
consolidated entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless it is inappropriate to do so. 

HESSE RURAL HEALTH SERVICE
INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT
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HESSE RURAL HEALTH SERVICE
INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT

2 

Auditor’s 
responsibilities 
for the audit of 
the financial 
report 

As required by the Audit Act 1994, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based 
on the audit. My objectives for the audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
report as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence 
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.  

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, I exercise professional 
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. I also:  

• identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control. 

• obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the health service and the consolidated entity’s internal control 

• evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by the Board 

• conclude on the appropriateness of the Board's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the health service and the consolidated entity’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am 
required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial report 
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the 
audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the health service and the consolidated entity to cease to continue as a 
going concern.  

• evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events in 
a manner that achieves fair presentation 

• obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or 
business activities within the health service and consolidated entity to express an opinion on the 
financial report. I remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit 
of the health service and the consolidated entity. I remain solely responsible for my audit opinion. 

I communicate with the Board regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that I identify 
during my audit. 

 

MELBOURNE 
14 October 2020 

Travis Derricott 
as delegate for the Auditor-General of Victoria 
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HESSE RURAL HEALTH SERVICE

BOARD MEMBER’S, ACCOUNTABLE OFFICER’S AND
CHIEF FINANCE & ACCOUNTING OFFICER’S DECLARATION

We authorise the attached financial statements for issue on this day. 

MS K. TAYLOR MR P. BIRKETT MR S. WIGHT
Chairperson (on behalf of the Board) Chief Executive Officer Chief Finance & Accounting Officer

Winchelsea Winchelsea Winchelsea
Dated: Dated: Dated:

HESSE RURAL HEALTH SERVICE

We further state that, in our opinion the information set out in the comprehensive operating statement, balance sheet, statement of changes in equity, cash flow statement 
and accompanying notes, presents fairly the financial transactions during the year ended 30 June 2020 and the financial position of Hesse Rural Health Service and the 
Consolidated Entity at 30 June 2020.

At the time of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances which would render any particulars included in the financial statements to be misleading or inaccurate.

The attached financial statements for Hesse Rural Health Service (ABN 12 766 864 906) and the Consolidated Entity have been prepared in accordance with Direction 5.2 
of the Standing Directions of the Assistant Treasurer under the Financial Management Act 1994 , applicable Financial Reporting Directions, Australian Accounting 
Standards including Interpretations, and other mandatory professional reporting requirements.

Board member's, accountable officer's and chief finance & accounting officer's declaration

Page 1

8th October, 2020 8th October, 2020 8th October, 2020
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Parent Parent Consolidated Consolidated
Note 2020 2019 2020 2019

$ $ $ $
Income from Transactions
Operating activities 2.1 8,952,661          8,449,850        11,818,059      11,325,183       
Non-operating activities 2.1 41,584               20,512             61,173             104,265            
Total Income from Transactions 8,994,245          8,470,362        11,879,232      11,429,448       

Expenses from Transactions
Employee expenses 3.1 (7,110,352)        (6,752,891)       (8,917,142)       (8,280,218)        
Supplies & consumables 3.1 (115,572)            (94,799)            (448,918)          (415,043)           
Depreciation 4.3 (688,095)            (560,095)          (1,066,090)       (865,120)           
Other operating expenses 3.1 (1,397,372)        (1,459,303)       (2,119,289)       (2,246,219)        
Total Expenses from Transactions (9,311,391)        (8,867,088)       (12,551,439)    (11,806,600)      

(317,146)            (396,726)          (672,207)          (377,152)           

3.2 36,819               (56,555)            36,819             (56,555)             
3.2 (19,074)              -                       (28,722)            (25,470)             
3.2 (25,165)              (47,126)            (25,165)            (47,126)             

(7,420)                (103,681)          (17,068)            (129,151)           

(324,566)            (500,407)          (689,275)          (506,303)           

Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to Net Result
Changes in physical asset revaluation surplus 4.2 (f) -                         1,132,590        -                       2,419,450         

Total Other Comprehensive Income -                         1,132,590        -                       2,419,450         
Comprehensive result for the year (324,566)            632,183           (689,275)          1,913,147         

This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

COMPREHENSIVE OPERATING STATEMENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

HESSE RURAL HEALTH 

Other Economic Flows included in Net Result

Net Gain/(Loss) on financial instruments at fair value

Total Other Economic Flows included in Net Result

Net Result for the year

Net Gain/(Loss) on non-financial assets

Net result from Transactions - Net Operating Balance

Other Gains/(Losses) from Other Economic Flows

Page 2

HESSE RURAL HEALTH SERVICE

COMPREHENSIVE OPERATING STATEMENT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020
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Parent Entity Parent Entity Consolidated Consolidated
Note 2020 2019 2020 2019

$ $ $ $

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6.2 2,782,291          1,413,096        6,527,893        5,308,769         
Receivables 5.1 286,284             316,061           306,307           346,564            
Prepayments and other assets 46,949               30,033             46,949             30,034               

Total Current Assets 3,115,524          1,759,190        6,881,149        5,685,367         

Non-Current Assets
Receivables 5.1 485,628             454,910           485,628           454,910            
Investment Properties 4.3 976,065             920,000           976,065           920,000            
Property, plant & equipment 4.1 9,637,940          9,886,094        14,666,613      15,257,526       

Total Non-Current Assets 11,099,633        11,261,004      16,128,306      16,632,436       

TOTAL ASSETS 14,215,157        13,020,194      23,009,455      22,317,803       

Current Liabilities
Payables 5.2 891,677             632,077           967,131           714,490            
Borrowings 6.1 71,118               29,408             71,118             29,408               
Provisions 3.3 1,288,077          1,259,450        2,042,278        2,002,828         
Other liabilities 5.3 4,158,154          2,893,499        8,134,862        7,000,854         

Total Current Liabilities 6,409,026          4,814,434        11,215,389      9,747,580         

Non-Current Liabilities
Borrowings 6.1 95,909               44,729             95,909             44,729               
Provisions 3.3 271,074             287,804           434,797           463,345            

Total Non-Current Liabilities 366,983             332,533           530,706           508,074            
TOTAL LIABILITIES 6,776,009          5,146,967        11,746,095      10,255,654       
NET ASSETS 7,439,148          7,873,227        11,263,360      12,062,149       

EQUITY
Property, plant & equipment revaluation surplus 3,777,194          3,777,194        7,371,810        7,371,810         
Restricted specific purpose surplus
Contributed capital 3,527,113          3,527,113        4,514,616        4,514,616         
Accumulated surpluses 134,841             568,920           (623,066)          175,723            

TOTAL EQUITY 7,439,148          7,873,227        11,263,360      12,062,149       

(0)                     
This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

HESSE RURAL HEALTH 

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 30 JUNE 2020

Page 3

HESSE RURAL HEALTH SERVICE

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 30 JUNE 2020
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Note

 Property, Plant 
& Equipment 
Revaluation 

Surplus 
 Contributed 

Capital 
 Accumulated 

Surpluses Total
Consolidated $ $ $ $

Balance at 1 July 2018 4,952,360          4,514,616        682,026           10,149,002       

Net Result for the year -                         -                       (506,303)          (506,303)           
Other Comprehensive Income for the year 2,419,450          -                       -                       2,419,450         

Balance at 30 June 2019 4.1(f) 7,371,810          4,514,616        175,723           12,062,149       
Effect of adoption of AASB15,16 & 1058. 8.10 -                         -                       (109,514)          (109,514)           
Restated balance at 30 June 2019 7,371,810          4,514,616        66,209             11,952,635       

-                         -                       (689,275)          (689,275)           
Other Comprehensive Income for the year -                         -                       -                       -                         

Balance at 30 June 2020 4.1(g) 7,371,810          4,514,616        (623,066)          11,263,360       

Note

 Property, Plant 
& Equipment 
Revaluation 

Surplus 
 Contributed 

Capital 
 Accumulated 

Surpluses Total
Parent $ $ $ $

Balance at 1 July 2018 2,644,604          3,527,113        1,069,327        7,241,044         

Net Result for the year -                         -                       (500,407)          (500,407)           
Other Comprehensive Income for the year 1,132,590          -                       -                       1,132,590         

Balance at 30 June 2019 4.1(f) 3,777,194          3,527,113        568,920           7,873,227         
8.10 -                         -                       (109,514)          (109,514)           

Restated balance at 30 June 2019 3,777,194          3,527,113        459,406           7,763,713         

-                         -                       (324,566)          (324,566)           
Other Comprehensive Income for the year -                         -                       -                       -                         

Balance at 30 June 2020 4.1(f) 3,777,194          3,527,113        134,841           7,439,148         

This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Net Result for the year

HESSE RURAL HEALTH 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Effect of adoption of AASB15,16 & 1058.

Net Result for the year

Page 4

HESSE RURAL HEALTH SERVICE

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020



652020 Annual Report  

HESSE RURAL HEALTH

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Parent Entity Parent Entity Consolidated Consolidated
Note 2020 2019 2020 2019

$ $ $ $
Cash Flows from Operating Activities 
Operating grants from government 7,260,823          6,505,141        9,338,477        8,559,025         
Capital grants from government 105,590             376,091           105,590           376,091            
Patient and resident fees received 823,478             721,182           1,690,992        1,358,487         
Donations and bequests received 42,279               64,982             42,379             79,732               
GST received from ATO 154,780             154,780           154,780           154,780            
Interest received 41,584               20,512             61,173             113,631            
Other receipts 849,145             546,021           768,284           603,027            
Total receipts 9,277,679          8,388,709        12,161,675      11,244,773       

Employee expenses paid (7,123,620)        (6,686,369)       (8,931,405)       (8,046,677)        
Payments for supplies & consumables (434,466)            (398,483)          (441,388)          (400,022)           
Finance costs (2,663)                (6,803)              (2,663)              (6,803)               
Payment for share of rural health alliance (288,418)            (275,135)          (288,418)          (275,135)           
Other payments (957,677)            (945,356)          (2,011,153)       (1,967,810)        
Total payments (8,806,843)        (8,312,146)       (11,675,027)    (10,696,447)      

Net Cash Flows from/(used in) Operating Activities 8.1 470,836             76,563             486,649           548,326            

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 
Purchase of non-financial assets (355,578)            (448,530)          (389,750)          (567,242)           
Proceeds from sale of non-financial assets 15,863               25,455             15,863             25,455               
Proceeds from Disposal of Investments -                         1,261,948        -                       3,061,948         

(339,715)            838,873           (373,887)          2,520,161         

Cash Flows from Financing Activities 
Repayment of Borrowings (6,781)                (838)                 (6,781)              (838)                  
Receipt of monies held in trust 218,157             42,156             218,157           42,156               
Receipt of accommodation bonds 1,074,472          580,000           3,062,472        2,228,600         
Repayment of accommodation bonds & loan obligations (47,774)              (1,346,016)       (2,167,486)       (1,943,692)        
Net Cash Flows from /(used in) Financing Activities 1,238,074          (724,698)          1,106,362        326,226            

1,369,195          190,738           1,219,123        3,394,713         

1,413,096          1,222,358        5,308,769        1,914,056         

6.2 2,782,291          1,413,096        6,527,893        5,308,769         

This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Held 

Net Cash Flows from/(used in) Investing Activities 

Page 5

HESSE RURAL HEALTH SERVICE

CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020
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HESSE RURAL HEALTH SERVICE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 30 JUNE 2020

Basis of presentation

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of Compliance

(b)  Reporting Entity
The financial statements include all the controlled activities of Hesse Rural Health.

Its principal address is:
8 Gosney Street
WINCHELSEA VIC 3241

(c) Basis of accounting preparation and measurement

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis (refer to Note 8.9 Economic Dependency).

A description of the nature of Hesse Rural Health's operations and its principal activities is included in the report of operations, which 
does not form part of these financial statements.

The accounting policies set out below have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2020, and the 
comparative information presented in these financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2019. 

These financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, the functional and presentation currency of the Health Service.

All amounts shown in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar, unless otherwise stated. Minor discrepancies in 
tables between totals and sum of components are due to rounding.

● The fair value of land, buildings and plant and equipment (refer to Note 4.1 Property, Plant and Equipment); investment property; and

● Employee benefit provisions are based on likely tenure of existing staff, patterns of leave claims, future salary movements and future 
discount rates (refer to Note 3.3 Employee Benefits).

These financial statements are presented in Australian dollars and the historical cost convention is used unless a different measurement basis 
is specifically disclosed in the note associated with the item measured on a different basis.

The accrual basis of accounting has been applied in the preparation of these financial statements whereby assets, liabilities, equity, income 
and expenses are recognised in the reporting period to which they relate, regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The Health Service is a not-for profit entity and therefore applies the additional Aus paragraphs applicable to “not-for-profit” Health 
Services under the AAS's.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and also in future periods that are 
affected by the revision. Judgements and assumptions made by management in the application of AAS's that have significant effects on 
the financial statements and estimates relate to: 

The financial statements, except for cash flow information, have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual 
basis, items are recognised as assets, liabilities, equity, income or expenses when they satisfy the definitions and recognition criteria for 
those items, that is, they are recognised in the reporting period to which they relate, regardless of when cash is received or paid.

These annual financial statements represent the audited general purpose financial statements for Hesse Rural Health and its controlled entity 
for the period ending 30 June 2020.  The purpose of the report is to provide users with information about the Health Service's stewardship of 
resources entrusted to it.

Hesse Rural Health Service operates on a fund accounting basis and maintains three funds: Operating, Specific Purpose and Capital 
Funds. The Hesse Rural Health Service's Capital and Specific Purpose Funds include unspent donations and receipts from fund-raising 
activities conducted solely in respect of these funds.

These financial statements are general purpose financial statements which have been prepared on in accordance with the Financial 
Management Act 1994 and applicable AAS's, which include interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB).  
They are presented in a manner consistent with the requirements of AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements.

The financial statements also comply with relevant Financial Reporting Directions (FRDs) issued by the Department of Treasury and 
Finance, and relevant Standing Directions (SDs) authorised by the Assistant Treasurer.

Accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner which ensures that the resulting financial information satisfies the concepts of 
relevance and reliability, thereby ensuring that the substance of the underlying transactions or other events is reported.

Judgements, estimates and assumptions are required to be made about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily 
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on professional judgements derived from historical 
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these 
estimates.

Page 6

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

HESSE RURAL HEALTH SERVICE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 30 JUNE 2020
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HESSE RURAL HEALTH SERVICE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 30 JUNE 2020

(c) Basis of accounting preparation and measurement (cont'd)

(d) Jointly Controlled Operation

(e) Principles Of Consolidation

These statements are presented on a consolidated basis in accordance with AASB 10 Consolidated Financial Statements :

The parent entity is not shown separately in the notes.

(f) Equity

Contributed Capital

The consolidated financial statements of Hesse Rural Health Service include Winchelsea Hostel and Nursing Home Society Inc. as at 30 
June 2020.

• its revenue from the sale of its share of the output from the joint operation;
• its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the operation; and

• its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly; 

• its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly.

Hesse Rural Health Service is a Member of the South West Alliance of Rural Health (SWARH) and retains joint control over the 
arrangement, which it has classified as a joint operation (refer to Note 8.8 Jointly Controlled Operations).

• any liabilities including its share of liabilities that it had incurred; 

Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant 
activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

In respect of any interest in joint operations, Hesse Rural Health recognises in the financial statements: 

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing activities which are 
recoverable from, or payable to the ATO, are presented as operating cash flow.

Goods and Services Tax (GST)
Income, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST incurred is not recoverable from the 
Australian Taxation Office (ATO). In this case the GST payable is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of 
the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or 
payable to, the ATO is included with other receivables or payables in the Balance Sheet. 

A state of emergency was declared in Victoria on 16 March 2020 due to the global coronavirus pandemic, known as COVID-19. A state 
of disaster was subsequently declared on 2 August 2020. 

For further details refer to Note 2.1 Funding delivery of our services and Note 4.1 Property, plant and equipment.

In response, Hesse Rural Health placed restrictions on non-essential visitors, implemented reduced visitor hours, made changes to staff 
rostering, and ceased the use of nurse agency staffing to replace absences.

Covid-19 pandemic

Regional areas have generally been less impacted by the pandemic, however the changed conditions continue to provide uncertainty 
and a reluctance from the community to engage as regularly with the Health Sector. The State Government has recognised the 
importance of a strong public health system and are providing ongoing support to ensure we remain financially viable and we can 
continue to support our staff who are at the front line of defence should the pandemic impact our community even more directly going 
forward.

To contain the spread of the virus and to prioritise the health and safety of our communities various restrictions have been announced 
and implemented by the state government, which in turn has impacted the manner in which businesses operate, including Hesse Rural 
Health.

Transfers of net assets arising from administrative restructurings are treated as distributions to or contributions by owners. Transfers of 
net liabilities arising from administrative restructurings are treated as distributions to owners. 

Other transfers that are in the nature of contributions or distributions or that have been designated as contributed capital are also treated 
as contributed capital.

Consistent with the requirements of AASB 1004 Contributions, contributions by owners (that is, contributed capital and its repayment) are 
treated as equity transactions and, therefore, do not form part of the income and expenses of Hesse Rural Health. 

Commitments and contingent assets and liabilities are presented on a gross basis.

Page 7
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HESSE RURAL HEALTH SERVICE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Note 2:   Funding delivery of our services

Structure
2.1 Income from Transactions

Note 2.1:   Income from Transactions Consolidated Consolidated
2020 2019

$ $

Government grants (State) - Operating 3,942,147            3,707,225            
Government grants (Commonwealth) - Operating (i) 5,252,818            4,922,048            
Government grants (State) - Capital 82,999                 376,091               
Other Capital purpose income 22,591                 18,451                 
Patient and Resident Fees 1,625,871            1,442,082            
SWARH revenue from jointly controlled assets 454,541               411,004               
Assets received free of charge or for nominal consideration 34,883                 86,462                 
Other Revenue from Operating Activities (including non-capital donations) 402,209               361,820               

11,818,059          11,325,183          

Interest 61,173                 104,265               
Total revenue from Non-Operating Activies 61,173                 104,265               

Total Revenue 11,879,232          11,429,448          

(i) Government Grant (Commonwealth) - Operating includes funding of $72,675 which was spent due to the impacts of COVID-19. 

Covid-19 Impacts

Government Grants 

a) contributions by owners, in accordance with AASB 1004; 
b) income for not-for-profit entities, in accordance with AASB 1058; 
c) revenue or a contract liability arising from a contract with a customer, in accordance with AASB 15; 
d) a lease liability in accordance with AASB 16;  
e) a financial instrument, in accordance with AASB 9; or 
f) a provision, in accordance with AASB 137 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets. 

Income from grants without any sufficiently specific performance obligations, or that are not enforceable, is recognised when Hesse Rural Health has an 
unconditional right to receive the cash which usually coincides with receipt of cash. On initial recognition of the asset, the health service recognises any 
related contributions by owners, increases in liabilities, decreases in assets, and revenue (‘related amounts’) in accordance with other Australian Accounting 
Standards. Related amounts may take the form of:

Income from grants that are enforceable and with sufficiently specific performance obligations are accounted for under AASB 15 as revenue from contracts 
with customers, with revenue recognised as these performance obligations are met.

As a result of the transitional impacts of adopting AASB 15 and AASB 1058, a portion of the grant revenue has been deferred. If the grant income is 
accounted for in accordance with AASB 15, the deferred grant revenue has been recognised in contract liabilities whereas grant revenue in relation to the 
construction of capital assets which the health service controls has been recognised in accordance with AASB 1058 and recognised as deferred grant 
revenue (refer note 5.2).

If the grant revenue was accounted for under the previous accounting standard AASB 1004 in 2019-20, capital grants would be recognised in full in the year 
in which they were received, and Commonwealth HACC funding would have been recognised in the period to which the funding applied.  There is no effective 
change in the period in which the health service recognises Commonwealth bed day subsidies received.

Hesse Rural Health's overall objective is to deliver programs and services that support and enhance the wellbeing of all Victorians.

To enable the health service to fulfill its objective it receives income based on parliamentary appropriations.  The health service also receives income from the 
supply of services.

Income from grants for the conversion to natural gas and to improve fire safety are recognised progressively as the capital expenditure is incurred. The 
progressive percentage costs incurred is used to recognise income because this most closely reflects the progress to completion as costs are incurred as the 
works are done.

Total revenue from Operating Activities

Due to the restrictions in place to reduce the spread of the COVID19 pandemic, the health service was unable to perform a Commonwealth funded social 
support program from April to June 2020.  Consequently the portion of funding received relating to this unperformed service obligation has been recognised 
as deferrred income (note 5.2). 

The health service received an additional one-off Commonwealth payment of $72,675 to cover the additional costs of caring for residents during the COVID-
19 pandemic linked to resident numbers.

Accounting Policies
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Note 2.1: Income from Transactions (Continued)

HESSE RURAL HEALTH SERVICE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Performance obligations

- Commonwealth funding for HACC programs
- Commonwealth funding for residential aged care (bed subsidies).

Patient and Resident Fees

Consolidated Consolidated
2020 2019

$ $

10,000                 -                           
24,883                 86,462                 
34,883                 86,462                 

Volunteer services

Grants can be received as general purpose grants, which refers to grants which are not subject to conditions regarding their use. Alternatively, they may be 
received as specific purpose grants, which are paid for a particular purpose and/or have conditions attached regarding their use. 

For non-reciprocal grants, Hesse Rural Health recognises revenue when the grant is received.

The performance obligations related to patient fees are based on the delivery of services. These performance obligations have been selected as they align 
with the terms and conditions of providing the services over time as Hesse Rural Health provides accommodation and/or patient services. This is calculated 
on a daily basis and invoiced monthly.

Non-cash contributions from the Department of Health and Human Services
The Department of Health and Human Services makes some payments on behalf of health services as follows:
• The Victorian Managed Insurance Authority non-medical indemnity insurance payments are recognised as revenue following advice from the Department of 
Health and Human Services

Hesse Rural Health has a number of volunteers who generously contribute their time to support staff led program and service activities. Activities undertaken 
by volunteers include friendly visiting to aged residents, assistance with small group programs, transportation of clients and residents on outings or to 
appointments, pastoral care and consumer representation on advisory committees. The volunteer program provides opportunities for broader community and 
social engagement. Though highly valued, these contributions would not have been purchased had they not been donated, and Hesse Rural Health does not 
depend on volunteers to deliver its services.

The exception to this would be when the resource is received from another government department (or agency) as a consequence of a restructuring of 
administrative arrangements, in which case such a transfer will be recognised at its carrying value in the transferring department or agency as a capital 
contribution transfer.  

Contributions of resources provided free of charge or for nominal consideration are recognised at their fair value when the recipient obtains control over the 
resources, irrespective of whether restrictions or conditions are imposed over the use of the contributions. 

2.1 (a)  Fair value of assets and services received free of charge or for nominal consideration.

Cash donations and gifts
Other services
Total fair value of assets and services received free of charge or for nominal consideration.

The following are transactions that Hesse Rural Health has determined to be classified as revenue from contracts with customers in accordance with AASB 
15. Due to the modified retrospective transition method chosen in applying AASB 15, comparative information has not been restated to reflect the new 
requirements. 

The types of government grants recognised under AASB15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers includes: 

For Commonwealth HACC funding, revenue is recognised monthly as the programs are run and the contact visits are being met. These performance 
obligations have been selected as they align with the terms and conditions of the funding provided.  

Some grants are reciprocal in nature (i.e. equal value is given back by the recipient of the grant to the provider). Hesse Rural Health recognises income when 
it has satisfied its performance obligations under the terms of the grant.  

Previous accounting policy for 30 June 2019 

For Commonwealth bed day subsidies, revenue is recognised monthly based on the actual number of bed days provided and assessed ACFI rates for each 
resident.

Grant income arises from transactions in which a party provides goods or assets (or extinguishes a liability) to Hesse Rural Health without receiving 
approximately equal value in return. While grants may result in the provision of some goods or services to the transferring party, they do not provide a claim to 
receive benefits directly of approximately equal value (and are termed ‘non-reciprocal’ transfers). Receipt and sacrifice of approximately equal value may 
occur, but only by coincidence.  

• Long Service Leave (LSL) revenue is recognised upon finalisation of movements in LSL liability in line with the long service leave funding arrangements set 
out in the relevant Department of Health and Human Services Hospital Circular
 • The fair value of assets and services received free of charge or for nominal consideration

Page 9

HESSE RURAL HEALTH SERVICE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 30 JUNE 2020



70 Annual Report 2020

HESSE RURAL HEALTH SERVICE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Performance obligations and revenue recognition policies

•

•
•

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in the contract with the customer. Hesse Rural Health recognises revenue when it transfers 
control of a good or service to the customer i.e. revenue is recognised when, or as, the performance obligations for the sale of goods and services to the 
customer are satisfied.

Interest Income
Interest revenue is recognised on a time proportionate basis that takes in account the effective yield of the financial asset, which allocates interest over the 
relevant period.

Other Income
Other income includes rental income, post acute care, community health programs, expense recoveries and reimbursements and donations and bequests.  If 
donations are for a specific purpose, they may be appropriated to a surplus, such as the restricted purpose surplus.

Customers obtain control of the supplies and consumables at a point in time when the goods are delivered to and have been accepted at their 
premises. 
Income from the sale of goods are recognised when the goods are delivered and have been accepted by the customer at their premises

Consideration received in advance of recognising the associated revenue from the customer is recorded as a contract liability (Note 5.2). Where the 
performance obligations is satisfied but not yet billed, a contract asset is recorded (Note 5.1).

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised at a point in time when the performance obligation is satisfied when the service is completed; 
and over time when the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the services as it is provided. 
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HESSE RURAL HEALTH SERVICE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Note 3: The Cost of delivering services

Structure
3.1 Expenses from transactions
3.2 Other Economic Flows
3.3 Employee benefits in the balance sheet
3.4 Superannuation

Note 3.1: Expenses from transactions Consolidated Consolidated
2020 2019

$ $
Salaries and Wages 7,871,321        7,278,520        
On-costs 722,021           625,666           
Agency Expenses 143,169           204,553           
Fee for Service Medical Officer Expenses 77,059             90,691             
Workcover Premium 103,572           80,788             

Total Employee Expenses 8,917,142        8,280,218        
Drug Supplies 12,495             14,241             
Medical and Surgical Supplies (including Prostheses) 116,773           95,947             
Other Supplies and Consumables 319,650           304,855           

Total Supplies and Consumables 448,918           415,043           
Finance Costs 2,663               6,803               

Total Finance Costs 2,663               6,803               
Other Administrative Expenses 1,589,473        1,762,216        

Total Other Administrative Expenses 1,589,473        1,762,216        
Fuel, Light, Power and Water 177,014           215,281           
Repairs and Maintenance 269,391           174,944           
Maintenance Contracts 42,264             45,498             
Medical Indemnity Insurance 7,530               8,175               
Expenditure for Capital Purposes 30,954             33,302             

Total Other Operating Expenses 527,153           477,200           
Total Operating Expenses 11,485,349      10,941,480      

Depreciation (refer Note 4.2) 1,066,090        865,120           
Total Depreciation and Amortisation 1,066,090        865,120           

Total Non-Operating Expenses 1,066,090        865,120           
Total Expenses from Transactions 12,551,439      11,806,600      

Expense Recognition
Expenses are recognised as they are incurred and reported in the financial year to which they relate.

Employee expenses
Employee expenses include:
• wages and salaries (including fringe benefits tax, leave entitlements, termination payments);
• On-costs;
• Agency expenses;
• Fee for service medical officer expenses;
• workcover premium.

Supplies and consumables

Finance costs

Other Operating Expenses

•      Fuel, light and power
•      Repairs and maintenance
•      Other administrative expenses

Non-operating expenses

This section provides an account of the expenses incurred by the Hesse Rural Health in delivering services and outputs.  In Section 2, the funds that enable the provision of 
services were disclosed and in this note the costs associated with provision of services are recorded. 

Supplies and services costs which are recognised as an expense in the reporting period in which they are incurred. The carrying amounts of any inventories held for distribution are 
expensed when distributed.

Finance costs include:
• finance charges in respect of finance leases which are recognised in accordance with AASB 16 Leases.

Other operating expenses generally represent the day-to-day running costs incurred in normal operations and include such things as: 

•      Expenditure for capital purposes (represents expenditure related to the purchase of assets that are below the capitalisation threshold). 
The Department of Health and Human Services also makes certain payments on behalf of Hesse Rural Health Service. These amounts have been brought to account as grants in 
determining the operating result for the year by recording them as revenue and also recording the related expense.

Other non-operating expenses generally represent expenditure for outside the normal operations such as depreciation and amortisation, and assets and services provided free of 
charge or for nominal consideration.
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HESSE RURAL HEALTH SERVICE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Operating lease payments

From 1 July 2019, the following lease payments are recognised on a straight-line basis:

- Short-term leases – leases with a term less than 12 months; and
- Low value leases – leases with the underlying asset’s fair value (when new, regardless of the age of the asset being leased) is no more than $10,000. 

Note 3.2:   Other economic flows Consol'd Consol'd
2020 2019

$ $
Net gain/(loss) on non‑financial assets
Net Gain/(Loss) from Fair Value Adjustment of investment property (note 4.3(a)) 55,000             (130,000)          
Net Gain/(Loss) from Fair Value Adjustment of Resident loan obligations - independent living units (note 5.3) (19,800)            76,341             
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property plant and equipment 1,619               (2,896)              
Total net gain/(loss) on non‑financial assets 36,819             (56,555)            
Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments 
Allowance for impairment losses of contractual receivables (28,722)            (25,470)            
Total net gain/(loss) on financial instruments (28,722)            (25,470)            
Other gains/(losses) from other economic flows
Net gain/(loss) arising from revaluation of long service liability (25,165)            (47,126)            
Total other gains/(losses) from other economic flows (25,165)            (47,126)            

Total other gains/(losses) from economic flows (17,068)            (129,151)          

Net gain/ (loss) on non-financial assets
Net gain/ (loss) on non-financial assets and liabilities includes realised and unrealised gains and losses as follows:
•      Revaluation gains/ (losses) of non-financial physical assets (Refer to Note 4.1 Property plant and equipment.)
•      Revaluation gains/ (losses) of non-financial physical assets (Refer to Note 4.3 Investment Properties and associated liability Note 5.3).
•      Net gain/ (loss) on disposal of non-financial assets
Any gain or loss on the disposal of non-financial assets is recognised at the date of disposal.

Net gain/ (loss) on financial instruments 
Net gain/ (loss) on financial instruments includes:

Other gains/ (losses) from other economic flows
Other gains/ (losses) include:

Operating lease payments up until 30 June 2019 (including contingent rentals) were recognised on a straight line basis over the lease term, except where another systematic basis 
is more representative of the time pattern of the benefits derived from the use of the leased asset.

 •the revaluation of the present value of the long service leave liability due to changes in the bond interest rates; and
 •reclassified amounts relating to available-for-sale financial instruments from the reserves to net result due to a disposal or derecognition of the financial instrument. This does not 

include reclassification between equity accounts due to machinery of government changes or ‘other transfers’ of assets.

Other economic flows are changes in the volume or value of an asset or liability that do not result from transactions. Other gains/(losses) from other economic flows include the 
gains or losses from:

•      the revaluation of the present value of the long service leave liability due to changes in the bond rate movements, inflation rate movements and the impact of changes in 
probability factors.

Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of the lease liability (i.e. variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the 
index or rate as at the commencement date). These payments are recognised in the period in which the event or condition that triggers those payments occur.

• impairment and reversal of impairment for financial instruments at amortised cost refer to Note 5.1 Receivables.
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HESSE RURAL HEALTH SERVICE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Note 3.3:   Employee benefits in the balance sheet Consol'd Consol'd
2020 2019

$ $
Current Provisions
Employee Benefits
Annual Leave

764,524           845,240           
123,681           134,849           

Long Service Leave
153,841           153,841           
782,474           658,617           

Accrued Days Off
34,119             26,316             

1,858,639        1,818,863        
Provisions related to Employee Benefit On-costs
   - Unconditional and expected to be utilised within 12 months (nominal value) 90,190             101,448           
   - Unconditional and expected to be utilised after 12 months (present value) 93,450             82,517             

183,639           183,965           

Total Current Provisions 2,042,278        2,002,828        

Non-Current Provisions
Long Service Leave (present value) 395,599           421,318           
Provisions related to Employee Benefit On-costs (present value) 39,198             42,027             
Total Non-Current Provisions 434,797           463,345           

Total Provisions 2,477,075        2,466,173        

(a) Employee Benefits and Related On-Costs

Current Employee Benefits and related on-costs
Unconditional Long Service Leave Entitlements 1,030,892        894,525           
Annual Leave 977,267           1,081,987        
Accrued Days Off 34,119             26,316             
Non-Current Employee Benefits and related on-costs
Conditional Long Service Leave Entitlements 434,797           463,345           
Total Employee Benefits and Related On-Costs 2,477,075        2,466,173        

(b) Movements in On-Costs Provisions: Consol'd Consol'd
2020 2019

$ $
Balance at start of year 225,992           225,992           
Additional provisions recognised (512)                 18,575             
Unwinding of discount and effect of changes in discount rate (2,642)              (4,948)              
Reduction due to transfer out -                       (13,627)            
Balance at end of year 222,837           225,992           

Employee Benefit Recognition

Provisions

Annual leave and Accrued Days off

- Nominal value – if Hesse Rural Health Service expects to wholly settle within 12 months; or
- Present value – if Hesse Rural Health Service does not expect to wholly settle within 12 months.

Long service leave (LSL)
Liability for LSL is recognised in the provision for employee benefits. 

The components of this current LSL liability are measured at:
- Nominal value – if Hesse Rural Health Service expects to wholly settle within 12 months; or
- Present value – if Hesse Rural Health Service does not expect to wholly settle within 12 months.

Conditional LSL is disclosed as a non-current liability.  Any gain or loss followed revaluation of the present value of non-current LSL liability is recognised as a transaction, except 
to the extent that a gain or loss arises due to changes in estimations e.g. bond rate movements, inflation rate movements and changes in probability factors which are then 
recognised as other economic flows.

Provisions are recognised when the Health Service has a present obligation, the future sacrifice of economic benefits is probable, and the amount of the provision can be 
measured reliably.

The amount recognised as a liability is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at reporting date, taking into account the risks and 
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of 
those cash flows, using a discount rate that reflects the time value of money and risks specific to the provision.

Depending on the expectation of the timing of settlement, liabilities for annual leave and accrued days off are measured at:

-Unconditional and expected to be settled wholly within 12 months (nominal value)

-Unconditional and expected to be settled wholly within 12 months (nominal value)
-Unconditional and expected to be settled wholly after 12 months (present value)

-Unconditional and expected to be settled wholly within 12 months (nominal value)
-Unconditional and expected to be settled wholly after 12 months (present value)

Unconditional LSL is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements as a current liability, even where the health service does not expect to settle the liability within 12 months 
because it will not have the unconditional right to defer the settlement of the entitlement should an employee take leave within 12 months. An unconditional right arises after a 
qualifying period.

Liabilities for annual leave and accrued days off are recognised in the provision for employee benefits as 'current liabilities' because Hesse Rural Health Service does not have an 
unconditional right to defer settlements of these liabilities.

Provision is made for benefits accruing to employees in respect of accrued days off, annual leave and long service leave for services rendered to the reporting date as an expense 
during the period the services are delivered.
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Termination benefits

On-costs related to employee expense

Note 3.4:   Superannuation
Consol'd Consol'd Consol'd Consol'd

2020 2019 2020 2019
Defined contribution plans: $ $ $ $
First State Super 595,314          498,959       126,707           126,707           
Total 595,314          498,959       126,707           126,707           

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated before the normal retirement date or when an employee decides to accept an offer of benefits in exchange for the 
termination of employment.

Provision for on-costs, such as payroll tax, workers compensation and superannuation are recognised separately from provisions for employee benefits.

Paid Contributions Contributions Outstanding

Employees of the Health Service are entitled to receive superannuation benefits and Hesse Rural Health contributes to defined contribution plans only. 

Superannuation contributions paid or payable for the reporting period are included as part of employee benefits in the comprehensive operating statement of the Health Service. 

Defined contribution superannuation plans
In relation to defined contribution (i.e. accumulation) superannuation plans, the associated expense is simply the employer contributions that are paid or payable in respect of 
employees who are members of these plans during the reporting period. Contributions to defined contribution superannuation plans are expensed when incurred.
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HESSE RURAL HEALTH SERVICE
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Note 4:   Key Assets to support service delivery

Structure
4.1  Property, plant & equipment
4.2  Depreciation
4.3  Investment properties

Note 4.1: Property, Plant & Equipment

Initial Recognition

Right-of-use asset – Subsequent measurement 

Revaluations of Non-Current Physical Assets

- any lease payments made at or before the commencement date; plus  
- any initial direct costs incurred; and  
- an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentive received.  

Subsequent measurement: Property, plant and equipment (PPE) as well as right-of-use assets under leases and service concession assets are subsequently measured at fair 
value less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Fair value is determined with regard to the asset’s highest and best use (considering legal or physical restrictions imposed on 
the asset, public announcements or commitments made in relation to the intended use of the asset) and is summarised on the following page by asset category.

Hesse Rural Health depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight line basis from the lease commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use 
asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful life of the right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as property, plant and equipment, other than where the 
lease term is lower than the otherwise assigned useful life.  The right-of-use assets are also subject to revaluation as required by FRD 103H, however as at 30 June 2020 right-of-
use assets have not been revalued.  

In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

Revaluation surplus is not normally not transferred to accumulated funds on derecognition of the relevant asset.

In accordance with FRD 103H Hesse Rural Health's non-current physical assets were assessed to determine whether revaluation of the non-current physical assets was required.  

The initial cost for non-financial physical assets under finance lease (refer to Note 6.1) is measured at amounts equal to the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, the present 
value of the minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease.

The health service controls infrastructure and other investments that are utilised in fulfilling its objectives and conducting its activities. They represent the key resources that have 
been entrusted to the health service to be utilised for delivery of those outputs.

Land and buildings are recognised initially at cost and subsequently measured at fair value less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss.

Theoretical opportunities that may be available in relation to the asset(s) are not taken into account until it is virtually certain that any restrictions will no longer apply. Therefore, 
unless otherwise disclosed, the current use of these non-financial physical assets will be their highest and best uses.

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured initially at cost and subsequently revalued at fair value less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss. Where an asset 
is acquired for no or nominal cost, the cost is its fair value at the date of acquisition. Assets transferred as part of a merger/machinery of government change are transferred at their 
carrying amounts.

Revaluation increases and revaluation decreases relating to individual assets within an asset class are offset against one another within that class but are not offset in respect of 
assets in different classes. 

Revaluation decrements are recognised in ‘other comprehensive income’ to the extent that a credit balance exists in the asset revaluation surplus in respect of the same class of 
property, plant and equipment. 

Right-of-use asset acquired by lessees (Under AASB 16 – Leases from 1 July 2019) – Initial measurement 

Hesse Rural Health recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost which comprises the 
initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for: 

Revaluation increments are recognised in ‘other comprehensive income’ and are credited directly in equity to the asset revaluation surplus, except that, to the extent that an 
increment reverses a revaluation decrement in respect of that same class of asset previously recognised as an expense in net result, the increment is recognised as income in the 
net result.

Non-current physical assets are measured at fair value and are revalued in accordance with FRD103H Non-current physical assets .  This revaluation process normally occurs at 
least every five years, based upon the asset's Government Purpose Classification, but may occur more frequently if fair value assessments indicate material changes in values. 
Independent valuers are used to conduct these scheduled revaluations and any interim revaluations are determined in accordance with the requirements of the FRDs. Revaluation 
increments or decrements arise from differences between an asset's carrying value and fair value.
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Non-specialised land and non-specialised buildings

Specialised land and specialised buildings

Vehicles

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The Valuer-General Victoria (VGV) is Hesse Rural Health Service’s independent valuation agency.

• Level 3 – valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable. 

Non-specialised land and non-specialised buildings are valued using the market approach. Under this valuation method, the assets are compared to recent comparable sales or 
sales of comparable assets which are considered to have nominal or no added improvement value.

An independent valuation of Hesse Rural Health Services' specialised land and specialised buildings was performed by the Valuer-General Victoria.  The valuation was performed 
using the market approach adjusted for CSO.  The effective date of the valuation is 30 June 2019.

Consideration of highest and best use (HBU) for non-financial physical assets

Unobservable inputs shall be used to measure fair value to the extent that relevant observable inputs are not available, thereby allowing for situations in which there is little, if any, 
market activity for the asset or liability at the measurement date. However, the fair value measurement objective remains the same, i.e., an exit price at the measurement date from 
the perspective of a market participant that holds the asset or owes the liability. Therefore, unobservable inputs shall reflect the assumptions that market participants would use 
when pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Level 3 fair value inputs are unobservable valuation inputs for an asset or liability. These inputs require significant judgement and assumptions in deriving fair value for both 
financial and non-financial assets.

Identifying unobservable inputs (level 3) fair value measurements

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, Hesse Rural Health Service has determined classes of assets on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset and the 
level of the fair value hierarchy as explained below.

In addition, Hesse Rural Health Service determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input 
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

• Level 1 – quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; 
• Level 2 – valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and 

The market approach is used for specialised land and specialised buildings although it is adjusted for the community service obligation (CSO) to reflect the specialised nature of 
the assets being valued. Under this valuation method, the assets are compared to recent comparable sales or sales of comparable assets which are considered to have nominal or 
no added improvement value. Specialised assets contain significant, unobservable adjustments; therefore these assets are classified as Level 3 under the market based direct 
comparison approach.

Specialised land includes Crown Land which is measured at fair value with regard to the property’s highest and best use after due consideration is made for any legal or physical 
restrictions imposed on the asset, public announcements or commitments made in relation to the intended use of the asset. Theoretical opportunities that may be available in 
relation to the assets are not taken into account until it is virtually certain that any restrictions will no longer apply. Therefore, unless otherwise disclosed, the current use of these 
non-financial physical assets will be their highest and best use.

In accordance with paragraph AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement  paragraph 29, Health Services can assume the current use of a non-financial physical asset is its HBU unless 
market or other factors suggest that a different use by market participants would maximise the value of the asset.

Judgements about highest and best use must take into account the characteristics of the assets concerned, including restrictions on the use and disposal of assets arising from the 
asset’s physical nature and any applicable legislative/contractual arrangements.

For non-specialised land and non-specialised buildings, an independent valuation was performed by the Valuer-General Victoria to determine the fair value using the market 
approach. Valuation of the assets was determined by analysing comparable sales and allowing for share, size, topography, location and other relevant factors specific to the asset 
being valued. An appropriate rate per square metre has been applied to the subject asset. The effective date of the valuation is 30 June 2019.

For Hesse Rural Health Service, the depreciated replacement cost method is used for the majority of specialised buildings, adjusting for the associated depreciation. As 
depreciation adjustments are considered as significant and unobservable inputs in nature, specialised buildings are classified as Level 3 for fair value measurements.

The CSO adjustment is a reflection of the valuer’s assessment of the impact of restrictions associated with an asset to the extent that is also equally applicable to market 
participants. This approach is in light of the highest and best use consideration required for fair value measurement, and takes into account the use of the asset that is physically 
possible, legally permissible and financially feasible. As adjustments of CSO are considered as significant unobservable inputs, specialised land would be classified as Level 3 
assets. 

Valuation hierarchy
In determining fair values a number of inputs are used. To increase consistency and comparability in the financial statements, these inputs are categorised into three levels, also 
known as the fair value hierarchy. The levels are as follows: 

The Health Service acquires new vehicles and at times disposes of them before completion of their economic life. The process of acquisition, use and disposal in the market is 
managed by the Health Service who set relevant depreciation rates during use to reflect the consumption of the vehicles. As a result, the fair value of vehicles does not differ 
materially from the carrying amount (depreciated cost).

During the reporting period, Hesse Rural Health Services held Crown Land. The nature of this asset means that there are certain limitations and restrictions imposed on its use 
and/or disposal that may impact their fair value.
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Plant and equipment

There were no changes in valuation techniques throughout the period to 30 June 2020.

For all assets measured at fair value, the current use is considered to be the highest and best use.

Consol'd Consol'd
Note 4.1(a): Property, plant and equipment -  Gross carrying amount and accumulated depreciation 2020 2019

$ $
Land
Land - Crown 1,343,000        1,343,000        
Land - Freehold 1,473,000        1,473,000        
TOTAL LAND AT FAIR VALUE 2,816,000        2,816,000        

Buildings
Buildings at Fair Value 11,830,241      11,701,000      

Less accumulated depreciation (848,581)          -                       
Sub-total Buildings at Fair Value 10,981,660      11,701,000      

Building Work in Progress at Cost 90,560             -                       

TOTAL BUILDINGS 11,072,220      11,701,000      

Plant and Equipment at fair value 1,324,136        1,263,012        
Less accumulated depreciation (959,330)          (879,930)          

TOTAL PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 364,806           383,082           

Motor Vehicles at fair value 474,961           502,925           
Less accumulated depreciation (319,463)          (288,271)          

TOTAL MOTOR VEHICLES 155,498           214,654           

Medical Equipment at fair value 107,298           104,998           
Less accumulated depreciation (92,800)            (89,128)            

TOTAL MEDICAL EQUIPMENT 14,498             15,870             

Right of use - equipment and motor vehicles 289,038           126,920           
Less accumulated depreciation (45,447)            -                       

TOTAL RIGHT OF USE - EQUIPMENT AND VEHICLES 243,591           126,920           

TOTAL PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14,666,613      15,257,526      

Consolidated Motor Plant & Medical Total
Land Buildings Vehicles Equipment Equipment Consolidated

$ $ $ $ $ $ $
Balance at 1 July 2018 2,605,339     9,864,361           245,689             373,415          7,093           68,408             13,164,305      
Additions -                    298,043              44,639               102,373          14,258         107,929           567,242           
Disposals -                    -                          (28,351)             -                     -                   -                       (28,351)            
Revaluation Increments 210,661        2,208,789           -                        -                     -                   -                       2,419,450        
Depreciation Expense (Note 4.2) -                    (670,193)             (47,323)             (92,706)          (5,481)          (49,417)            (865,120)          
Balance at 1 July 2019 2,816,000     11,701,000         214,654             383,082          15,870         126,920           15,257,526      
Recognition of right-of-use assets on initial 
application of AASB16 -                    -                          -                        -                     -                   104,984           104,984           
Adjusted balance at 1 July 2019 2,816,000     11,701,000         214,654             383,082          15,870         231,904           15,362,510      
Additions -                    219,801              -                        62,665            2,300           99,671             384,437           
Disposals -                    -                          (14,244)             -                     -                   -                       (14,244)            
Revaluation Increments -                    -                          -                        -                     -                   -                       -                       
Depreciation Expense (Note 4.2) -                    (848,581)             (44,912)             (80,941)          (3,672)          (87,984)            (1,066,090)       
Balance at 30 June 2020 2,816,000     11,072,220         155,498             364,806          14,498         243,591           14,666,613      

Land and buildings carried at valuation

There was no material financial impact on change in fair value of land or buildings with the indices indicating that the change in value of land and buildings was less than 10%.

Note 4.1(b): Property, plant and equipment - Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of each class of asset

A full revaluation of Hesse Rural Health's land and buildings was performed by the Valuer-General of Victoria (VGV) in May 2019 in accordance with the requirements of Financial 
Reporting Direction (FRD) 103H Non-Financial Physical Assets. The valuation, which conforms to Australian Valuation Standards, was determined by reference to the amounts for 
which assets could be exchanged between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. The effective date of the valuation for both land and buildings was 30 June 
2019.

 Right of use 
assets 

Plant and equipment (including medical equipment, computers and communication equipment and furniture and fittings are held at carrying amount (depreciated cost). When plant 
and equipment is specialised in use, such that it is rarely sold other than as part of a going concern, the depreciated replacement cost is used to estimate the fair value. Unless 
there is market evidence that current replacement costs are significantly different from the original acquisition cost, it is considered unlikely that depreciated replacement cost will 
be materially different from the existing carrying amount. 

In compliance with FRD 103H, in the year ended 30 June 2020, the entity's management conducted an annual assessment of the fair value of buildings. To facilitate this, 
management obtained from the Department of Treasury and Finance the Valuer General Victoria indices for the financial year ended 30 June 2020. 

Management regards the VGV indices to be a reliable and relevant data set to form the basis of their estimates. Whilst these indices are applicable at 30 June 2020, the fair value 
of land and buildings will continue to be subjected to the impacts of COVID-19 in future accounting periods.  
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Note 4.1 ( c); Property plant and equipment - fair value measurement hierarchy of assets

Note
Balance at 30 June 2020 Level 1 (i) Level 2 (i) Level 3 (i)

$ $ $ $

Non-specialised land 1,055,000       1,055,000        -                       
Specialised land 1,761,000       -                   -                       1,761,000        
Total of land at fair value 4.1(a) 2,816,000       -                   1,055,000        1,761,000        

Non-specialised buildings 60,000            60,000             -                       
Specialised buildings 10,921,660     -                   -                       10,921,660      
Total of buildings at fair value 4.1(a) 10,981,660     -                   60,000             10,921,660      

Plant and equipment at fair value 4.1(a) 364,806          -                   -                       364,806           
Motor Vehicles at fair value 4.1(a) 155,498          -                   -                       155,498           
Medical equipment at fair value 4.1(a) 14,498            -                   -                       14,498             
Total other plant and equipment at fair value 534,802          -                   -                       534,802           
Total Property, Plant and Equipment 14,332,462     -                   1,115,000        13,217,462      

Note
Balance at 30 June 2019 Level 1 (i) Level 2 (i) Level 3 (i)

$ $ $ $
Land at fair value
Non-specialised land 1,055,000       1,055,000        -                       
Specialised land 1,761,000       -                   -                       1,761,000        
Total of land at fair value 4.1(a) 2,816,000       -                   1,055,000        1,761,000        

Buildings at fair value
Non-specialised buildings 60,000            60,000             -                       
Specialised buildings 11,641,000     -                   -                       11,641,000      
Total of buildings at fair value 4.1(a) 11,701,000     -                   60,000             11,641,000      

Plant and equipment at fair value 4.1(a) 383,082          -                   -                       383,082           
Motor Vehicles at fair value 4.1(a) 214,654          -                   -                       214,654           
Medical equipment at fair value 4.1(a) 15,870            -                   -                       15,870             
Total other plant and equipment at fair value 613,606          -                   -                       613,606           
Total Property, Plant and Equipment 15,130,606     -                   1,115,000        14,015,606      

Note
(i) Classified in accordance with the fair value hierarchy, 

Note 4.1 (d): Property, plant and equipment - Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement

Consolidated Motor Vehicles
$ $ $ $ $

Balance at 1 July 2019 1,761,000          11,641,000     214,654       383,082           15,870             
Purchases (sales) -                        129,241          (14,244)        62,665             2,300               
Transfers in (out) of Level 3 -                       -                       
Gains or losses recognised in net result
- Depreciation -                        (848,581)        (44,912)        (80,941)            (3,672)              

Balance at 30 June 2020 1,761,000          10,921,660     155,498       364,806           14,498             

Consolidated Motor Vehicles
$ $ $ $ $

Balance at 1 July 2018 2,605,339          9,670,674       245,689       373,415           7,093               
Purchases (sales) -                        491,730          16,288         102,373           14,258             
Transfers in (out) of Level 3 (1,055,000)        (60,000)          -                   -                       -                       
Gains or losses recognised in net result
- Depreciation -                        (670,193)        (47,323)        (92,706)            (5,481)              
- Impairment loss -                        -                     -                       -                       
Subtotal 1,550,339          9,432,211       214,654       383,082           15,870             

Items recognised in other comprehensive income
- Revaluation 210,661             2,208,789       -                   -                       -                       
Subtotal 210,661             2,208,789       -                       -                       

Balance at 30 June 2019 1,761,000          11,641,000     214,654       383,082           15,870             

Land

Buildings

Buildings

Plant and 
equipment

Medical 
equipment

Fair value measurement at end of reporting period 
using:

There is a transfer between non-specialised land and specialised land to reflect the correct fair value as per the managerial revaluation in 2019. There have been no transfers between levels during the current year.

Medical 
equipment

Land

Consolidated 
carrying amount

Consolidated 
carrying amount

Plant and 
equipment

Fair value measurement at end of reporting period 
using:
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Note 4.1 (e): Property, plant and equipment - fair value determination

Asset class Fair 
value level

Non‑specialised buildings Level 2 

Vehicles Level 3

Consol'd Consol'd
Note 2020 2019

Property, Plant & Equipment Revaluation Surplus $ $
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 7,371,810        4,952,360        
Revaluation Increments

 - Land 4.2(b) -                       210,661           
 - Buildings 4.2(b) -                       2,208,789        

Balance at the end of the reporting period 7,371,810        7,371,810        
Represented by:

 - Land 1,679,732        1,679,732        
 - Buildings 5,692,078        5,692,078        

7,371,810        7,371,810        

Note 4.2:   Depreciation Consol'd Consol'd
2020 2019

$ $
Buildings 848,581           670,193           
Plant & Equipment 80,941             92,706             
Motor Vehicles 44,912             47,323             
Medical Equipment 3,672               5,481               
Right of use assets
- Right of use equipment and vehicles 87,984             49,417             
Total Depreciation 1,066,090        865,120           

Depreciation

The following table indicates the expected useful lives of non current assets on which the depreciation charges are based.

2020 2019
Buildings

 - Structure Shell Building Fabric 50 to 75 years 50 to 75 years
 - Site Engineering Services and Central Plant 30 to 40 years 30 to 40 years

Central Plant 
 - Fit Out 25 to 30 years 25 to 30 years
 - Trunk Reticulated Building Systems 30 to 40 years 30 to 40 years

Plant & Equipment 5 to 10 years 5 to 10 years
Medical Equipment 5 to 10 years 5 to 10 years
Computers & Communications 5 years 5 years
Furniture & Fittings 5 to 10 years 5 to 10 years
Motor Vehicles 5 to 10 years 5 to 10 years
Leasehold Improvements 5 to 10 years 5 to 10 years

Right-of use assets are depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term. Where Hesse Rural Health obtains ownership of the underlying leased asset or if 
the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the entity will exercise a purchase option, the entity depreciates the right-of-use asset overs its useful life.

Specialised Land (Crown / Freehold)

All buildings, plant and equipment and other non-financial physical assets (excluding items under operating leases, assets held for sale, land and investment properties) that have 
finite useful lives are depreciated. Depreciation is generally calculated on a straight-line basis at rates that allocate the asset’s value, less any estimated residual value over its 
estimated useful life. 

Specialised buildings 

Market approach

Level 3

Valuation approach

Market approach

Depreciated replacement cost approach

As part of the Buildings valuation, building values were separated into components and each component assessed for its useful life which is represented above. 

Assets with a cost in excess of $1,000 are capitalised and depreciation has been provided on depreciable assets so as to allocate their cost or valuation over their estimated useful 
lives. 

Depreciated replacement cost approachLevel 3 - Cost per unit
- Useful life

Market approach

n.a.

Community Service Obligations Adjustments 

n.a.
- Cost per  square metre
- Useful life

Plant and equipment 

Significant inputs (Level 3 only)

Depreciated replacement cost approach - Cost per unit; useful life

Level 2

Note 4.1 (f): Property, plant and equipment - Revaluation Surplus

Level 3

Non‑specialised land
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Note 4.3:   Investment properties

Consol'd Consol'd
Note 4.3(a): Movements in carrying value for investment properties as at 30 June 2020 2020 2019

$ $
Balance at Beginning of Period 920,000           1,050,000        
Acquisition and capital expenditure 1,065               -                       
Net Gain/(Loss) from Fair Value Adjustments (note 3.2) 55,000             (130,000)          
Balance at End of Period 976,065           920,000           

Note 4.3 (b): Fair value measurement hierarchy for investment properties

Level 1 (i) Level 2 (i) Level 3 (i)
$ $ $ $

Investment properties 976,065          -                   976,065           -                       
976,065          -                   976,065           -                       

Level 1 (i) Level 2 (i) Level 3 (i)
$ $ $ $

Investment properties 920,000          -                   920,000           -                       
920,000          -                   920,000           -                       

Note
(i) Classified in accordance with the fair value hierarchy, 

Investment properties

Carrying amount 
as at 30 June 

2020

Fair value measurement at end of reporting period 
using:

The fair value of the Health Service’s investment properties at 30 June 2020 have been arrived on the basis of an independent valuation carried out by Opteon. The valuation was 
determined by reference to market evidence of transaction process for similar properties with no significant unobservable adjustments, in the same location and condition.

For investment properties measured at fair value, the current use of the asset is considered the highest and best use.

Investment properties are initially recognised at cost. Costs incurred subsequent to initial acquisition are capitalised when it is probable that future economic benefits in excess of 
the originally assessed performance of the asset will flow to the Health Service.

Net gains or losses on revaluation are recognised as other economic flows included in net result.

Rental revenue from leasing of investment properties is recognised in the comprehensive operating statement in the periods in which it is receivable on a straight line basis over 
the lease term. 

Fair value measurement at end of reporting period 
using:

Hesse Rural Health has assets classified as investment property for the purposes of AASB140 Investment Property, including independent living units.  These assets are carried at 
amounts which represent fair value at balance date.

Carrying amount 
as at 30 June 

2019

Investment properties represent properties held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Investment properties exclude properties held to meet service delivery objectives 
of the health services.

There have been no transfers between levels during the period. There were no changes in valuation techniques throughout the period to 30 June 2019.

Subsequent to initial recognition at cost, investment properties are revalued to fair value, determined annually by independent valuers. Fair values are determined based on a 
market comparable approach that reflects recent transaction prices for similar properties. Investment properties are neither depreciated nor tested for impairment.
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Note 5: Other Assets and liabilities

This section sets out those assets and liabilities that arose from the health service's operations.

Structure
5.1  Receivables
5.2  Payables
5.3  Other liabilities

Note 5.1: Receivables Consol'd Consol'd
2020 2019

CURRENT Notes $ $
Contractual
Patient and Resident Fees 7.1 (c ) 137,871           231,714           
Trade Debtors 7.1 (c ) 151,674           150,909           
   Allowance for expected credit losses (16,600)            (97,197)            

272,945           285,426           
Statutory
GST Receivable 33,362             39,799             
Commonwealth Subsidies -                       18,838             
Accrued Revenue - Department of Health and Human Services -                       2,501               

33,362             61,138             
TOTAL CURRENT RECEIVABLES 306,307           346,564           

NON-CURRENT
Statutory
 Long Service Leave - Department of Health and Human Services 485,628           454,910           
TOTAL NON-CURRENT RECEIVABLES 485,628           454,910           

TOTAL RECEIVABLES 791,935           801,474           

Note 5.1 (a): Movement in the Allowance for impairment losses of contractual receivables

Balance at beginning of year (97,197)            (71,727)            
Amounts written off during the year 109,319           -                       
Increase in allowance recognised in net result (28,722)            (25,470)            
Balance at end of year (16,600)            (97,197)            

Receivables consist of:

Impairment losses of contractual receivables

• Contractual receivables, which consists of debtors in relation to goods and services and accrued investment income. These receivables are classified as financial instruments 
and categorised as ‘financial assets at amortised costs’. They are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Hesse Rural Health Service holds 
the contractual receivables with the objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less 
any impairment. 

Refer to Note 7.1 ( c) Contractual receivables at amortised costs for Hesse Rural Health Service’s contractual impairment losses.

• Statutory receivables, which predominantly includes amounts owing from the Victorian Government and Goods and Services Tax (GST) input tax credits recoverable. Statutory 
receivables do not arise from contracts and are recognised and measured similarly to contractual receivables (except for impairment), but are not classified as financial instruments 
for disclosure purposes. Hesse Rural Health Service applies AASB 9 for initial measurement of the statutory receivables and as a result statutory receivables are initially 
recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction cost.

Hesse Rural Health Service is not exposed to any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of counterparties having similar characteristics. Trade 
receivables consist of a large number of customers in various geographical areas. Based on historical information about customer default rates, management consider the credit 
quality of trade receivables that are not past due or impaired to be good.

Receivables recognition

Trade debtors are carried at nominal amounts due and are due for settlement within 30 days from the date of recognition. 

In assessing impairment of statutory (non-contractual) financial assets, which are not financial instruments, professional judgement is applied in assessing materiality using 
estimates, averages and other computational methods in accordance with AASB 136 Impairment of Assets.
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Note 5.2:   Payables Consol'd Consol'd
Notes 2020 2019

CURRENT $ $
Contractual
Trade Creditors 75,382             303,689           
SWARH Payables 220,719           108,718           
Accrued Salaries and Wages 352,318           284,812           
Accrued Expenses 25,300             -                       
Contract Liabilities - income received in advance 5.2(b) 177,715           -                       
Deferred grant revenue 5.2(a) 87,064             -                       
Inter-hospital creditors 28,633             5,518               

967,131           702,737           
Statutory
Commonwealth -                       11,753             

-                       11,753             
Total Current 967,131           714,490           
TOTAL PAYABLES 967,131           714,490           

Payables consist of:

Maturity analysis of payables
Please refer to Note 7.1(b) for the maturity analysis of payables.

Consol'd
2020

$

109,514           
50,100             

(72,550)            
87,064             

Consol'd
Note 5.2 (b) Contract liabilities 2020

$
-                       

620,874           
(443,159)          

Total contract liabilities 177,715           
Represented by
Current contract liabilities 177,715           

Contract liabilities include the following:

DHHS WIES funding

SWARH joint venture

Commonwealth Aged Care Bed Subsidies

Grant consideration was received from DHHS for the conversion to natural gas, and for Fire Services upgrades.  Grant revenue is recognised progressively as the 
asset is constructed, since this is the time when Hesse Rural Health satisfies its obligations under the transfer by controlling the asset as and when it is 
constructed. The progressive percentage costs incurred is used to recognise income because this most closely reflects the progress to completion as costs are 
incurred as the works are done. (see note 2.1) As a result, Hesse Rural Health has deferred recognition of a portion of the grant consideration received as a 
liability for the outstanding obligations.

Note 5.2 (a) Deferred capital grant revenue

Due to the restrictions arising from the COVID19 pandemic, the Social Support Group activities ceased from March-June 2020.  The income received for the quarter ending 30 
June 2020 has been recognised as contract liabilities as the performance obligations have not been met during the year.

Grants are received from the State Government in advance to support TAC and DVA Wies targets. Grant income is recognised as service obligations are met. Differences in the 
number of some services provided may be adjusted in the funding provided annually. The remaining grant revenue is recognised when the service obligations are delivered in the 
following year.  

Commonwealth Aged Care Bed Subsidies are received monthly in advance.  Grant income is recognised as service obligations are met.  Differences in the number of bed days, 
payment rates and supplements may be adjusted in the funding provided in the following month.

Commonwealth Social Support Group - Community & Home Support

The normal credit terms are usually Net 30 days. 

• contractual payables which consist predominantly of accounts payable representing liabilities for goods and services provided to the Health Service prior to the end of the 
financial year that are unpaid, and arise when the health service becomes obliged to make future payments in respect of the purchase of those goods and services.  

• statutory payables, that are recognised and measured similarly to contractual payables, but are not classified as financial instruments and not included in the category of 
financial liabilities at amortised cost, because they do not arise from contracts. 

Hesse Rural Health records its share of jointly controlled assets and liabilities.

Opening balance brought forward from 30 June 2019 adjusted for AASB 15 

Payables

Add: Grant consideration for sufficiently specific performance obligations received during the year 
Less: Grant revenue for sufficiently specific performance obligations works recognised consistent with the performance obligations met during 

Grant consideration for capital works received during the year
Grant revenue for capital works recognised consistent with the capital works undertaken during the year 

Grant consideration for capital works recognised that was included in the deferred grant liability balance (adjusted for AASB 1058) at the 
beginning of the year 

Closing balance of deferred grant consideration received for capital works 
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Consol'd
Note 5.2 (c) Grant consideration 2020

$
-                       

264,779           
Total 264,779           

Note 5.3:   Other Liabilities Consol'd Consol'd
CURRENT 2020 2019

$ $
Monies held in trust*: Patient monies held in trust 21,153             61,268             
Monies held in trust*: Refundable accommodation bonds 7,405,663        6,509,612        
Monies held in trust*: Home Care Packages held in trust 357,046           98,774             
Total monies held in trust* 7,783,862        6,669,654        

Resident loan obligations - independent living units 351,000           331,200           
Total Other Liabilities 8,134,862        7,000,854        

* Total Monies Held in Trust Represented by the following assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents (refer to Note 6.2) 4,830,931        3,716,723        
Land and Buildings - Residential Aged Care 2,952,931        2,952,931        
TOTAL 7,783,862        6,669,654        

Refundable Accommodation Deposit (“RAD”)/Accommodation Bond liabilities 

Resident loan obligations - independent living units

Revenue recognised from performance obligations satisfied in previous periods 

Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations from contracts with customers to be recognised in:

RAD/accommodation bond liabilities are recorded at an amount equal to the proceeds received, net of retention and any other amounts deducted from the RAD/accommodation 
bond in accordance with the Aged Care Act 1997.

RADs/accommodation bonds are non-interest-bearing deposits made by some aged care residents to the Group upon admission. These deposits are liabilities which fall due and 
payable when the resident leaves the home. As there is no unconditional right to defer payment for 12 months, these liabilities are recorded as current liabilities. 

Resident loan obligations are ingoing contributions made by residents occupying units subject to independent living agreements.  Hesse Rural Health acquired these liabilities 
upon acquisition of the independent living units. The resident loan obligations are revalued annually based on the current market value of the investment property (refer note 3.2).  
The amount repayable to the resident under the independent living agreement is based on a percentage of the current market value of the investment property. These deposits are 
liabilities which fall due and payable when the resident leaves the home. As there is no unconditional right to defer payment for 12 months, these liabilities are recorded as current 
liabilities. 

Not longer than one year
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Note 6: How we Finance our Operations

Structure
6.1  Borrowings
6.2  Cash and cash equivalents
6.3  Commitments for expenditure
6.4  Non-cash financing and investing activities

Note 6.1:   Borrowings Consol'd Consol'd
2020 2019

Current $ $
Lease liability (i) 71,118             29,408             
Total Current 71,118             29,408             

Non-Current
Lease liability (i) 95,909             44,729             
Total Non-Current 95,909             44,729             

TOTAL BORROWINGS 167,027           74,137             

(i) Secured by the assets leased. Leases are effectively secured as the rights to the leased assets revert to the lessor in the event of a default.

(a) Maturity analysis of borrowings
Please refer to Note 7.1 (b) for the maturity analysis of borrowings.

(b) Defaults and breaches
During the current and prior year, there have been no defaults and breaches of any of the borrowings.

(c) Lease liabilities
Repayments in relation to leases are payable as follows:

Consol'd Consol'd Consol'd Consol'd
2020 2019 2020 2019

$ $ $ $
Not later than one year 72,910            30,149         71,118             29,408             
Later than one year but not longer than five years 95,909            44,729         95,909             44,729             
Minimum Lease Payments 168,819          74,878         167,027           74,878             
Less Future Finance Charges 1,792              741              -                       -                       
TOTAL 167,027          74,137         167,027           74,137             

Included in the financial statements as:
Current borrowings - lease liability 71,118             29,408             
Non-current borrowings - lease liability 95,909             44,729             

167,027           74,137             

The weighted average interest rate implicit in the lease is 2.52%

Borrowings recognition

Hesse Rural Health's leasing activities

This policy is applied to contracts entered into, or changed, on or after 1 July 2019. 

Present value of minimum 
future lease payments

This section provides information on the sources of finance utilised by the hospital during its operations, along with interest expenses (the cost of borrowings) and other information 
related to financing activities of the hospital.

This section includes disclosures of balances that are financial instruments (such as borrowings and cash balances).  Note: 7.1 provides additional, specific financial instrument 
disclosures.

 Minimum future lease 
payments 

Hesse Rural Health has entered into commercial leases on motor vehicles used primarily for district nursing services provided by the Health Service with the lease terms of three to 
five years, and photocopiers with lease terms of 5 years.

For any new contracts entered into on or after 1 July 2019, Hesse Rural Health Service considers whether a contract is, or contains a lease. A lease is defined as ‘a contract, or 
part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration’. To apply this definition Hesse Rural Health 
assesses whether the contract meets three key evaluations which are whether: 

 •Hesse Rural Health has the right to take decisions in respect of ‘how and for what purpose’ the asset is used throughout the period of use. 

 •the contract contains an identified asset, which is either explicitly identified in the contract or implicitly specified by being identified at the time the asset is made available to 
Hesse Rural Health and for which the supplier does not have substantive substitution rights;  

A lease is a right to use an asset for an agreed period of time in exchange for payment. All leases are recognised on the balance sheet, with the exception of low value leases (less 
than $10,000 AUD) and short term leases of less than 12 months.

 •Hesse Rural Health has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified asset throughout the period of use, considering its rights within 
the defined scope of the contract and Hesse Rural Health has the right to direct the use of the identified asset throughout the period of use;  

Page 24

Note 6.1: Borrowings

NOTE 6: HOW WE FINANCE OUR OPERATIONS

HESSE RURAL HEALTH SERVICE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 30 JUNE 2020



852020 Annual Report  
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Separation of lease and non-lease components 

Recognition and measurement of leases as a lessee (under AASB 16 from 1 July 2019) 

Lease Liability – initial measurement 

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following: 

Lease Liability – subsequent measurement 

Short-term leases and leases of low value assets 

Presentation of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities 

Recognition and measurement of leases (under AASB 117 until 30 June 2019) 

Entity as lessee

When the lease liability is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset, or profit and loss if the right of use asset is already reduced to zero.

- Short-term leases – leases with a term less than 12 months; and 
- Low value leases – leases with the underlying asset’s fair value (when new, regardless of the age of the asset being leased) is no more than $10,000.

Leases are recognised as assets and liabilities at amounts equal to the fair value of the lease property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payment, each 
determined at the inception of the lease. The lease assets under the PPP arrangement are accounted for as a non-financial physical asset and is depreciated over the term of the 
lease plus five years. Minimum lease payments are apportioned between reduction of the outstanding lease liability, and the periodic finance expense which is calculated using the 
interest rate implicit in the lease, and charged directly to the Comprehensive Operating Statement. Contingent rentals associated with leases are recognised as an expense in the 
period in which they are incurred.

Hesse Rural Health presents right-of-use assets as ‘property plant equipment’ unless they meet the definition of investment property, in which case they are disclosed as 
‘investment property’ in the balance sheet. Lease liabilities are presented as ‘borrowings’ in the balance sheet.

In the comparative period, leases of property, plant and equipment were classified as either finance lease or operating leases.

Contingent rentals associated with finance leases were recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

Assets held under other leases were classified as operating leases and were not recognised in Hesse Rural Health's balance sheet. Operating lease payments were recognised as 
an operating expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

Operating lease payments up until 30 June 2019 (including contingent rentals) are recognised on a straight line basis over the lease term, except where another systematic 
basis is more representative of the time pattern of the benefits derived from the use of the leased asset.

Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of the lease liability (i.e. variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the 
index or rate as at the commencement date). These payments are recognised in the period in which the event or condition that triggers those payments occur.

Hesse Rural Health determined whether an arrangement was or contained a lease based on the substance of the arrangement and required an assessment of whether fulfilment 
of the arrangement is dependent on the use of the specific asset(s); and the arrangement conveyed a right to use the asset(s).

Leases of property, plant and equipment where Hesse Rural Health as a lessee had substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership were classified as finance leases. 
finance leases were initially recognised as assets and liabilities at amounts equal to the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease 
payment, each determined at the inception of the lease. The leased asset is accounted for as a non-financial physical asset and depreciated over the shorter of the estimated 
useful life of the asset or the term of the lease. Minimum finance lease payments were apportioned between the reduction of the outstanding lease liability and the periodic finance 
expense, which is calculated using the interest rate implicit in the lease and charged directly to the consolidated comprehensive operating statement. 

 •variable payments based on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date; 
 •amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and 
 •payments arising from purchase and termination options reasonably certain to be exercised. 

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased for interest. It is remeasured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or if 
there are changes in-substance fixed payments.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments unpaid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that 
rate is readily determinable or Hesse Rural Health's incremental borrowing rate.

 •fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentive receivable; 

From 1 July 2019, the following lease payments are recognised on a straight-line basis: 

Hesse Rural Health has elected to account for short-term leases and leases of low value assets using the practical expedients. Instead of recognising a right of use asset and 
lease liability, the payments in relation to these are recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight line basis over the lease term.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the lessee is required to separate out and account separately for non-lease components within a 
lease contract and exclude these amounts when determining  the lease liability and right-of-use asset amount. 
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Note 6.2:   Cash and Cash Equivalents
Consol'd Consol'd

2020 2019
$ $

Cash on Hand (excluding monies held in trust) (622)                 (622)                 
Cash at Bank (excluding monies held in trust) 529,983           70,292             
Cash at Bank (Monies held in trust) 378,199           160,042           
Deposits at Call (excluding monies held in trust) 1,167,601        1,522,376        
Deposits at Call (Monies held in trust) 4,452,732        3,556,681        
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 6,527,893        5,308,769        

Note 6.3:   Commitments for Expenditure Consol'd Consol'd
2020 2019

$ $
Non-cancellable Short Term and low value lease commitments
Less than 1 year 12,218             93,584             
Longer than 1 year but not longer than 5 years -                       88,366             
Total Non-cancellable Lease Commitments 12,218             181,950           

TOTAL COMMITMENTS FOR EXPENDITURE (exclusive of GST) 12,218             181,950           

Future lease payments are recognised on the balance sheet, refer to Note 6.1 Borrowings.

Commitments

Note 6.4:  Non-cash financing and investing activities Consol'd Consol'd
2020 2019

$ $

           104,984                       -  

104,984           -                       

Hesse Rural Health has entered into rental of office space for the delivery of community health services in Bannockburn with remaining lease term of 9 months.

The cash flow statement includes monies held in trust.

Commitments for future expenditure include operating and capital commitments arising from contracts. These commitments are disclosed by way of a note at their nominal value 
and are inclusive of the GST payable. In addition, where it is considered appropriate and provides additional relevant information to users, the net present values of significant 
individual projects are stated. These future expenditures cease to be disclosed as commitments once the related liabilities are recognised on the balance sheet.

Acquisition of property and equipment by means of leases

Total Non-cash financing and investing activities

Cash and cash equivalents recognised on the balance sheet comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, deposits at call and highly liquid investments (with an original maturity of 
three months or less), which are held for the purpose of meeting short term cash commitments rather than for investment purposes, which are readily convertible to known 
amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.
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Note 7: Risks, Contingencies & Valuation Uncertainties

Introduction

Structure
7.1  Financial instruments
7.2  Contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Note 7.1:   Financial Instruments

Note 7.1(a ) Financial Instruments: categorisation

Consolidated
2020

Note
$ $ $

Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 6.2 6,527,893       -                   6,527,893        
Receivables

- Trade Debtors 5.1 289,545          -                   289,545           
Total Financial Assets (i) 6,817,438       -                   6,817,438        
Financial Liabilities
Payables 5.2 -                     967,131       967,131           
Borrowings 6.1 -                     167,027       167,027           
Other Financial Liabilities

- Accommodation bonds 5.3 -                     7,405,663    7,405,663        
- Resident loan obligations - independent living units 5.3 -                     351,000       351,000           
- Other monies held in trust 5.3 -                     378,199       378,199           

Total Financial Liabilities (i) -                     9,269,020 9,269,020        

Consolidated
2019

Note
$ $ $

Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 6.2 5,308,769       -                   5,308,769        
Receivables

- Trade Debtors 5.1 285,426          -                   285,426           
Total Financial Assets (i) 5,594,195       -                   5,594,195        
Financial Liabilities
Payables 5.2 -                     702,737       702,737           
Borrowings 6.1 -                     74,137         74,137             
Other Financial Liabilities

- Accommodation bonds 5.3 -                     6,509,612    6,509,612        
- Resident loan obligations - independent living units 5.3 -                     331,200       331,200           
- Other monies held in trust 5.3 -                     160,042       160,042           

Total Financial Liabilities (i) -                     7,777,728 7,777,728        

Financial Assets 
at Amortised 

Cost

Contractual 
Financial 

Liabilities at 
Amortised Cost

Financial instruments arise out of contractual agreements that give rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Due to the 
nature of Hesse Rural Health Service's activities, certain financial assets and financial liabilities arise under statute rather than a contract. Such financial assets and financial 
liabilities do not meet the definition of financial instruments in AASB 132 Financial Instruments: Presentation.  

The health service is exposed to risk from its activities and outside factors. In addition, it is often necessary to make judgements and estimates associated with recognition and 
measurement of items in the financial statements. This section sets out financial instrument specific information, (including exposures to financial risks) as well as those items that 
are contingent in nature or require a higher level of judgement to be applied, which for the health service is related mainly to fair value determination.

Financial Assets 
at Amortised 

Cost

Contractual 
Financial 

Liabilities at 
Amortised Cost Total

Total

(i) The carrying amount excludes statutory receivables (i.e. GST receivable and DHHS receivable) and statutory payables (i.e. Revenue in Advance and DHHS payable).
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Note 7.1:   Financial Instruments (cont'd)

 - Payables (excluding statutory payables)
 - Borrowings (leases)
 - Other liabilities

Derecognition of financial assets

Derecognition of financial liabilities

Note 7.1 (b) Maturity Analysis of financial liabilities as at 30 June

Consolidated
Financial Liabilities Carrying Nominal Less than 1-3 3 Months - 1-5 Over 5
At amortised cost Note Amount Amount 1 Month Months 1 Year Years Years
2020 $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Payables 5.2          967,131 967,131              967,131             -                   -                       -                       
Borrowings 6.1          167,027 167,027              3,134                 9,402              58,582         95,909             -                       
Other Financial Liabilities 5.3

- Accommodation bonds       7,405,663 7,405,663           -                        -                     2,128,577    5,277,086        -                       
- Resident loan obligations - independent living units          351,000 351,000              -                        -                     -                   351,000           -                       
- Resident monies held in trust          378,199 378,199              368,259             9,940              -                   -                       -                       

Total Financial Liabilities       9,269,020             9,269,020           1,338,524             19,342      2,187,159         5,723,995                       -  

2019
Payables 5.2          702,737 702,737              702,737             -                   -                       -                       
Borrowings 6.1            74,137 74,137                -                        -                     74,137         -                       -                       
Other Financial Liabilities 5.3

- Accommodation bonds       6,509,612 6,509,612           -                        -                     1,900,000    4,609,612        -                       
- Resident loan obligations - independent living units          331,200 331,200              -                        -                     -                   331,200           -                       
- Resident monies held in trust          160,042 160,042              160,042             -                     -                   -                       -                       

Total Financial Liabilities       7,777,728             7,777,728              862,779                      -       1,974,137         4,940,812                       -  

(i) Maturity analysis of financial liabilities excludes statutory financial liabilities (i.e. GST payable)

Financial assets are measured at amortised costs if both of the following criteria are met and the assets are not designated as fair value through net result:
• the assets are held by Hesse Rural Health Service to collect the contractual cash flows, and
• the assets’ contractual terms give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interests.

Impairment of financial assets: At the end of each reporting period, Hesse Rural Health Service assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of 
financial assets is impaired. All financial instrument assets, except those measured at fair value through profit or loss, are subject to annual review for impairment.

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset 
have expired.

Hesse Rural Health recognises the following liabilities in this category:

Maturity Dates

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Financial assets at amortised cost

The following table discloses the contractual maturity analysis for Hesse Rural Health Service’s financial liabilities. For interest rates applicable to each class of liability refer to 
individual notes to the financial statements.

The allowance is the difference between the financial asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. In 
assessing impairment of statutory (non-contractual) financial assets, which are not financial instruments, professional judgement is applied in assessing materiality using 
estimates, averages and other computational methods in accordance with AASB 136 Impairment of Assets.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost are initially recognised on the date they are originated. They are initially measured at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction 
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these financial instruments are measured at amortised cost with any difference between the initial recognised amount and the redemption 
value being recognised in profit and loss over the period of the interest-bearing liability, using the effective interest rate method.

These assets are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method 
less any impairment. 
The health service recognises the following assets in this category:
• cash and deposits; and
• receivables (excluding statutory receivables).
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Note 7.1(c) Contractual receivables at amortised cost

Less than 1-3 3 Months - 1-5
1 Month Months 1 Year Years Total

$ $ $ $ $ $
Expected loss rate 0% 4% 3% 29% 100%
Gross carrying amount of contractual receivables 45,175                53,159               146,975          65,587         71,727             382,623           
Loss allowance -                          2,078                 4,293              19,099         71,727             97,197             

Less than 1-3 3 Months - 1-5
1 Month Months 1 Year Years Total

$ $ $ $ $ $
Expected loss rate 0% 4% 10% 12% 20%
Gross carrying amount of contractual receivables 166,647              36,284               9,876              14,408         62,330             289,545           
Loss allowance -                          1,451                 968                 1,715           12,466             16,600             

Impairment of financial assets under AASB 9 Financial Instruments 

Reconciliation of the movement in the loss allowance for contractual receivables 2020 2019
$ $

Balance at beginning of the year (97,197)            (71,727)            
Opening Loss Allowance (97,197)            (71,727)            
Increase in provision recognised in net result (28,722)            (25,470)            
Reversal of provision of receivables written off during the year as uncollectible 109,319           -                       
Reversal of unused provision recognised in the net result -                       -                       
Balance at end of the year (16,600)            (97,197)            

Note 7.2:   Contingent Assets and Contingent Liabilities

Financial guarantee
Hesse Rural Health Service has provided a financial guarantee of $100,000 in relation to payroll services.

Equity instruments are not subject to impairment under AASB 9 Financial Instruments. Other financial assets mandatorily measured or designated at fair value through net result 
are not subject to impairment assessment under AASB 9 Financial Instruments. While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the impairment requirements of AASB 9 
Financial Instruments, any identified impairment loss would be immaterial. 

1/07/2019 Current

Hesse Rural Health Service records the allowance for expected credit loss for the relevant financial instruments, in accordance with AASB 9 Financial Instruments ‘Expected Credit 
Loss’ approach. Subject to AASB 9 Financial Instruments, impairment assessment includes the health service’s contractual receivables, statutory receivables and its investment in 
debt instruments. 

Credit loss allowance is classified as other economic flows in the net result. Contractual receivables are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery and 
impairment losses are classified as a transaction expense. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the same line item.

In prior years, a provision for doubtful debts is recognised when there is objective evidence that the debts may not be collected and bad debts are written off when identified. A 
provision is made for estimated irrecoverable amounts from the sale of goods when there is objective evidence that an individual receivable is impaired. Bad debts considered as 
written off by mutual consent. 

Statutory receivables at amortised cost 

Hesse Rural Health Service’s non-contractual receivables arising from statutory requirements are not financial instruments. However, they are nevertheless recognised and 
measured in accordance with AASB 9 requirements as if those receivables are financial instruments. 

On this basis, Hesse Rural Health Service determines the opening loss allowance on initial application date of AASB 9 and the closing loss allowance at end of the financial year 
as disclosed above.

30/06/2020 Current

The statutory receivables are considered to have low credit risk, taking into account the counterparty’s credit rating, risk of default and capacity to meet contractual cash flow 
obligations in the near term. As the result, the loss allowance recognised for this financial asset during the period was limited to 12 months expected losses. No loss allowance 
recognised at 30 June 2018 under AASB 139. No additional loss allowance was required upon transition into AASB 9 on 1 July 2018.

Contractual receivables at amortised cost

Hesse Rural Health Service applies AASB 9 simplified approach for all contractual receivables to measure expected credit losses using a lifetime expected loss allowance based 
on the assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.Hesse Rural Health Service has grouped contractual receivables on shared credit risk characteristics and days 
past due and select the expected credit loss rate based on past history, existing market conditions, as well as forward looking estimates at the end of the financial year. 

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised in the balance sheet, but are disclosed by way of note and, if quantifiable, are measured at nominal value. 
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are presented inclusive of GST receivable or payable respectively.
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Note 8:  Other Disclosures

Structure
8.1  Reconciliation of net result for the year to net cash inflow / (outflow) from operating activities
8.2  Responsible persons disclosures
8.3  Remuneration of Executive officers
8.4  Related parties
8.5  Remuneration of auditors
8.6  Events occurring after the balance sheet date
8.7  Controlled entities
8.8  Jointly Controlled Operations
8.9  Economic Dependency
8.10  Changes in Accounting Policy
8.11  AASBs issued that are not yet effective

Consol'd Consol'd

2020 2019
$ $

Net Result for the Year (689,275)          (506,303)          

Non-Cash Movements
Depreciation 1,066,090        865,120           
Revaluation of ILU loan obligation 19,800             -                       
Movements included in investing and financing activities
Net (gain)/loss from disposal of non financial physical assets (1,619)              2,896               
Net (gain) / loss on revaluation of independent living units (55,000)            53,659             
Movements in assets and liabilities:
Change in Operating Assets & Liabilities

Increase/(Decrease) in Payables 143,127           81,995             
Increase/(Decrease) in Employee Entitlements 10,902             280,667           
(Increase)/Decrease in Receivables 9,539               (235,562)          
(Increase)/Decrease in Prepayments (16,915)            5,854               

Net Cash Inflow From Operating Activities 486,649           548,326           

Note 8.2:  Responsible Persons Disclosures

From To
Responsible Ministers:
The Honourable Jenny Mikakos, Minister for Health, Minister for Ambulance Services 1/07/2019 30/06/2020
The Honourable Luke Donnellan Minister for Child Protection, Minister for Disability, Ageing and Carers 1/07/2019 30/06/2020

Governing Board
K. Taylor 1/07/2019 30/06/2020
N. Hutton 1/07/2019 30/06/2020
M. Dean 1/07/2019 30/06/2020
M. Arnott 1/07/2019 30/06/2020
A. Bennett 1/07/2019 30/06/2020
P. Nemtsas 1/07/2019 30/06/2020
T. O'Loughlin 1/07/2019 30/06/2020
M. Stocks 1/07/2019 30/06/2020
J. Sutherland 1/07/2019 30/06/2020
L. Wong 1/07/2019 30/06/2020
S. Bottrell 1/07/2019 9/12/2019

Accountable Officers
P. Birkett (Chief Executive Officer) 1/07/2019 30/06/2020

In accordance with the Ministerial Directions issued by the Assistant Treasurer under the Financial Management Act 1994, the following 
disclosures are made regarding responsible persons for the reporting period. Period

Note 8.1:   Reconciliation of Net Result for the Year to Net Cash Inflow / (Outflow) from 
Operating Activities

This section includes additional material disclosures required by accounting standards or otherwise, for the understanding of this financial report.
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Remuneration of Responsible Persons
Parent Parent
2020 2019

Income Band reported in $'000 $ $
$0 - $9,999 11 11
$230,000 - $239,999 -                       -                       
$240,000 - $249,999 1 1
Total Numbers 12                    12                    

2020 2019
$ $

$306,541 $273,950

Note 8.3: Remuneration of Executives

Remuneration of Executives

Parent Parent
2020 2019

Remuneration of executive officers $ $
Short-term benefits 106,671 143,451
Post-employment benefits 8,221 21,958
Other long-term benefits 3,989 4,188
Termination benefits 108,416           46,000             
Total Remuneration (i) 227,297 215,597
Total number of executives 2 1

1 1

(ii) Annualised employee equivalent is based on the time fraction worked over the reporting period.

Note 8.4:   Related parties

·        all key management personnel and their close family members;
·        all cabinet ministers and their close family members

·        all hospitals and public sector entities that are controlled and consolidated into the whole of state consolidated financial statements.

All related party transactions have been entered into on an arm’s length basis.

Other long-term benefits include long service leave, other long-service benefit or deferred compensation.

Termination benefits include termination of employment payments, such as severance packages.

Amounts relating to the Governing Board Members and Accountable Officer are disclosed in Hesse Rural Health Service’s controlled entity's financial statements.

Amounts relating to Responsible Ministers are reported within the Department of Parliamentary Services’ Financial Report. 

On this basis, Hesse Rural Health Service determines the opening loss allowance on initial application date of AASB 9 and the closing loss allowance at end of the financial year 
as disclosed above.

Total annualised employee equivalent (AEE) (ii)

.        jointly Controlled Operation - A member of the SWARH IT alliance; and

The health service is a wholly owned and controlled entity of the State of Victoria. Related parties of the health service include:

Total remuneration received or due and receivable by Responsible Persons from the 
reporting entity amounted to:

.        Controlled entities - Winchelsea Hostel and Nursing Home Society Inc.

KMPs are those people with the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Health Service and its controlled entities, directly or indirectly. 
The Board of Directors and the Executive Directors of Hesse Rural Health Service and it’s controlled entities are deemed to be KMPs.

(i) The total number of executive officers includes persons who meet the definition of Key Management Personnel (KMP) of Hesse Rural Health Service under AASB 124 Related 
Party Disclosures and are also reported within Note 8.4 Related Parties. 

Remuneration comprises employee benefits in all forms of consideration paid, payable or provided in exchange for services rendered, and is disclosed in the following categories. 

Post-employment benefits include pensions and other retirement benefits paid or payable on a discrete basis when employment has ceased.

Short-term employee benefits include amounts such as wages, salaries, annual leave or sick leave that are usually paid or payable on a regular basis, as well as non-monetary 
benefits such as allowances and free or subsidised goods or services.

The number of executive officers, other than Ministers and Accountable Officers, and their total remuneration during the reporting period are shown in the table below. Total 
annualised employee equivalent provides a measure of full time equivalent executive officers over the reporting period.
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Entity KMP's Position Title
Hesse Rural Health K. Taylor Chair of the Board
Hesse Rural Health N. Hutton Board member
Hesse Rural Health M. Dean Board member
Hesse Rural Health M. Arnott Board member
Hesse Rural Health A. Bennett Board member
Hesse Rural Health P. Nemtsas Board member
Hesse Rural Health T. O'Loughlin Board member
Hesse Rural Health M. Stocks Board member
Hesse Rural Health J. Sutherland Board member
Hesse Rural Health L. Wong Board member
Hesse Rural Health S. Bottrell Board member
Hesse Rural Health P. Birkett Chief Executive Officer
Hesse Rural Health A. Coles Director of Nursing
Hesse Rural Health M. McLeod Director of Clinical Services

Parent Parent
2020 2019

Compensation $ $
Short term employee benefits 355,369           375,726           
Post-employment benefits 58,811             57,165             
Other long-term benefits 11,242             10,655             
Termination benefits 108,416           46,000             
Total (i) 533,838           489,546           

(i) KMPs are also reported in Note 8.2 Responsible Persons or Note 8.3 Remuneration of Executives.

Significant transactions with government related entities

- Payroll processing charges paid to Colac Area Health.
- Patient transport fees paid to Ambulance Victoria
- Purchase of drugs and medical supplies from Colac Area Health and South West Healthcare.
- Provision of District Nursing services to Barwon Health, Colac Area Health, Ballarat Health Service and the Alfred Hospital.

Transactions with key management personnel and other related parties

Other Transactions of Responsible Persons and their Related Entities

The compensation detailed below is reported in $’s and excludes the salaries and benefits the Portfolio Ministers receive. The Minister’s remuneration and allowances is set by the 
Parliamentary Salaries and Superannuation Act 1968, and is reported within the Department of Parliamentary Services’ Financial Report.

Outside of normal citizen type transactions with Hesse Rural Health Service, there were no related party transactions that involved key management personnel, their close family 
members and their personal business interests, except for the transactions listed below. No provision has been required, nor any expense recognised, for impairment of 
receivables from related parties. There were no related party transactions with Cabinet Ministers required to be disclosed in 2019.

- Professional medical indemnity insurance and other insurance products are obtained from a Victorian Public Financial Corporation.

The Chief Financial Officer, Stephen Wight, is a director of Davidsons Accountants and Business Consultants, which provided accounting, bookkeeping and consulting services to 
Hesse Rural Health Service on normal commercial terms and conditions.  Total payments made to Davidsons Accountants and Business Consultants in the financial year were 
$119,430 (2019 $104,475).

There were no related party transactions required to be disclosed for the Hesse Rural Health Service Board of Directors, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Directors in 2020.

Hesse Rural Health received funding from the Department of Health and Human Services of $4.0 million (2019: $4.1 million). 
  
During the year, Hesse Rural Health had the following government-related entity transactions which are undertaken on a normal commercial basis: 

Given the breadth and depth of State government activities, related parties transact with the Victorian public sector in a manner consistent with other members of the public e.g. 
stamp duty and other government fees and charges. Further employment of processes within the Victorian public sector occur on terms and conditions consistent with the Public 
Administration Act 2004 and Codes of Conduct and Standards issued by the Victorian Public Sector Commission. Procurement processes occur on terms and conditions 
consistent with the Victorian Government Procurement Board requirements. 

Key management personnel of Hesse Rural Health
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Note 8.5:   Remuneration of Auditors Consol'd Consol'd
2020 2019

Victorian Auditor-General's Office $ $
Audit of financial statement 34,500             35,500             

34,500             35,500             
Note 8.6:  Events Occurring after the Balance Date

Note 8.7:  Controlled Entities
Equity

Name of Entity Country of Incorporation Holding
Winchelsea Hostel and Nursing Home Society Inc. 100%

Control is established due to both entities having common Board of Management.

Controlled Entities contribution to the consolidated results
2020 2019

$ $
Net Result for the year $'000 $'000

Winchelsea Hostel and Nursing Home Society Inc. (365)                 1,281               

Note 8.8:  Jointly Controlled Operations and Assets

Interest in Jointly Controlled Operations Principal Activity 2020 2019
% %

South West Alliance of Rural Health (SWARH) Information Technology 2.34% 2.13%

2020 2019
Current Assets $ $
Cash and Cash Equivalents 203,498           30,731             
Receivables 150,807           150,042           
Other Assets 13,701             11,483             
Total Current Assets 368,006           192,256           
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant & Equipment 134,919           126,920           
Receivables 13,365             -                       
Total Non-Current Assets 148,284           126,920           
Total Assets 516,290           319,176           

Current Liabilities
Payables 220,719           108,718           
Finance lease liabilities 22,749             29,408             
Deferred income 111,215           -                       
Employee Benefits 39,991             36,588             
Total Current Liabilities 394,674           174,714           
Non-Current Liabilities
Finance lease liabilities 30,201             44,729             
Employee Benefits 7,545               5,253               
Total Non Current Liabilities 37,746             49,982             
Total Liabilities 432,420           224,696           
Net Assets 83,870             94,480             

Revenues
Revenue from Operating Activities 454,541           411,004           
Capital Purpose Income 22,591             -                       
Total Revenue 477,132           411,004           

Expenses
Employee Benefits 208,025           170,521           
Maintenance Contract and IT Support 220,493           52,144             
Other Expenses from Continuing Operations -                       93,168             
Finance Costs 2,352               6,803               
Depreciation 42,537             49,417             
Total Expenses 473,407           372,053           
Net Result 3,725               38,951             

No additional matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the reporting period which further significantly affects or may significantly affect the operations of the Health 
Service, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the Health Service. 

Australia

The Health Service interest in revenues and expenses resulting from jointly controlled operations and assets is detailed below, based on 
unaudited figures:

The Health Service interest in assets employed in the above jointly controlled operations and assets is detailed below. The 
amounts are included in the financial statements under their respective asset categories:

The COVID-19 pandemic has created unprecedented economic uncertainty. Actual economic events and conditions in the future may be materially different from those estimated 
by Hesse Rural Health at the reporting date. As responses by government continue to evolve, management recognises that it is difficult to reliably estimate with any degree of 
certainty the potential impact of the pandemic after the reporting date on Hesse Rural Health, its operations, its future results and financial position. The state of emergency in 
Victoria was extended on 13 September 2020 untill 11 October 2020 and the state of disaster still in place.
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Note 8.9:  Economic dependency

Note 8.10:  Changes in Accounting Policy

Leases

Impacts on financial statements 

1/07/2019
$

        181,950 

        115,079 

          74,137 

Recognition exemption for:

Short term leases         (84,232)

Leases of low-value assets                    -  

        104,984 

For leases that were classified as finance leases under AASB 117, the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset and lease liability at 1 July 2019 are determined as the carrying 
amount of the lease asset and lease liability under AASB 117 immediately before that date.  

Hesse Rural Health has elected to apply the following practical expedients when applying AASB 16 to leases previously classified as operating leases under AASB 117: 
 •Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics; 
 •Adjusted the right-of-use assets by the amount of AASB 137 onerous contracts provision immediately before the date of initial application, as an alternative to an impairment 

review; 
 •Applied the exemption not to recognise right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12 months of lease term; 
 •Excluded initial direct costs from measuring the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application; and  
 •Used hindsight when determining the lease term if the contract contains options to extend or terminate the lease. 

On transition to AASB 16, Hesse Rural Health recognised $104,984 of right-of-use assets and $104,984 of lease liabilities. 
When measuring lease liabilities, Hesse Rural Health discounted lease payments using its incremental borrowing rate at 1 July 2019. The weighted average rate applied is 3%.  

Total Operating lease commitments disclosed at 30 June 2019

Discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at 1 July 2019

Finance lease liabilities as at 30 June 2019

This note explains the impact of the adoption of AASB 16 Leases on Hesse Rural Health’s financial statements. 

Hesse Rural Health has applied AASB 16 with a date of initial application of 1 July 2019. Hesse Rural Health has elected to apply AASB 16 using the modified retrospective 
approach, as per the transitional provisions of AASB 16 for all leases for which it is a lessee. The cumulative effect of initial application is recognised in retained earnings as at 1 
July 2019. Accordingly, the comparative information presented is not restated and is reported under AASB 117 and related interpretations.  

Previously, Hesse Rural Health determined at contract inception whether an arrangement is or contains a lease under AASB 117 and Interpretation 4 – ‘Determining whether an 
arrangement contains a Lease’. Under AASB 16, Hesse Rural Health assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based on the definition of a lease as explained in note 6.1.  

On adoption of AASB 16, Hesse Rural Health recognised lease liabilities in relation to leases which had previously been classified as operating leases under the principles of AASB 
117 Leases. These liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using Hesse Rural Health’s incremental borrowing rate as of 1 July 
2019. On transition, right-of-use assets are measured at the amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that 
lease recognised in the balance sheet as at 30 June 2019.  

As a lessee, Hesse Rural Health previously classified leases as operating or finance leases based on its assessment of whether the lease transferred significantly all of the risks 
and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset to Hesse Rural Health. Under AASB 16, Hesse Rural Health recognises right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all 
leases except where exemption is availed in respect of short-term and low value leases.  

Hesse Rural Health is dependent on the Department of Health and Human Services for the majority of its revenue used to operate the entity. At the date of this report, the Board of 
Directors has no reason to believe the Department will not continue to support Hesse Rural Health.

On transition to AASB 16, Hesse Rural Health has elected to apply the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases. It applied AASB 16 only 
to contracts that were previously identified as leases. Contracts that were not identified as leases under AASB 117 and Interpretation 4 were not reassessed for whether there is a 
lease. Therefore, the definition of a lease under AASB 16 was applied to contracts entered into or changed on or after 1 July 2019.  

Leases classified as operating leases under AASB 117 

Lease liabilities recognised at 1 July 2019
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Revenue from Contracts with Customers 

Comparative information has not been restated. 

Income of Not-for-Profit Entities 

Comparative information has not been restated. 

Notes

Consolidated

Balance Sheet $ $  $ 
Property, Plant and Equipment
Total non-financial assets 4.1
Total Assets           15,257,526           104,984       15,362,510 
Payables and Contract Liabilities 5.2                714,490           109,514            824,004 
Borrowings 6.1                  74,137           104,984            179,121 
Total Liabilities                788,627           214,498         1,003,125 
Accumulated surplus/(deficit)                175,723          (109,514)              66,209 
Physical Revaluation Surplus             7,371,810                      -          7,371,810 
Other items in equity             4,514,616                      -          4,514,616 
Total Equity           12,062,149          (109,514)       11,952,635 

 Property, Plant & 
Equipment 
Revaluation 

Surplus 
 Contributed 

Capital 
 Accumulated 

Surpluses Total
$ $ $ $

Consolidated
Balance at 1 July 2018 4,952,360           4,514,616          682,026          10,149,002      
Net Result for the year -                          -                        (506,303)        (506,303)          
Other Comprehensive Income for the year 2,419,450           -                        -                     2,419,450        
Balance at 30 June 2019 7,371,810           4,514,616          175,723          12,062,149      
Change in accounting policy (due to AASB15, 1058) -                          -                        (109,514)        (109,514)          

7,371,810           4,514,616          66,209            11,952,635      
-                          -                        (689,275)        (689,275)          

Other Comprehensive Income for the year -                          -                        -                     -                       
Balance at 30 June 2020 7,371,810           4,514,616          (623,066)        11,263,360      

                                  15,257,526                                        104,984                               15,362,510 

Restated Balance at 1 July 2019
Net Result for the year

For the financial year ended 30 June 2020
Statement of changes in equity – changes for AASB 1058 and AASB 15 adoption

In accordance with FRD 121 requirements, Hesse Rural Health has applied the transitional provision of AASB 15, under modified retrospective method with the cumulative effect of 
initially applying this standard against the opening retained earnings at 1 July 2019. Under this transition method, Hesse Rural Health applied this standard retrospectively only to 
contracts that are not ‘completed contracts’ at the date of initial application. Hesse Rural Health has not applied the fair value measurement requirements for right-of-use assets 
arising from leases with significantly below-market terms and conditions principally to enable the entity to further its objectives as allowed under temporary option under AASB 16 
and as mandated by FRD 122.

Note 2.1 – Sales of goods and services includes details about the transitional application of AASB 15 and how the standard has been applied to revenue transactions.  

In accordance with FRD 122 requirements, Hesse Rural Health has applied the transitional provision of AASB 1058, under modified retrospective method with the cumulative effect 
of initially applying this standard against the opening retained earnings at 1 July 2019. Under this transition method, Hesse Rural Health applied this standard retrospectively only to 
contracts and transactions that are not completed contracts at the date of initial application. 

Transition impact on financial statements. 
This note explains the impact of the adoption of the following new accounting standards for the first time, from 1 July 2019: 
 •AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers; 
 •AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities; and 
 •AASB 16 Leases.  

Note 2.1.2 – Grants includes details about the transitional application of AASB 1058 and how the standard has been applied to revenue transactions.  
The adoption of AASB 1058 did not have an impact on Other comprehensive income and the Statement of Cash flows for the financial year. 

Before new accounting standards

Opening 1 July 2019

Impact of new accounting 
standards AASB16,15 &1058

                                  15,257,526                                        104,984 

After new accounting 
standards

Impact on Balance Sheet due to the adoption of AASB 15, AASB 1058 and AASB 16 is illustrated with the following reconciliation between the restated carrying amounts at 30 
June 2019 and the balances reported under the new accounting standards (AASB 15 and AASB 16) at 1 July 2019: 

 Opening 1 July 2019 

                              15,362,510 
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Note 8.11:  AASBs issued that are not yet effective

Standard / Interpretation Applicable for 
annual reporting 

periods 
beginning on 

AASB 2018-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards – Definition of Material

1 Jan 2020

AASB 2018-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards – Deferral of AASB 1059

1 January 2020
(The State is 
intending to early 
adopt AASB 1059 
for annual 
reporting periods 
beginning on or 
after 1 January 
2019)

•      AASB 2017-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Transfers of Investment Property, Annual Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle and Other Amendments
•      AASB 2017-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
•      AASB 2017-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures
•      AASB 2018-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Annual Improvements 2015 – 2017 Cycle
•      AASB 2018-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Plan Amendments, Curtailment or Settlement
•      AASB 2018-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements
•      AASB 2018-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Definition of a business

The following accounting pronouncements are also issued but not effective for the 2019‑20 reporting period. At this stage, the preliminary assessment suggests they may have insignificant impacts on 
public sector reporting.

This standard defers the mandatory effective date of AASB 1059 from 1 January 
2019 to 1 January 2020.

This standard defers the mandatory effective date of 
AASB 1059 for periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2019 to 1 January 2020. As the State has elected to early 
adopt AASB 1059, the financial impact will be reported in 
the financial year ending 30 June 2019, rather than the 
following year.

This Standard principally amends AASB 101 Presentation of Financial 
Statements and AASB 108 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting 
Estimates and Errors. The amendments refine and clarify the definition of 
material in AASB 101 and its application by improving the wording and aligning 
the definition across AASB Standards and other publications. The amendments 
also include some supporting requirements in AASB 101 in the definition to give 
it more prominence and clarify the explanation accompanying the definition of 
material.

The standard is not expected to have a significant impact 
on the public sector.

STATEMENT Impact on public sector entity financial statements

Certain new accounting standards have been published that are not mandatory for 30 June 2020 reporting period. DTF assesses the impact of all these new standards and 
advises the Health Service of their applicability and early adoption where applicable. 

As at 30 June 2020, the following standards and interpretations had been issued by AASB but were not yet effective.  They become effective for the first financial statements for 
reporting periods commencing after the stated operative dates as detailed in the table below.  Hesse Rural Health has not and does not intend to adopt these standards early.
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Hesse Rural Health acknowledges Victoria’s Aboriginal and Torres Strait 
Islander communities and their rich culture. We pay respect to the Ancestors, 

Elders and Communities of Wathaurong people of the Kulin Nation, the custodians of the land 
on which we deliver our health care services. We seek to ensure the facilities, environment and 
services we manage are welcoming and inclusive for all people. 

Hesse Rural Health Service (Hesse) is a public hospital operating under the Health Services Act 
1988 and relevant amendments, and is governed by a Board of Directors appointed by the Governor 
in Council by the recommendation of the Victorian State Minister for Health. 

As an innovative rural health service, Hesse provides acute, aged and community based services 
across parts of the municipalities of Colac Otway, Golden Plains and the Surf Coast. Hesse 
partners with the Winchelsea Hostel and Nursing Home Society Inc., a not-for-profit entity 
and Commonwealth Residential Aged Care Service  (RACS) provider, whose charter it is to plan, 
provide and develop appropriate services for the local community.

Mission

Hesse is dedicated to providing and facilitating access to best practice health, aged and community 
based services that strive for rural wellbeing.

INCLUSIVENESS
Welcoming everyone

INTEGRITY
Accountable, transparent practice

EXCELLENCE
Committed to being the best we can

CREATIVITY
Leading into the future

PERSON CENTREDNESS
Finding what’s important to the individual

WHO ARE WE?

Our Annual Report is internally produced and designed, and reflects real stories provided by our 
staff, consumers and their families. The Report aims to inform Government, interested stakeholders 
and members of the public about the range and quality of our services and Hesse Rural Health’s 
financial performance over the year.

Hospital Care

Breakfast Club

Bus to the Hub

Community Nursing

Dementia Care

Diabetes Education

Dietetics

District Nursing

Exercise Groups

Facilitated Play Group

Farm Safety Program

Greet, Eat & Meet

Health Promotion

Hospital in the Home

Immunisation Program

Men’s Group

Men’s Shed Program

Nesters Group

‘No Falls’ Exercise Program

Occasional Care

Occupational Therapy

Palliative Care

Personal Development

Physiotherapy

Podiatry

Post Acute Care

Post Natal Care

Pre-School Health 

Social Support Groups

Urgent Care

Volunteering

Walking Groups

Well Women’s Clinic

Yoga

To access Hesse’s broad range of
services contact Administration:

Phone:    (03) 5267 1200

Mail:  8 Gosney Street

 Winchelsea VIC 3241

E-mail:     reception@hesse.vic.gov.au

Website: www.hesseruralhealth.org.au

OUR SERVICES CONTACT US

Regional CentreHospitalH
C

Community Health Services

H
C Residential Aged Care

H
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